i
‘.\ ' '!hn Lifestyle Qiroup Plc
Annqal Rupon an&\ﬁccﬁunts 2020

LI
1|t}
slafr}

\
¥

S————

e AR
oy =8

e i -w,ﬁ .‘Mf

H # 2
] | | | e vy < - : : 5
’ - - N
1 A ’ E.",.-i_“__ s, GEY
Sz ‘ gl 7
! a

N L “llﬂ‘hf‘“' ™ m -y
"“ - - =y e
% "“".'_'j""‘_.su—-':*;, |__ 5 .

RIVING THE
TURE OF SERVICE




OUR MISSION:

TO BECOME THE
WORLD’S MOST
TRUSTED SERVICE

TEN'S GROWTH ENGINE
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OVERVIEW

Highlights

HIGHLIGHTS OF THE YEAR

FINANCIAL

+ Met Revenue' down 3.5% to 044.2m (2019 £45.8m)
Corporate revenue increase of 1.6% to £40.9m (2019: £40.3m)
supported by growing member engagement
— Supplier revenuea decreass of 40.3% to ©3.3m (2019 £5.5m)
due largely to impact of COVID-19 on travel

* EMEAZ region growth partly offset declines in APAC® and
Americas regions
- T4 Met Revenuea growth in EMEA
— 13% Met Revenue decline in the Americas
— 1% Net Revenue decline in APAC

Adjusted EBITDA of £4.8m (pre-IFRS 16% £0.9m; 2019: pre-IFRS 16

loss £i3.3)m); improved margin® 10.8% (2019; pre-IFRS 16 loss {7.2%)
This reflects improved efficiencies and prudent cost reduction actions
taken in H2

- Maintainad a high level of investment in technology of £12.2m
{2019: £12.2m)

-

Reduced loss before tax of £i5.9)m (2015: £7.3)m)

Met cash at £10m (2019 £12.3m)

Decrease in net cash of £2,.3m: (H2 increase of £0.4m; H1 decrease
of £2.7m (unaudited))

- 21m long-term debt (LSA)

Total operating expenses ©39.4m, £2.8m lower than 2019, as a result
of improved efficiency and cost reduction in the second half of the year,
togethar with £3.9m reclassification dus to IFRS 16

Hat Aavenua axcluedes tha dwact cost of sales relating to cartain mambsar transactions managed
oy the Giroup,

2 The Europe, Middle East and Africa region.
3 The Asia-Pacilic region

4 Adjusted EBITDA is post-IFRS16 and is operating profitdloss) before interes:, taxation, amortisation,
shara-based paymants and excaptional costs

5 Pre-IFAS 18 means the adoplion of IFAS 18 using the modified retrospactive appreach, comparative
niormation has not bean restated.

& Adjusted EBITDA margin is post-IFRS 16 and is Adsted EEITDA as a percentage of Net Revenus.
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Adjusted EBITDA
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OVERVIEW

OPERATIONAL

Year-on-year record member satisfaction

Expanded an existing contract in the Americas into an Extra Large contract®
Won a Medium contract® in Australia, launched in September 2020

Ten Digital Platform live with 22 client brands (2019: 14)

£12.2m (2019: £12.2m) invested in proprietary digital platforms,
communications and technologies to enhance member experience and creats
competitive advantage

Deliverad a number of key milestones in the Group's digital transformation

Improved efficiencies and proposition from greater digital capabilities,
operational maturity and stronger supplier partnarships

KEY COVID-19 MEASURES

* Migration to home working with no service interruption and continued
PCl DSS Lavel 1 compliance

* Continuing to successiully flex member proposition to adapt to members’
changing lives and needs

* | everaged improved content and member communications to
engage members

* Prudent cost management delivered over £5m of cost savings compared
1o prior year

Tan messures mambar satisfaction using the Net Fromotar Score managamant tool, which gauges the loyalty
of a firms customer ralationships (httpe:den.wikipadia.orgwikiiNet_Promotard.

Ten categorises its corporate client contracts based an the annualised valee paid, or expected 1o be paid,
by the corporate chant for the provision of concierge and related services by Ten as: Small contracts (below
£0.26m); Medium contracts (satwaan £0.256m and £2m); Large contracts (over £2m); and Exira Large contracts

[owar 25m). This does not include the revenua generatad from suppliers through tha provision of conclenge sandces,

Ten Lifestyle Group Plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2020
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Chairman’s Statement

Chairman

QOverview

| am pleasad to update our stakeholders on the Group's
progress towards becoming the world’s most trustad service.
Ir the first half of the year, we made very good headway
towards our goals of revenue growth, cash generation and
profitability. In the second half of the year, and in the face

of significant challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandamic,
the Group took appropriate action to generate revenue and
manage costs 1o improve EBITDA profitability in the year.

The Group's agile and highly-effective response to the
COVID-19 pandemic has demonstrated the resilience and
flexibility of our team and our tech-enabled service proposition
and the strength of the underlying business model, which, with
scale and time in market, builds efficiency, service quality as
well as value to our members and corporate clients,

Al the heart of Ten's business lies a growth engine that has
allowed Ten to improve its cash position through the second
half of the yvear and EBITDA profitability across the full vear. It
has also enabled us to develop a stronger member and client
proposition, helping us to retain existing contracts and develop
new onas; alihowgh the impacts of COVID-19 on relevant markets
and the wider economy has slowed the winning of new
contracts and growth of existing contracts.

We maintained investment in our proprietary technology
throughout the year. Our technology underpins the Group's
competitive position as a leading technology-enabled, global

ifestyle and travel senvice platform for individuals and their families,

66

In the face of significant challenges,

the Group took appropriate action to
generate revenue and manage costs to
improve EBITDA profitability in the year.”

STRATEGIC REPORT

DELIVERING ON

KEY STRATEGIC
OBJECTIVES DESPITE
A CHALLENGING YEAR

Bruce Weatherill

Strategy

The Group continues 1o develop strang partnerships with
carporate clients, primarily in the financial services sectors,
that seek to improve the engagement, retention and acquisition
of their most valuable customers by offering access to our
technology-enabled travel and lifestyle services. The Group
also offers individuals the opportunity to access its services
through a private membershio proposition.

Members get access to a wide range of propositions across
key consumer markets, including dining, travel, entertainmsant
and premium retail. By combining the buying power of its
membearship, the Group securas attractive offers and discounts,
meaning members often achieve better and more cost effective
outcomeas, maore corveniantly than they could on their own,
Ten's services are made available to members to search and
book online though Ten's market-leading lifestyle and travel
proprietary digital platform, the “Ten Digital Platform®, or by
submitting a request to our expert Lifestyle Managers via
phone, email, live chat and WhatsApp.

The Group adapted and enhanced its proposition in responss
to the effects of COVID-19 on these consumer markets and to
the lives of our members. Examples are set out on pages 18
and 19. In doing so, Ten has demaonstrated the extraordinary
flexibility of its service model to deliver relevant and valued
services to our members, value to our corporate clients, as
well as conbnuing to generate revenue and profit, This was made
possible by the Group's continued investment in technalogy
and content which drives digital transformation, improving
service speed and efficiency, as well as increased cash
generation and margins.

Ten's mission remains to become the world's maost trusted
service, Our strategic goals to achieve this are to drive

our growth enging by building an ever-stronger memkiear
proposition, continuing to invest in technology and content
and securing greater corporate client impact and investment.
We expand on these strategic aims, the progress in the year
and look ahead for each of these goals on pages 22 to 24,

Ten Lifestyle Group Plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2020 5



STRATEGIC REPORT

Chairman'’s Statement continued

Results

The Group has continued to make good progress towards
each of these strategic objectives, resulting in Adjusted EBITDA
of £4.8m (pre-IFRS 16; £0.9m; 2019 pre-IFRS 16 loss ©3.3)m)
and a healthy net cash position of £10.0m (H1 2020: £9.6m
junaudited)) (FY 2012 £12.3m). Returning to EBITDA profitability
and an improved cash position through the second half of the
yiear are key milestoneas in the Group's strategy after a period
of investmeant,

Group Net Revenue declined by 3.5% in the year to £44.2m.
However, this was predominantly a result of decreased supplier
revenue from reduced member traval due to the COVID-19
pandemic. Overall in the vear, corporate revenue grew by 1.6%
and supplier revenue decreased by 40.3%. Revenue from our
supplier base, such as hotels, airines, and event promoters
which sometimeas pay commission, has been very low since
March 2020,

The resulting decline of Net Revenue in the second half was,
in part, mitigated by a smaller decrease in revenue from our
corporate clients. This was achieved by the Group's agile
response 1o our members’ changing needs throughout the
COVID-19 crisis (as detailed on pages 18 and 19), allowing us
ta remain relevant to our corporate clients and members.

The Group has secured some strategic new contract wins,
including with Westpac in Australia, as well as impartant,
multi-year contract extensions and significant expansions of
contracts with our existing corporate clients, We have not lost
any clients to competitors, We have been well supported by
cantractual minimums. However, growth from new contracts
and development of existing corporate programmes contracted
in the second hall due to wider economic uncertainty. Our
continued investrment in technology and content during the
year has allowed us to maintain a strong sales pipeline, remain
differentiated from our compeatitors and develop our proven
ability to help clients engage, retain and acquire their most
valuable customers,

Whilst maintaining record levels of member satisfaction, the
Group has achieved a significant digital transformation of the
business by increasing automation in the servicing of member
requasts. Over the last two years, the number of reqguests
serviced using automation rose by 75% and fully automated
requasts increased fourfold over the last vear. Increased
automation drives the speed and efficiency of our service,
which contributes to increased cash generation and the
improved margin® of 10.8% (2019: (7.2)%).

The Group ended the year with a strong net cash position of
£10.0m (2019: £12.3m) resulting from the Group improving its
cash position through the second half of the year, This has
been achieved by the increasing efficiency of the business
model as well as prudent cash management, including the
implementation of a salary sacrifice for options scheme and
participation in government funded coronavirus initiatives.

9 Adjusted EBITDA as a parcentage of Net Revenue.
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People

The Group continues to benefit from a stable, founder-led
management team who have shown strong leadership, innovation
and resilience in all regions to overcome the challenges posed as
a result of COVID-19. The Group reduced its levels of full-time
equivalent (FTE) employvess in the year in response to regional
growth rates, improved efficiencies and regional cost optimisation.

On behalf of the Board | would like to thank the whole Ten team
for demonstrating adaptability, professionalism, and steadfast
commitment throughout the year, for which we are extremely
grateful and proud.

66

Returning to EBITDA profitability

and an improved cash position through
the second half of the year are key
milestones in the Group's strategy

after a period of investment.”

Summary

| am very pleased to repart that the Group has delivered on
some of the Board's key strategic goals, including achisving
Adjusted EBITDA profitability in the full yvear, improved cashflow
in the second half of the year and our ongaoing digital transformation
in how the service is delivered. This has been achieved through
the growth engine that lies at the heart of Ten's business, which
is more fully explained on pages 14 and 15.

The Group has also achieved critical mass, our business model
is strong and competitively robust and we have a haalthy net
cash position, leaving us well placed to continue o grow and
secure profitability as we come out of the COVIDA19 crisis, We
are confident in the strength of our relationships with our existing
clients and we have proved our value in helping corporate clents
engage, retain and acquire their mast valuable customers, which
bodes well for the future.

Bruce Weatherill
Chairman
23 November 2020



Chief Executive's Statement

Alex Cheatle

Overview

| am proud of how the Group has continued to deliver on our
mission to become the world's most trusted service and create
value for our corporate clients during a highly challenging year,
whilst delivering Adjusted EBITDA of £4.8m and improved net
cash in the second hall of the year,

The Group's strategy of continued investment in technology,
contant and supplier partnerships has given the business the
resilience to respond 10 the changing needs of our members
throughout the COVID-12 crisis. By leveraging our members’
combined buying power and our relationships with new

and existing supplier partners, we adapted our service and
mproved the ways we personalise, target and communicate
with our memiers. By doing so, we have remainad relevant to
our members. The resulting record levels of satisfaction and
engagement support the valug of our proposition with
corporate clients.

Additional personalisation and localisation capability has furthar
enhanced our market-leading, multichannel, transactional
proprietary platform {the “Ten Digital Platform”), where members
can enjoy superor access, offers, benefits and discounts across
dining, travel and tourism, entertainmeant and premium brand
markets; all supportad by our expert Lifestyle Managers, By
delivering a global “one stop shop” personalised to the individual,
our service can flex to meet the neads of the member,

Before COVID-18, 85-90% of our Met Revenua came from
sarvice or subscription fees, paid by our corporate clients or
private members. In contrast, almost all other providers of
similar services (e.g. travel agents or ticket portals) rely on
commissicn o mark-ups on bookings. This differentiation
allows us to prioritise an attractive member proposition and
continue ta provide market-leading value for our members,
aven when key markets are disrupted.

The COWVID-19 pandemic since February 2020, has resulted in
recuced Net Revenue in the second half of the year, Despite
this, we made good progress towards achieving our strategic
aims, including a positive Adjusted EBITDA of £4.8m [pre-IFRS 16:
£0.9m; 2019: pre-IFRS 16 loss B{3.3)m) in addition to improving
the Group's cash position through the second half of the vear,

STRATEGIC REPORT

RESILIENT BUSINESS
MODEL WITH IMPROVING
EFFICIENCIES AND
PROPOSITION

Group Chief Executive Officer

We maintained high levels of investment in our technology,
communications and content by spending £12.2m in the year
[2019: £12.2m). It is largely bacause of this that the growth
engine which lies at the heart of our business has gained
rromerturm in key areas, delivering a stronger member proposition,
engagement and ultimately increasing value for our corporate
clients to encourage them to invest more in our business,

EBuild & mare

waluod service
— ®__q—"“x‘
\x

I P

Stronger ’ - -. mamber
pm:'::dm e = ngaEgamant
/ Fd Impravemants ., §
| _,.-' in spoed and \ I|
{ wlficiancy l
f '
| |
Incraassd cash _-. !
ganaratian [
and margins i
Fial i /
ainvaatmsnt in - Dalivar & #rcng Fadurm
lnchnclnn:. nnﬂ::'t ¥ —— - an Invesiment (RO 1o
and sug
i L - Corparate Clisma

Mare Investment from
Corparata Clianta
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Engagement with aur corporate clients has remained strang
throughout the yvear. We believe that the way in which we have
adapted and innovated to meet their needs as well as the
needs of their most valued customers, without compromising
on our digital commitments, has grown our reputation and
credibility in the market.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Chief Executive's Statement continued

Ter's international footprint, including offices in 22 global cities,
enabled the Group to build valuable best practices and experience
as the pandemic progressed across our three regions from APAC
to EMEA and tha Americas and is enabling us to develop a
robust strategy for recaovery.

APAC - the first region affected by COVID-19

The rapid response by our t2ams in Singapore, Hong Kong,
Shanghai, Japan and Malbourne to the early effects of
COVID-19 an the lives of our clients, members and colleagues
mitigated the impact on the business. It also helped shape the
Group's global response, meaning the rest of the Group was
well prepared by the time the pandemic disrupted EMEA and
the Americas.

The APAC region adapted well to the changing local
requiraments and restrictions, supporting safe home-working
for our staff and offering tailored support to our members. As
opportunities to travel domeastically and dine-out returned across
the region, our members took advantage of our services, which
we appropriately promoted through our improved targeted
communication capabilities,

YWe believe our sensitive and tailored approach to serving

our members” nesds contributed towards another record year
for Met Promaoter Scores (MPS) in the region. In a demanding
economic emdronment, achieving this key metric helps our clients
in the region to support the provision of Ten's services (o their
mast valued customears,

Although the effects of COVID-19 dampened the growth

of new and existing client contracts in the region, we achieved
sufficient growth of existing contracts to partly offset the loss

of a Large contract in the prior year, resulting in Net Revenuea of
£8.5m (2019 £9.5m). During the period, we agresad a three-year
axtension of a Large contract with a client in the region. This
contract is now expectad 1o grow into an Extra Large contract
during the extendad term.

We won a multiple-year contract with Westpac Banking
Corparation, signed in July and launched past vear end in
Septernber 2020, which now delivers Ten's concierge services
to premium credit card custormers primarily from our Melbourne
office and includes access to the customised Ten Digital Platform.
The contract is expacted to be our first Medium contract in
Australia and brings us to five Material Contracts™ in the APAC
ragion, in addition to a number of Small contracts. Many of
these have the potential to grow as the wider econamic
environment improveas,

Improved operational efficiencies in the region, primarily

driven by our continued digital transformation, as well as
significant cost saving measures, including a reducticn in the
number of full-time equivalent (FTE) employess in H2, and our
participation in relevant government funded COVID-19 initiatives,
resulted in an improved Adjusted EBITDA pre-IFRS 16 loss of
£0.3m (2019: £1.3m loss).

EMEA

EMEA is our most matura global region, with significant
efficiencies achieved in the year, underpinned by our continued
digital transformation and matura scala within our high-touch
operations as well as our strong and increasingly integrated
supplier partnerships across the region.

Building on our early experiences in APAC, EMEA prepared
well for the impact of COVID-19 by establishing compliant
homea working practices and renagaotiating supplier and lease
agreements to achieve prudent cost savings, By working
innovatively with our established clients and supplier partners
in the region, we developed and tested a range of new member
services, including virtual cooking and cocklail masterclasses
with top chefs, a wvirtual book club with leading authors, and
editorial staycation guides, The most successful initiatives were
rolled-out in ather regions.

By remaining relevant to our members and clients throughout
the year, we achieved a 7% growth in Net Bevenue in the
region, despita a significant reduction in supplier revenue in the
second half of the year due to widespread travel restrictions
limiting commission-generating bookings since March 2020,
As local restrictions eased, we were able to proactively support
our members to make the most of travel, dining and live
entertainmeant opportunities, as well as continuing to support
themn through periods of lockdown,

Our strong competitive position, underpinned by the continued
improvemsants to the Ten Digital Platform and our well-developed
member proposition in EMEA, was instrumental in securing
important corporate client contract renewals in the year. This
inzluded a five-year extension of an existing Extra Large
contract for which we launched the customised Ten Digital
Platform and the extension of two Large contracts and a
Medium contract,

Against a background of intense economic uncertainty, we

are pleased to have retained all of our Material Contracts in the
region, although the effects of COVID-19 have delayed some
key client developments and from September 2020 a Large
corporate-pay model contract was replaced with an affiliate
model contract, which we anticipate to be Small in size.

Due to these challengas, we took prudent cost saving actions
across the region in the second half of the year, including
reduced office costs and a reduction in the number of full-time
equivalent [FTE) employvess. We also participated in available
government funded COVID-19 intiatives, These actions along
with the continued operational efficiencies in the ragion has
deliverad this significantly improved regional Adjusted EBITDA
pre-IFRS 16 margin of 32% 2019 11%).

10 Ten calegorises its corporate clien contracts based an the annualised value paid, or expected to be paid, by the corporale client lor the provision of conciarge and relaled services
vy Ten &s: Srmall contracts (below £0.25m); Medium contracts (betwesn £0.25m and £2m); Large conlracts (over £2m); and Exira Large contracts jover E5m). This does not include
the revenue generated from suppliers throwgh the provision of concierge services, Mediem, Large and Extra Large contracts are collectively Ten™s “Material Contracts”.
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Americas

Cur key markets in the region: Latin America, the USA

and Canada werg all significantly impacted by the effects of
COVID-19 from March 2020. By leveraging what we had leamt
in the APAC and EMEA regions, we took precautionary measuras
to pratect the business, including implementing safe home working
for aur staff and prudent cost savings. We also developed
memiber propositions tailored to our members' changing
litestyles in the region, including staycation guides paired with
experiences and offers available with local supplier partners.

Im January 2020, we expanded an existing contract in the
ragion, incurring significant set-up costs in the first half of the
year. Although the contract is now categorised as an Extra
Large contract, its growth was impacted in the second half
of the year by the effects of COVID-19 in the region,

By strengthening the member proposition including
improverments to the Tan Digital Flatform, we achieved a higher
Met Promoter Score (NPS) in the region than last year. This is a
key metric for our clients locking to retain and engage their
most valuable customers in the Americas and supports our
continued discussions to develop the existing client contracts.

Despite the measures takan in the Americas, widespread travel
restrictions throughout the second half of the yvear suppressed
supplier revenue earned on travel bookings as well as averall
sarvice request volumes. This resulted in a 13% reduction in
Met Revenue, despite additional revenue from the contract
axpansion in January 2020, The cost of the contract expansion
contributed to a £1.5m increase in the Adjusted EBITDA
pre-IFRS 16 loss for the region.

Investment in technology and content drives our
market-leading digital capability

Az outlined in our strategy at PO, we continued to undertake

a transformation of our digital capability by maintaining a
high-level of investment into technology and related areas, with
£12.2m in 2020 (2018 £12.2m) spent in the yvear and a total of
£34.9m spent since IPO on the Ten Digital Platform, TenhalD,
content, communications, and other technologies.

We believe our market-leading digital capabilities are at the
core of the Group's resilience, as demonstrated in the year and
underping our lang-term strategy to become the world's most
trusted service.

I the year, we delivered a number of key milestones in
our digital transformation, including; increased automation,
improved featuras on the Ten Digital Platform, enhanced
communication and use of content with members as
detailed on pages 16 and 17.

Stronger member proposition, satisfaction

and engagement

Building a valued service and strong member proposition is

the key objective of the grawth engine that underpins the Ten
business modeal, This delivers member engagement, which is a
key abjective for our corporate clients, who invest in our service
to acquire, engage and retain their most valued customers,

STRATEGIC REPORT

In the year we have both strengthened our core propositions
and developed them to suit the changing needs of our members
throughout the COVID-12 pandemic, across all regions, as sat
out on pages 18 and 19,

The more attractive and accessible our proposition is 10 new
and existing membears, the mare members engage, use and
advacate for our service. Member engagement and satisfaction
is the key to building value for corporate partners, aiming to
improve the engagament, retention and acquisition of their
mast valued customers. This justifies their spending with us —
and encourages new corporate partners and new suppliers to
work with us.

In the first hall of the year, the numier of unigue users of the
service increased by 14% compared with the same penod in
the: previous yaar. In the second hall of the year, the number

of unique usars of the service increased by 18% compared
with the same period in the previous year, despite the effects
of COVID-19. We have also seen a 6% increase in repeat usage
by mambers in the year, demanstrating improving engagement
and satisfaction with the service.

We ara delightad to have achievad another year-on-year record level
of member satisfaction, measured by Met Promaoter Score (NPS).

Met Promater Score (MPS)

2018

2019 2020

We believe that our strengthened member proposition and
member satisfaction levels have resulted in an increase in
repaat usage of our service and an increasa in the number of
unique service users in the first and second halves of the year,
when compared with the same periods in the previous year.

We have received positive feedback from existing and
prospective corporate clients on our strengthensd member
proposition and member engagement meatrics. Ve bealieve our
ability to respond to changing member needs throughaout the
pandemic has helped to enhance cur reputation and credibility
i the market,

Ten Lifestyle Group Plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2020 9



STRATEGIC REPORT

Chief Executive's Statement continued

Summary

We believe our competitive position is stronger than ever,
backed by a markat-leading member progosition. This
propasition is valued by our membears, whose engagement
delivared a strong return on the investment for our corporate
clients. This has been achieved by continuing o irvest in our
technology, content, market expertise and better pricing,
access, benefits and integration with our supplier partnars,

Although the effects of COVID-19 have constrained some of
our praspective clients from signing contracts, our pipeline is
robust and we have secured some impaortant new mandates
and contract extensions. By maintaining the relevance of our
service 1o our members and in tum our corporate clients, we
have achieved a 1.6% increase in Mat Revenue from corporate
clientz during the year and retained all of our Material Contracts
in the year,

Despite prudent cost contrals we have maintained investments
in technology, content and supplier partnerships, which has
enhanced the service to clients and is crucial for our future
success. Greater efficiencies and cost control along with careful
cash management, has helped us to maintain a strong net
cash position of £10.0m (2012 £12.3m). We have deliverad an
Adjusted EBITDA of £4.8m (2012: pre-IFRS 16 loss of £(3.3)m).

Owr record service levels, strang technalogy platform, EBITDA
profitability, a healthy cash position and a strong robust pipeling
all combine to create confidence in a strong future for our
business as we emerge from the pandemic.

66

Our competitive position is stronger
than ever, backed by a market-leading
member proposition.”
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Qutlook

Lintil the effects of COVID-19 ease globally, we expect that

Met Revenue will continue to be reduced due to lower demand
for our core services in dining, travel and live entertainment in
each of the regions. The timing of this recovery is uncertain and
continues to face delays, as demonstrated by the second wave
of infection across the globe.

MNet Revenue is partially protected by minimurm fee agreements
with some corporate clients and the flexibility and adaptivenass
of the service proposition. The proposition typically generates
revenue on the delivery of relevant services to members rather
than on the comversion of specific types of bookings. This
differentiates Ten from traditional agency business models

in travel or entertainment which rely predominantly on
commission from bookings.

We expect Supplier revenus to remain at the current very low
levels until global travel substantially recovers,

We continue to develop our pipeline of opportunities and it is
passible that some new Small and Medium contracts could be
launched in the first half of 2021. We do not expect to launch
any new larger contracts until the effects of COVID-19 on the
wider economy have eased due to the consarvative planning
that is characteristic of our larger target clients.

W are focused on continuing to generate EBITDA profitability and
maintaining a healthy cash position by delivering services relevant
to our members, together with driving improved efficiencies and
ongaing cost savings, whilst maintaining investment in technaolagy.
Ag aresult of this continued investmeant we expect some
reduction in net cash,

Despite the COVID-19 pandemic adversealy affecting our
business, we bengfit from loval corporate clients, a healthy
revenue pipeline and continued investment in our technology,
which leaves us well positioned for recovery as the
pandemic easaes.

Alex Cheatle

Group Chief Executive Officer
23 November 2020



Creating Value

Ten delivers ROl on our
corporate clients’ investment

Ten's concierge service makes monay for our
corparate clients by supporting their customer
acquisition and retention plans and growing
customer value.

Through member cohort analysis, our analysis
shows that concierge users are up to 3 times
more likely to ba retained as customers and more
likely to be advocates for our corporate clients.
Usage of Ten's concierge service also correlatad
with a significantly higher average card spend vs
non-usars and also corralated with growth of
Aubd jAssets Under Management). These metrics
all indicate that our corporate clients’ brand is more
frant-of-mind amongst conciarge usars,

Our corporate partnars continue 1o imest in our
senvice to delight their customers, drive Net
Promoter Score (NP3} and differentiate their
proposition. Evidence that there is a positive ROI
from this investment in hard commercial terms

helps support continued and increasing investment.

b
L

Client retention rates pa (%)

Mon users Low usars High users
{1=10uses pa) (114 uses pal
»

Lze of Ten's Sarvicas

STRATEGIC REPORT

Ten’s revenue streams

Corporate clients

The majority of Group MNet Revenue (85-90% pre-COVID-19) is
derived from fees paid by corporate clients for concierge services
and access to the Ten Digital Platform.

* Concierge services revenue
The Group's services are generally made available to membears
through parinerships with corporate clients who pay for Ten's
sarvices on behalf of their valued customers, as part of their
customer retention, engagement and acquisition strategy.

Most of Ten's corporate clents include private banks, retail banks,
premium payment card providers and luxury brands, which
offer Ten’s services as part of their benefits package, which
are complementary to their products such as premium credit
cards or premium Banking or wealth management services,

Ten typically charges its corporate clients on a "per request”
basis — costed depending on whether the request is mace
offline, requiring the expertise of a Litestyle Manager, or online
and completed through the Ten Digital Flatform,

Arequest is typically an instruction recered from a member
to research, advise or arrange something on their behalf,
Requests principally relate to dining, travel, entertainment
and pramium ratail,

= Ten Digital Platform revenue
Tha Ten Digital Platform iz an end-to-end fully transactional
platform for concierge services and is Ten's digital interface
with members with core modules specialising in dining, travel,
entertainment and offers & benefits with premium retail. These
modules festure content, Ten-procurad inventory and — varying
by rarket — APl integrations with supplisrs and provicders.
The resull is a data-rich end-to-end transactional platform
that mirrars the service level, accass, and proposition of the
Lifestyle Manager-led service.

Ten derves soms revenueg from developing, customising and
integrating the Ten Digital Platform for its corporate clients.
We also generate additional revenue from delivaring and
licensing our digital platform to corporate clients.

* Other revenue

Other corporate client service-related-revenua-genarating
activities include negotiating special offers or benefits with
suppliers and creating bespoke editonal contant,

Supplier revenue

The Group eams some revenue from its supplier base, such

as hotels, aiines, and event prometers which sometimes pay
commission o Ten. Ten does not typically negatiate higher levels
of supplier commissions but instead focuses on negotiating the
best member benefits to drive member satisfaction.

Ten Lifestyle Group Plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2020 1
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At a Glance

INVESTMENT CASE

A huge market opportunity

* 35 our service aims to become the best way 1o access and organise dining, travel and tourism,
entertainment and luxury retail markets

The established market leader for technology-enabled concierge services"
+ the only global, multi-category transactional lifestyle and travel platform, backed by expert Lifestyle Managers
+ with long-term and large corporate contracts

* 3 growing, powerful HNW| closed user group

A proven growth engine at the heart of our business model
* benefited by high-levels of investment in our technology
* delivering a strong member proposition and member engagement

* which drives our client’s return on investment and their continued support of Tan

Delivering year-on-year growth
+ of revenue from our corporate clients, despite COVID19
* due to sustained member activity and support from corporate clients

* 3 strong sales pipeline for future growth

Improving EBITDA
* following a period of intensive investrment after our IPO in November 2017

* driven by technology and operational efficiencles

11 Bazed on our management’s beligls and assumptions and on information currently available 1o our management, including the member of corporate
cantracts won in competitive tenders,

12  Ten Lifestyle Group Ple | Annual Report and Accounts 2020
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A GROWING SERVICE PLATFORM

Ten's service platform is offered to millions of eligible members globally; including the Ten Digital Platform,
which is now available in over 20 brands, 100 countries, 15 languages and 35 currencies. We consider this a
competitive advantage and to be highly valued by our corporate clients and members.

1910

Why would | ever
need to drive a car?

o

1937

Why would | ever
need a machine to
wash my clothes?

1983
% Why would | need a
computer at home?
2003 E
If | want to find
something out, I'll
go to a library.
2005

G

| would never get
stuff delivered to
my house when |
can get it from

a shop.

2007

Why would | need a
mabile phone other
than to make calls?

a
2020

E Why should | ever
use Ten's services?

Ten Lifestyle Group Plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2020
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Business Model

TEN’S GROWTH ENGINE -
PROPOSITION, PROFITABILITY AND SCALE

The growth engine at the heart of Ten's business model grows service quality and cash generation
over time and with scale, creating shareholder value and a deep competitive moat.

Build a more

@ valued service
Increase
@ member
engagement

Stronger

member @
proposition
Improvements

in speed and
efficiency

Increased cash
gen eration
and margins

Reinvestment in
technology, content
and supplier
partnerships

Deliver a strong Return
on Investment (ROI) to
Corporate Clients

More Investment from
Corporate Clients

14  Ten Lifestyle Group Ple | Annual Report and Accounts 2020
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PRINCIPLES OF GROWTH

Build a more valued service

To become the most trusted service in the
world, we continue o build & "member-first™
service that is valued because it offers reliable
and relevant services using people and
technology that members can rust 1o have
their best interests at heart and deliver to
their neaeds.

Increase member engagement
Indirvicdieals will engage on a repeat basis with &
valued, trustad and comenient service that
delivers supenor access, offers and discounts
across mulliple consurmer markets and wiich
adapts to changing and individual needs.

Deliver a strong Return

on Investment (ROI) to

Corporate Clients

Caorpaorate chents want us to help them
increase their engagement, retention and
acquisition of their most valuable customers,
better and maors effectively than other
retention and acquisition tools. A partnership
with Ten can also help clients to target
improvemeants in customer advocacy, assets
under management [Auh) and spend on
related payment cards.

More Investment from

Corporate Clients

When we demonstrate strong Beturn on
Investrment (ROI) for our corporate cliants,
they invest mare with us to customise,
develop and integrate their concierge offering
ta their most valuable customers.

Reinvestment in technology, content
and supplier partnerships
Reirvestment of revenue fram corporate
clients and profit generated by the growth
enging improves our technology, including
functionality of the Ten Digital Flatiormn,
content and our supplier partnerships, This
helps create the momentum behind the
Group's growth engine.

Stronger member proposition

A stronger member proposition benefits from
improving the quality, speed, efficiency of the
senvice as wall as editorial content and the way
we communicate with members. Leveraging
the collective buying powear of our affluent
and growing membership with our existing
and new supplier partners further strengthens
the proposition by offering the best access,
affars and discounts across dining, travel,
entertainment and pramium retail,

Improvements in speed

and efficiency

Autormating some of the ways wea
service rmember requests and effective
communication strategies improve the
speed and efficiency of the service.

Increased cash generation

and margins

Improving operational and financial efficiancy
helps us achieve our strategic goals of
generating cash and profit, which are largely
reinvested into improving the member
proposition still further and faster.

Ten Lifestyle Group Plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2020 15
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Ten’s Digital Transformation

TRANSFORMED DIGITAL CAPABILITIES

Ten has continued to transform its digital capabilities by maintaining a high-level of investment, with
£12.2m spent in 2020 and a total of £34.9m spent since IPO on the Ten Digital Platform, TenMAID,

content, communications, and other technologies.

Automation

Wa increased levels of automation when handling
member service requests, incleding fully automated
request fulfilment. For example, we grew direct online
bookings through the use of application programming
interfaces (AP with supplier partners and agaregatars
on the Ten Digital Platform, including reservations at
venues in our portfolio of Held Tables at top restaurants
We also fulfil requests using partly automated oparations.
These initiatives have increased the number of fully
automated requests fourfold in the year.

We beligve increased automation improves sarvica
speed and convenience. This is backed by year-on-year
increases to our global record Met Promater Scores
(MPS). We also believe the efficiencies gained through
increased automation have contributed to the increasad
Adjusted EBITDA margin of 10.8% (2019: {7.2)%).
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TenMAID and communications

Ten's proprietary customer relationship management platform
[TenhMAID") supports our expert Lifestyle Managers to delver
personalised, high-guality lifestyle and concierge services
to our members 24/7/365, wherever they are in the world. It
enables Lifestyle Managers to securely access the member's
proofile and search Ten's entire imventony to fulfil the member’s
request efficiently, the success of which we believe is reflected
in our year-on-year record Net Promater Scores (MPS),

Az part of our digital transformation, we also imest in
integrating communication strategies with TenMAID and
the Ten Digital Flatform to enable members to access our
expert Lifestyle Managers by phong, email, webchat and
now WhatsApp. This includes Bullseye routing which
automatically directs the member’s call to the most
appropriate Lifestyle Manager based on the member's
profile and other logic points,

By investing in the development of TenMAID we have improved
the efficiency, search capabiliies and usability, all of which,
combined with improved communication technology, drive
member satisfacton and operational efficiencies.

g

N




Content

We have greatly improved how we use editarial
cantent and electronic marketing to communicate
and engage with our members by investing in our
in-house content team, which has increased the
number of arficles produced by 65% in the vear,

By creating and publishing quality contant in over
15 languages including; inspiration articles; travel
and at-home guides; digital events; restaurant
reviews, and event and offers promctions, we
can better engage our membars, Member
engagement is further enhanced by improved
search functionality on the Ten Digital Flatform
and improved personalised and targeted
proactive email marketing, meaning members
have better access to the services, offers and
benefits that they are most interested in.

With the backing of our corporate clients, we
significantly increased the number of proactive
aengagemeant emails sent to members globally to
8.2m (2012; 4.9m) whilst maintaining a high open
rate [42% (2019: 44%) as well as increasing the
click-to-open rate (9.5% 2019: 6.7%).

STRATEGIC REPORT

Ten Digital Platform

Ten's proprietary digital platform (*Ten Digital Platform®) is
established in all three global regions and is now available to
members in over 100 countries, supporting over 15 languages
and over 35 currencies. We believe it is the only global,
multi-category transactional lifestyle and travel platform,
backed by expert Lifestyle Managers.

The Ten Digital Flatform is ive with 22 (2019: 14} corporate client
brands globally, Corporate clients often pay us to customise the
Ten Digital Flatform to suit their specific neads, the preferences of
their most valued customers, as well as to support the corparate
client's brand, values and customer engagement strategy.

By partnering with corporate clients to customise and integrate
the Ten Digital Flatform as part of the client's digitalisation
strategy, including developing self-registration and single sign-on
(250 features, we strengthen our proposition for their customers
{our members) and help secure long-term relationships with the
corporate client.

As well as launching, maintaining and augmenting the Ten Digital
Flatform for new and existing corporate clients, we have developed
and delivered key features to improve the resilience, security,
functionality, user experience and efficiency across its travel, dining,
entertainment & events and offers & benefits modules, including:

* improved saarch
functionality;

* SMS identity verification and
DS 2.0 security for

* improved accessibility: payments;

* payment by instalments
(in certain regionsk and

* new Inspiration (content)
mcdule,

* axternalised APIs;

* TiEap views and on
device directions:

These features complement existing key features developments
an the platform, including chat, gec-tree functionality and
micro-service APIs,

Contineed investment into the Ten Digital Platform accelerates the
Group's growth engine as it drives efficiencies, service improvements,
the member proposition and engagement, as well as being a key
competitive differentiator,

Ten Lifestyle Group Plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2020
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Ten’s Member Proposition

STRONGER MEMBER PROPOSITION,
SATISFACTION AND ENGAGEMENT

Building a valued service and strong member proposition is the key objective of the growth engine
that underpins the Ten business model. In the year we have both strengthened our core propositions
and developed them to suit the changing needs of our members throughout the COVID-19 pandemic.

Travel and tourism

Core proposition
Expanded Ten's popular Held Tables
program, offering preferential access at over
800 of the world's best restaurants across
50 global locations,

Increased the number of curated and
searchable reviews of the world's top
restaurants with priority access (and often
banafits 1oo) at over 70% of them to 10,000
{2018 £.8.000),

Added "near ma" functionality to the Ten
Digital Platform which allows & member to
find and request reservations in their area.

Core proposition
Expanded the range, improved the access
and benafits available across our cona travel
propositions, including:

* access o owver G00,000 [2019: 200,000
hotels worldwice;

* cxpansion of Ten's Global Hotel Collection
our partfolio of luxury hotels that offer
additional benafits at over 2 500 hotals
12019 2,200);

* increased average saving of 15% 2019:
5%} on our essential hotel collection, when
compared to online travel agents; and

* direct agreements with 8 {2019: 5)
car hire companies.

18 Ten Lifestyle Group Ple | Annual Report and Accounts 2020

COVID-19 adaptations
Tailored dining recommendations to the changing
lives of our members by increasing localisation and
relevant recommendations [restaurant quality food
deliveries, outside dining and virteal cooking and
cocklal masterclasses with top cheals), in
accordance with [ocal Iockdown restrictions,

As COVID-19 measures lift and opportunities
o dine return, we expandad aur local dining
knowledgs and helped our members find loca
restaurants through the “near me" function and
the nesy mobile-enabled Map View function on
the Ten Digital Platform.

Launched DIME = a quarterly e-zing including
intarviews with world-class chefs, in-depth trend
analysis, Michelin-starred recipes.

COVID-19 adaptations

Dwring the immediate fallout from global travel
restrictions, we supportad members and thair
families to retum home, provided refund support
and updates on country restrictions.

Az our members ware confined to their homes, we
provided inspiration for future trips, including virtual
tours of the world’s most beautiful travel destinations.

We created staycation guides to our members'’
favourite local destinations with details of where to
stay and local, open restaurants with benefits.

We also created regional travel corridorbubble
guides, city guides and essential travel guides to
meet the travel needs of cur members when
traveling internationally.

As our members” ook forward o internaticnal
travel retuming in 2021, we are booking "once in
a lifetime” trips for our members,
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Offers and benefits

Core proposition COVID-19 adaptations

Increased the number of offers with Shift of focus from experiences and popular retail
premium retail brands, available to buy or offers in travel destinations to everyday 'at home’
redesm on the Ten Digital Platform o over r seities. Savings, discounts and supporting

450 (2019 ©.250). ocally owned businesses, including access to:
* gourmet food delivery,
¢ flowers and gifts;

* wallness and home improvement;

* averyday value offers; and
* stavcation packages,

Organised cnline events with retailers and
produced guides to relevant products

Entertainment

Core proposition COVID-19 adaptations

Our success rate for securing general sale face  Supported members affected by the cancellation or
value tickats for our mambers inour come ticket  distribution to booked events and produced guides

markets rosa from 80% to 80% in the year. to available coling and at-home entertainment.
Bafora COVID-12, we organised over 90 Cur popular mamber events want virtual, adding
complmentary member events and hosted vital opportunities for members to socialise

a further 40 in-person 'paid for' events, through nesw Ten-organized events, incleding:

Expanszion of partnerships with major ticket * o Q&A sassion with the cast of Hamilton;
providers and promoters increasing

members access to face value tickets,
presales and offers. * ook clubzs with the author

L=l

&5 10 & series of intimate acoustic gigs;

* wine tastings and cocktal making masterclasses
and

* flower arranging workshops.

Ten Lifestyle Group Plo | Annual Report and Accounts 2020 19



STRATEGIC REPORT

QOur Markets

A HUGE GLOBAL MARKET

To become the most trusted service in the world, we aim to become the best way for
high-net-worth individuals (HNWIs) and the mass affluent to manage their needs in dining,
travel, entertainment and retail,

Travel and tourism

Dining recommendations from expert Lifestyle Expert, "nigh-touch" travel advice and bespoke holicay

Managers, premium accass to the best restaurants with packages, with online flights, hotals, car hire booking

anline reservations through the Ten Digital Platform. through the Ten Digital Platform.

Strategy Strategy

. .LE"“-"E'I’ElgE HN'.N|.membElrShip, Qrg-term ralationships, = Usa the combined buying power of our membership
in-house expertise and reputation to secure access to to negotiate great offers and benefits across all key
the: best restaurants, with premium offers and held aspects of travel, including staycations, local
tables at peak times. destinations, hotels and once in a lifetime trips,

* Guide members to restaurant quality food deliveries, * Offer better value for money than other travel providers
outside dining and virtual cooking and cocktail by not relying on service or commission fees.

masterclasses.
* Create editorial travel arficles and destination

* Produce high-quality, editorial reviews and restaurant guides, showeasing offers and expert knowledge
recommaeandations from the restaurant portfalic. to our rmembers.

* Allow members to search using “near me” » The travel module of the Ten Digital Platform allows
functionality and make reservations on the dining members to search and book flights, hotels and car
module of thD_TD"I Digital Platform ﬂ'_"'d SHESEE hire and Lifestyle Managers can provide full-service
recommendations through personalised emails travel suppert and baspoke holiday bookings.

or direct from Lifestyle Managers.

Market size Market size

Source: PR Mewswire: Global
I I Food Service Market Report l' I Source: World Travel & Tourism
[} 2019 - 2024, n Coungil, 2020.
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These huge markets give Ten the opportunity 1 increase its share of the addressable segrments for our target group of HNWIs and
mass affluent individuals. In 2019 thera were 22.2m high-net-worth indriduals (HNWIs)™ globally, with a combined net worth of 541,74,

f growing our membearship of HNWIs and mass affluent individuals, we increase our ability to leverage the very best access, offers
T 155 these consumer markets. Our expert Lifestyle Mangers, mullichanneal, transaction
Tan Digital Platform, editorial content and targeted email markating undarpin our strategies within each marksat

Details of how we have grown our Mamber Proposition in each of these markets is on pages 18 and 19
12 Individuals with 31m-55m in net woarth.

13 Grgan, Blanchs & Phalips, 2020

Entertainment Premium retail

Expert sports, theatre, music and at-home entertainment Exclusive or premium offers and access to high-end

news, recommendations and access to face-value and desirable retailers, products and events, with

(or better) tickets with online bookings through the anline redeemable offers and event bookings through

Ten Digital Platform. the Ten Digital Platform.

Strategy Strategy

* Expand partnerships with ticketing platforms, providers * Secure premium offers, discounts and benefits with
and promoters 1o secure access, pre-sale, offers and high-end brands backed by members’ higher than
face-value tickets to the most sought-after events, usual spending habits,

* Entertainment newsletters allow members to discover * Organise member-only in-person and virtual events in
entertainment and events to which they have partnership with premium retailers, offering a unigue
advance, exclusive or discounted access. opportunity to all.

¢ Personalised, pre-sale notifications allow members * |lze personalised email marketing to promote relevant
to secure tickets to their favourts events with our offers to members, with editoral guides, offers or event.

Lifestyle Managers or by booking directly on the

i i * Allow members to search, browse and redeem
entertainment module of the Ten Digital Platform. Wi c W i

available discounts on the offers and events maodule
« Source at-home entertainment and produce guides of the Ten Digital Platform.
o available online and at-home entertainment,

Market size Market size

$2.0tN o $0.3tN o
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Strategy in Action

A STRATEGY FOR GROWTH

Our strategy focuses on three key areas; investing into our proprietary technology and content; building
a stronger member proposition and greater member engagement; and securing and growing investment
from new and existing corporate clients by leveraging our market-leading service proposition.

iﬁ:ﬁl Investment into technology and content

Investment into technology and content improves efficiency, which drives
profitability, margin and a strong member proposition. This, in turn, delivers
value to our corporate clients and provides differentiation for the Group. ~

Our aim

W aim 1o use technalogy and content 1o improve our membears’
expariance, improve our service afficiency and deliver differentiation
and commercial impact for cur corporate clients.

Progress in the year

M the year, we have invested £12,.2m (2019: £12.2m) in technology
and content. We balieve thal maintaining high levels of imsestment
nto technology 1S key 10 our fulure success,

W have continued to roll-out the Ten Digital Platform to corporate
clients and our privata meambership, s now live with 22 client
prands globalky, supporting content in over 13 languagses and
transactions in over 35 currencias.

The dining, travel and entartainment and offers & beneflits modules
of the Ten Digital Platform now support improved editonal content
presanting transaction services. For example, members can now
search and browse over 10,000 (2012: ¢.2,000) curated reviews

of the world’s top restaurants and then request a reservation, with
over 70% of them offering priority access (and often benefits too)
to our members.

We have also improved the ways in which we engage with our
members through targeted, relevant and personalised communication
strategies. This year we increased the number of proactive emails
sent o members globally whilst maintaining a high open and
click-to-open rate

Looking ahead

We have also continued our improvemeants of the TenhMalD
technology usaed by our Lifestyle Managers to service reservalions,
delivering operational efficiencies. This includes a fourfold increase
in fully automated requests in the year. This is covered in more
detail on page 16

We ratained our PCI DSS Level 1 accreditation and S0C Type 2
certification during the vear. These require regular, in depth audits
of cur payment and data procedures as well as our underlying
technology: providing comfort to our corporate clients arcund our
sacurity measures and compliance,

In=piration, ©

We aexpect to continue to invest in our technology and content as we continue 1o see the ongoing benefits on the efficiency,

cash generation and profitability of the business
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if_.E_"']I Build a stronger member proposition and member engagement

A strong member proposition with multichannel, superior access, bengfits

and discounts is highly valued by our members, which drives customer
engagement and outcomes for our corporate clients.

Our aim
Al the baginning of the year, we aimead [0 improve our memibss

engagemaeant rates, by developing our expert Lifestyle Managers,
improving technology and systems, our supplier partnerships base,
pre-prepared content, faster response times and focusing on
retaining a service culiure

COVID-12 accelerated the expansion of our service offering,
supplier partnerships and online content, to best serve the
changing needs of our members

Progress in the year
The improvements to technology and content described have
Improvad service speed and efficiancies in the year.

Cuer member proposition has also been strengthened by
key developments with supplier partnars in the dining, travel,
antartainment and premium brand consumer markeats.

Detail of which are set out on pages 20 and 21.

Wi responded quickly to our mambears’ changing nesds as a result
of COVID-19, including the trends towards home improvement,
staycations, at-home entertainment and cleaning services, by
developing tailored services, as set out on pages 18 and 19.

Az a result of the member proposition, we hawve, again, enjoyead
record year-on-year Net Promoter Scores (NPS), cur primary
measure of service levels and member satisfaction.

Wi alzo measure service quality against our own internal quality
assurance standards and use a basket of other measures to build an

Looking ahead

We will continue to support our members through the effects of COVID-19, whereyve

LY s
DA

in-clepth understanding of the drivers of member satisfaction. These
include response times, tone of voice, the level of perscnalisation on a
request and the relevant success criteria on different types of requeast.

In the first half of the yvear, the number of unigus users of the sandce
increased by 14% compared with the same period in the pravious
vear. In the second half of the year, the number of unique users of
the service increased by 18% compared with the same period in

the presvious vear, despite the effects of COWID-19 on dining, travel

We have also seen a 6% increase in repeat usage by members,
demonstrating engagemeant and satisfaction with the service

4

Client retention rates pa (%)

Low users
{1-10 uses pa)

Mon users High users

[11+ uses pa)
L4

Usza of Ten's Services

hey may e and are on hand to provide trusted

advice and book travel, dining and live entertainment as and when the opportunities anse
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Strategy in Action continued

él Secure and grow corporate client investment

The Group secures continued mandates from its existing clients and wins —
new contracts by delivering and demonstrating the Return on Investment
(Rol) as a customer retention, engagement and acquisition tool. —

Our aim

‘Wa aim to grow existing confracts and win new contracts by Mew contract wins and the growth of existing clients have both
demonstrating the value that we add to their commercial metrics - slowed due to the effects of COVID-12 on the wider economic and
notabhy cur positive impact on retention, value and acquisiticn of hospitality environment, as target clients pacse to reflect on the
their target customers respective impacts on their business and await market certainty

The Group has historically partnered with blue-chip financial services  However, our continued investment in technology and content

and have aimed to further progress in this sector as well as expanding  during the year has allowed us to maintain a strong sales pipeline

nto other corporate markets remain differentiated from our competitors and develop our

. proven ability to help clients engage, retain and acguire their

Progress in the year mesat valuable customars. .

Although the rate of growth in new contract wins has slowed this

year, the Group has secured some strategic new contract wins, We have als worked with corporate clients to target improvements

ncluding with Westpac in Australiz, which launched with the in their customer advooacy, assets under managemant [AUN) and

Ten Digital Flatform in September 2020, spend on related payment cards through customisation of the
sarvice, Ten Digital Platform and member communications.

contract extensions and significant expansions of contracts with Feedback from many corporata clients is thatl they believe the
irmpact from COVID-19 will create additional retention risks and
acquisition opportunities with respect to their most valuable
customers. This supports our justification for, and our corporate
clients’ continuad imvastment in, cur services.

some of our existing corporate chents. We have not lost any clients
to competitars in the yvear.

Despite the challenges, the Group achieved a 1.6% increase in
Met Revenue from corporate clients during the year and we retained

m all of our Material Contracts in the yvear.

The Group continues to target and ba in dizcussions with potentia
clients in other vertical markats.

Engage Your Valuakble Custo

o e B e

Ten has a small private membership basa. Historically private
meamberzhip has not bean a focus for the Group. In 2020, with a
strengthened member proposition, we introduced a new digital first
private membership package, focused initizlly on the UK as the
target market through one affiiate marketing partner. We will
prepare for broader marketing plans to relaunch our private
membership proposition,

Looking ahead

Wiz will continue to engage with our strong pipeline of new business in established and new vertical markets and believe the Group is wall
positionad to secure new mandates as economic certainty returns in each of the regions, Our strong technology and product teams are
ready to launch the Ten Digital Platform with new clients in all regions

We will continue to work with existing clients to demonstrate the value of our service proposition and target their key metrics to develop
their mandates,
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Key Performmance Indicators

MEASURING OUR GROWTH

The Group monitors its performance using a number of financial performance indicators
which are agreed at Board meetings and monitored at operational and Board level.

This year, the Medium, Large and Extra Large contract KPIs have been combined into
one Material Contracts™ KPI. Cash has been included as a new KPI because we measure
the Group's performance towards its objective of becoming cash generative.

Met Revenue Met Revenue growth Adjusted EBITDA Margin

o i
S0

f442m (5%  10.8%

3

0
=] -
- =2
(5]
[ |
- -
17 18 20 17 18 19 20 17 18 19 20
B Corporate W Pre-IFRS 16
B Supplier W Post-IFRS 16
Material Contracts Cash
Number

o3 £11.0m

L =2
& ] =
17 18 19 18

20 19 20H1 20H2

14 Ten categorises its corporate client confracts basad on the annualsed value paid, or expectad 10 b2 paid, by the corporate clent for the provision of concienge and related services
by Ten as: Small conracts (below BD.25m); Mediom conracts (betwean B0L25m and E2m); Large confracts [over E2rm); and Exira Large conlracts (over E5mp. This does noed include
the revenue generated fram suppliers threugh the provision of concierge serdces. Meadium, Large and Extra Large contracts are collectively Ten's *Matarial Contracts”.
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Financial Review

Alan Donald

Despite the challenging trading conditions in the second half of
the year due to the COVID-19 pandemic, our Net Revenue was
only 3.5% down on prior year, Combining this with continued
efficiencias in our business model, as well as appropriate cost
actions taken to congerve cash, we achieved an Adjusted
EBITDA profit for the first time since IPO in 2017 and maintainad
a strong balance sheet position at the year end.

2020 2018
£m &m
Revarus 46.4 491
Net Revenue 44.2 458
Oparating expenses and
Cither Income (39.4) (49.1)
Adjusted EBITDA 4.8 13.3)
Adjusted EBITDA % 10.8% [7.2%)
Depreciation (4.4) .0
Amortisation (3.4) 3.0)
Share-based payments
& exceptional items (1.9) (0.5)
Operating loss before interest
and tax (4.9) (7.8)
Met finance (expensa)income (1.0) Es]
Loss before taxation (5.9) 7.3
Taxation {1.0) 1.0
Loss for the year (6.9) 8.3
Net cash at 31 August 10.0 12.3

OUR ROBUST BUSINESS
MODEL REMAINS
RELEVANT THROUGH
THIS PANDEMIC CRISIS

Chief Financial Officer

Adjusted EBITDA

Whilst Adjusted EBITDA is ot a statutory measure, the Board
helieves it is necessary to include this as an additional metric as

it is ore of the main measures of performance used by the Board,
It reflects the underlying profitability of our business operations,
excluding amortisation of invastment in platform infrastructures,
exceptional costs and share-based payment expanseas.

Implementation of IFRS 16 “Leases”

accuunting standard

We implemented IFRS 16 “Leases” accounting standard in
this accounting period. The transition method used was the
Maodified Retrospective method therefore comparatives have
not been restated. Adjusted EBITDA as reported was £4.8m
in the year, which includes a credit of £3.2m in respect of the
implementation of IFRS 16. The fallowing table provides a
breakdown of Adjusted EBITDA pre and post-implementation
of IFRS 16 for the Group and by region,

Group EMES  Americas APAC
Reported Adjusted
EBITDA post-IFRS 16 48 8.2 3.9 0.4
IFRS 16 adjustment 3.9 1.2) (1.9 0.7}
Adjusted EBITDA
(pre-IFRS 16) 0.9 7.0 (5.8) {0.3)

As comparatives have not been restated, regional year on year
comparsons below uss Adjustad EBITDA pre-IFRS 16.
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Met Revenue

C44.2m £4.8m

(2019: £45.8m) (2019: £(3.3)m)

Adjusted EBITDA



Revenue and Net Revenue

STRATEGIC

REPORT

Net Revenue' for the twelve months fo 31 August 2020 was £44.2m, down 3.5% compared to the prior year, Revenue for the
twelve months to 31 August 2020 was £48.4m, down 5.5% on the twebve months to 31 August 2019, Net Revenue, which excludes
the direct cost of sales relating to member transactions managed by the Group, is Ten's preferred measure of cperating revenus
as it excludes the cost of member transactions where we are the principal service provider (L. cost of airling tickets sold under

the Group's ATOL licences).

The reduction in Met Revenue of 3.5% was principally due to the COVID-18 pandemic which started to impact our business from
February 2020 onwards. The biggest impact to our Net Revenue has been the reduction in supplier commissions principally due
to the reduction in international travel across the world. The following table sets out a comparison betwesn H1 and H2 of this
financial year, compared to prior year, of our supplier commissions as a percentage of Met Revenue,

2020 H1 2020 H2 2020 FY amaHl 2018 H2 208 Fy
(unaudited) (unaudited) faudited) |unaudited) {unaudited) adited)
Percentage of Net Revenue 10.7% 3.4% T-4% 11.7% 12.3% 12.0%

Owr Corporate Revenue (paid by our corporate clients to service their customers) increased year on year by 1.6% as we adjusted
our offering to corparate clients and members to mest their changing requiremeants during the pandemic crisis.

Contract analysis

The following tables set out an analysis of our contracts by size
and by region. We have analysad only our Material Contracts.
Mote, the contract size is based on the annualised value paid or
expeactaed to be paid by the corporate client for the provision of
concierge and related services by Ten. This does not include
the revenus generated from suppliers through the provision of
these conciarge services.

Regional analysis

While there is a clear overlap between the geographic location
of our clients and their members’ requasts, mambers use our
concierge services across all the regions. Net revenue by
ragion reflacts our sarvicing location rather than the location of
our corporate clients. This allows us to track the etficiency and
profitability of our operations around the world, and is therefore
presented on this basis.

Contracls by size 2020 20149 Changi
Extra Large 3 2 +1
Large 6 5 +1
Medium 14 17 -3

23 24 1
Caontrect by reglon 2020 20149 Change
EMEA 8 8 -
Americas 10 1 -1
APAC 4 4 —
Global 1 1 —

23 24 -1

At the start of the financial year a new Large contract was
launchad and in January 2020, we expanded a contract in the
Americas to become an Extra Large contract. In addition, we
consalidated two Medium contracts into existing Material
Contracts, with no contract losses.

Since the year end an additional multiple year contract has
bean signed in APAC, We expact that this contract will grow
to a Medium contract within 12 months of launch.

2020 20149
Mit Raverug Em £m % change
EMEA 22.0 20.5 T
Americas 13.8 15.8 (13)%
APAC 8.5 8.5 1%
44.2 458 ([3.59)%

EMEA Met Revenue increased by 7% with growth from our
existing clients as well as the impact of the new Large contract
which launched at the start of the year being partially offset by
a significant reduction in supplier commissions in H2 due to
the pandemic.

In the Americas, MNet Revenue reduced by 13% primariby
due to the impact of the pandemic on both concierge revenue
and supplier commissions in the region partly offset by the
axpansion of a contract to Extra Large in January,

In APAC, Met Revenue reduced by 11% principally due to the
pandemic and the annualised impact of a Large contract |ost
in the last quarter of the prior year partly offset by growth from
existing clients during the year.

15 Mat Revanue excludas tha direct cost of salas ralating to certain membar transactions managed by the Group,
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Financial Review continued

Gperating expenses and other income

Oparating expenses and ather incomea reduced by £9.8m to
£39.4m (2019 £49.1m). As already stated, on the implementation
of IFRS 16 the transition method used was the Modified
Retraspective method. Therefore, 2019 comparatives have not
been restated. The impact of IFBS 16 implementation in 2020
was to reclassify £3.9m of lease costs to depraciation and
interest. Tharefore, the underlying operating expenses of the
business on a like-for-like basis compared to prior year were
£42.9m, a reduction of £5.9m. The majority of this reduction
was due to cost savings in the second half of the yvear in
response (o lower revenue as a rasult of the pandemic.

These cost reduction actions included, but were not limited to;
* successiul renagaotiation with suppliers and landlords;

* 2 raview of projects to focus on the most stratagic core
investments (including development of our cora technology
platform, where we continue to invest);

* g freere on employes bonuses and salary increases as well
as some redundancies,

« voluntary salary sacrifice scheme in exchange for share
options; and

* Usa of various countries governmeant support schemeas
[e.g. Furlough, Kurzarbeit),

Average headcount in the year has increased to 970 (2019: 837),
primarily due to additional resourcing for the expansion of a
contract to an Extra Large contract in the Americas during the
first hall of the vear. However, aur working full time equivalent
IFTE) employees have decreased due the use of Furough and
Kurzarbeit across various countries, accounted for in compliance
with respective rules and regulations with no ongoing liatiities,
as well as redundancies in the second half of the year, We
finished the year with fewer FTE than the end of prior year.

All Group property leases are short to medium-term or have
appropriate break clauses incorporated, allowing flexibility
when assessing space requirements across the world,
especially in the curment working ervironment.,

Regional Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA is after expenseas, other than depracation
£4.4m (2012: ©1.0m), amortisation £2.4m (2019: £3.0m),
share-based payment and exceptional items expenses £1.9m
[2019: £0.5m). On this basis, Adjusted EBITDA was £4.8m
[pre-IFRS 16: £0.9m; 2012: pre-IFRS 16 loss £(3.3)m).

Adjusted EBITDA pre-IFRS16 increased to a profit of £0.9m
from a loss of ©3.3m in 2019, The aoverall improvement has
been driven by continued operational efficiencies together with
cost savings as described above in the second half of the year,
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After allocating the costs of central IT infrastructure, software
development, property, senior management and other central
costs, the Adjusted EBITDA pre-IFRS 16 for each region is set
ot below:

2020 2018
Adjusted EBITDA pre-IFRS 16 £m £m
EMEA, 7.0 23
Americas (5.8) i4.3)
APAC {0.3) 1.3
Total 0.9 3.3
Adjusted EBITDA pre-IFRS 16% 20% (7.2%

EMEA

Adjusted EBITDA pre-IFRS 16 margin in EMEA, defined as
Adjusted EBITDA pre-IFRS 16 as a percentage of Net Revenue,
has increased to 32% from 11% in the prior vear, Continued
opearational efficiencies in the region and cost saving actions
offset by lower supplier revenue has deliverad this significant
improverment in margin.

Americas

The Americas region Adjustad EBITDA loss pre-IFRS 16 has
increased to ©5.8)m (2019: £4.2)m). This decline is, in part,
because of a reduction in Net Revenue due to the pandemic
together with one off set up costs (unconnected to acquiring or
fulfilling the contract) on the expansion of an existing contract
e an Extra Large contract. This decline was partly mitigated by
improved operational efficiencies in the period as the region
maturas as well as cost reduction in the second hall of the year,

APAC

The: APAC region Adjusted EBITDA pre-IFARS 16 loss has
improved in the year by £1.0m to a loss of £0.3m. The improved
parformance has also been driven by operational efficiencies
as well as cost saving measuras in the second hall of the year.

Amortisation

Amortisation costs, relating to the internal platform (TentbAID)
and the customer-facing platforms, were £3.4m in 2020
(2012 £3.0m) reflecting continued investment in technology
to drive improverments in service levels, efficiency and
competitive advantage.

MNet finance (expense)/income

Met finance expanse in the year was £1.0m (2019: income of
C0.Am); the expensea of £1.0m included IFRS 16 lease interast
expense as well as foreign exchange losses on the translation
of inter-company balances in the year,
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Share-based payments and exceptional items expense

The share-based payments and exceptional items expense in the yvear was £1.9m (2019: £0.5m). Of this, £1.5m (2019: £0.5m)
refated to share based payments expense reflecting share grants made under management incentive plans established after listing on
AlM and also two salary sacrifice share option schemes implemented during the year (see note 27). Tha exceptional items
expense of £0.4m (2019 E0.0m) was an impairment expense following a review of a database previously capitalised were a
specific portion of this was less likely to generate future economic benefits due to the fall out of the COVID-12 pandemic.

Loss before tax
The loss before tax improved to £(5.9)m from £{7.3)m in 2019,

Taxation

The taxation expense for the year was ©1.0m (2019: £1.0m) which related to tax liabiities and payments due in profitable overseas
antities. Approximataly £0.3m related to the crystallisation of non-UK legacy taxation positions in the currant year,

Loss per share

The total comprehensive loss for the year was D6.9m [2019: L8.3)m), resulting in a loss per share (excluding treasury shares)
of 8.6p (2019; loss per share of 10.3p). The Board does not recommeand the payment of a dividend.

Group cash flow

2020 2019
Em £m
Loss before tax (5.9) 7.3
Met finance expensea 0.5 —
Working capital changeas 2.9 0.7
Mon-cash items (depreciation and amortisation, share-based payrmeants and exceptional items expensas) 9.7 4.5
Operating cash flow 7.2 2.1)
Capital expenditura (0.2) (1.2)
Irvestment in intangibles {5.3) 4.3)
Taxation (0.2) (0.5
Cash inflow/{outflow) 1.5 i8.1)
Cash flows from financing activities
Purchase of treasury shares - (0.1
Loan recaipts 1.0 —
Repayment of leases and net interest (3.6) 0.1)
Net cash used by financing activities (2.6) 0.2)
Fareign currency movements (0.3) -
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1.4) 8.3
Cash and cash equivalents 1.0 12.3

Cash generated by operations was £7.2m (2019: cash used £2.1m). The cash generated in the year has bean achieved by continuing
operational efficiencies across the business, cost savings primarily in H2 and a reduction in working capital, predominately driven
by lower revenue in the second half of the year. In addition, non-cash items in the year increasad versus prior year reflecting
implementation of IFRS 16 (increasing depreciation and finance expenses), an incraase in share-based payment expansas due o
implementation of two salary sacrifice for share options schemes and exceptional iterm expenses (impairmeant write down). The
axpenditurg that was capitalised on IT infrastructure, the Ten Digital Platform and TentAID totalled £5.5m as we continue to invest

in our technology. Met cash used by financing activities is primarily due to lease payments and interest of £3.6m again reflecting
implementation of IFRS 16 offset by long-term loan recaipts of £1m. This has lad to an overall cash decrease of £1.4m significantly
lower than prior year of £8.3m. Note, cash decreasad in H1 by £2.7m (unaudited) but improved in H2 due to operational net cash
inflow of £1.4m (unaudited) including the loan receipts of £1.0m.

Ten Lifestyle Group Plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2020 29



STRATEGIC REPORT

Financial Review continued

Group balance sheet

2020 2018
£m Em
Intangible assets 10.5 8.0
Property, plant and equipment 11 18
Right of Use assets 5.1 —
Cash 11.0 12.3
Other current assets 7.0 1.1
Lease liabilities (3.3) -
Other current liabilities (12.5) {13.3)
Long-term borrowings (1.0) N
Mon-current lease liabilities (2.7) —
Net assets 15.2 208
Share capital/share premium 28.6 28.6
Reserves {13.4) (7.7)
Total equity 15.2 209

Met assets were £15.2m (2019 £20.2m). The reduction in the year is due to reductions in trade and other receivables and a
reduction in cash. Right-of-use Assets and lease liabilities [current and non-current] arose as a result of the implementation of
IFRS 16, The Group's long-term borrowings of £1.0m consists of a loan from the US government's Small Business Administration
[SBA) assisting businesses to keep their workforce employed during the COVID-19 pandemic crisis,

Going concern

Although the impact of COVID-19 on Ten has not been as marked as many other arganisations, the full effect on the business still
warrants focus and real time management. Net Revenue since the year-end has been in line with our planned expectations as the
COVIDA9 pandermic continues. Itis not vet clear whan global economic activity in travel and haspitality will recover, therefore we
must prepara the business for varying levels of sales decline. To that end, we have modelled the effects of differing levels of sales
decling along with the measures we can take to ensure that the Group remains within its available working capital, and we have
prepared cash flow forecasts for a period in excess of 12 months.

We anticipate revenue mesting budget over FY21 but recognise that there is a risk that the Group will be impacted by reductions
ir the number of customers' engagements and by prospective corporate customers delaying launches, If revenue is not in line
with cash flow forecasts, the Directors have identified cost savings associated with the reduction in revenue and can identify
furthier cost savings if necessary,

The Directors have no reason to believe that customer revenue and receipts will declhing to the point that the Group no longer has
sufficient resources to fund its operations. However, in the unlikely event that this should occur, the Group will have to manage its
working capital positions, as well as making significant reductions in its fixed cost expenses.

Alan Donald
Chief Financial Officer
23 November 2020
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The Board considers the risks sat out below 10 be the principal risks 10 the Group's business. The risks facing the Group are monitored
and mitigated using a risk management and intarmal control frarmework, as further described on page 40 of the Corporate Governance
Staterment and page 44 of the Audit and Risk Cormmittes Repart.

The Board recognises that the nature and scope of risks can change and there may be other risks 1o which the Group is exposed s0
the list is not intendad to be exhaustive

Risk and potential impacts

MACROECONOMIC/MARKET

Mitigation

Change in 2020
and more information

Global or A global or regional pandemic, as saan Flendble member business modal and The Group’s response to
ragional with COVID-19, disrupts travel, dining adaptable member propositions allows Ten o the unforeseen pandemic
ndemi and live entertainment; key markets for remain relevant to members’ changing needs. has resulted in many
pandemic Ten, resulting in a potential reduction in - ) service and operational
) - Proven capability for remote working for most ) o
member requests and revenue changes to help mitigate
roles for extended perods. ) o -
. . the impacts of potential
Operational challenges presented by a ) — )
. C. ) Business Continuity Management future outbreaks,
requirement for staff to work from home )
o o o processes have been proven to cperate ) S .
and absenteeism from illness or caring - . ) L Read more information
) ) effectively, including office improvements ) .
for dependerts. to enable the safe return of our people about how we responded
Wider ecanomic effects may affect client . B ' 1o COVID-19 in each region
budaets in the rTl-;:“diL'n o IJnr _1;“:”_ Short leases provide ability to flax offices on pages 8 and 9 and
9 d ' in the medium term. hiovw we adapted our
meambear proposition on
pages 18 and 19.
Competitor The Group operates in a highly The Directors believe that the Ten Digital Platform | Mo change.
g competitive market with the potential for | is the market-leading omnichannel concierge
risk i P = - g Read about how our

OPERATIONAL

armerging new technologies and servics
inmovations.

Ihe Group is also subject to competitne
prcing madels which have the potential
1o adversshy affect the Group's business,
opearations and financial condition,

platform with end-to-end transachon capability,
It has added to the Group's competitive
advantage, supporting several compeatiive
tender wins during the period. The Group wil
continue to invest in its propristary technology
and key third-party supplier relaticnships to
maintain this competitive advantage.

Price pressures can result in downward
pressure on gross marging and the rizk that the
Group's propasiticns are not considered to
represent value for money. The Group therefore
monitors market prices on an ongaing basis,

strategies strengthen our
competitive advantage
on pages 22 to 24,

K.ary Leoss of key personnel could impact the Business plans and initiatives are documented | Increased as a result of
parsonnal Group's ability to execute its strategic and prepared with cross-functional input to the extended challenges
plans. Reduced employee satisfaction as | reduce reliance on single individuals, posed by COVID-19 on the
and employee £ . o N siness and our
a result of pay freezes, changed working : business and our people,
satisfaction e e s The Group regulary monitors employee
conditions, team changes and lack o . . . .
e T i, satisfaction through surveys and implements Read more about
rnativation impacts the Group's ) R = : - .
productivity and stakeholder actions to address concerns and dissatisfaction. | how the team adapted
engagemeant. Financial measures érgc;gerﬂlr.-lzn: .d':i"-'li B Ml lear anc ﬁ??:iﬁ?biﬂr? gfl.r;l?,”
praciuda the usa of cash incentives. HH BT U:D"T as ‘;Hg:hj:;m; .
Thera is a risk of litigation as a result of The Remuneration Committes aims to ensure ages '
redundancies arnsing from the effects of | rewards are commensurate with performance
COVID-12 on the Group. and aid retention,
Loss of kEjF The loss or downsizing of one or more The Group's client sarvices team works with Incraased as a result of
clients Medium, Large or Extra Large contracts, | key client contacts on an almost daily basis and | client’s potentially changing

fowr any reason, without the ability to
mitigate tha loss by entering into a similar
contract, would impact the cash generation
and revenue growth expected to deliver
the Group's strategic plan

delvers data-driven reporting to Bustrate the return
on the client's investmeant into Ten's services.

Relationships are monitcred and reinforced
through pericdic engagemeant with the client's
leadership teams. Most corporate contracts
are stable or growing and are renewed on

a multi-year basis, with contract minimums

in place,

their strategies due to the
economic effects of
COVID-15.

Read more about our client
acquisition and contract
growth strategies as wel

as details of cur contract
growth on page 24
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Risk Management continued

Risk and potential impacts

Mitigation

Change in 2020
and more information

International | The Group now operates from 22 offices | Since opening its first overseas office in 2006, | Reduced due to no new
expansinn globally but has not opened any new Ten has developed a robust commercial and global offices being
and impact offices in the year, compliance process for managing overseas opeanad in the year,
E R officas, The business hires experienced .
of Brexit {Jzeralltng ACross igjult;pt:-lle Jurlla'ltlctu:uns persoringl, with clear reporting lines and support Detaj:s;:-flthﬁilclcahrnns of
E'L‘f"en -:-::u_rnFm.llarc _au rE;gu ahﬂry. ht from experienced senior management, and Durguu?.tcl ':dEE e Innh |
N '%”ge'f" “ '.'”e o i E'I"'.g op the g angages axparts to provide technical advice purwebsie an CLr giy “
tearms, dellver tallored services or comply in overseas markets. The Group continues to markets are detailed on
wﬂh_lrucrﬁl :_ﬁgarl_l ;Eﬁuu::;gr?ral?n[aﬂ?kgl avaluate the suitability of its panel of advisers pages 20 and 21
ﬁﬁl‘flnzmgac:;v;rs;mnsg gu{;nce?; o thés engaged locally to navigate national regulatory
G::;urup's arowh ﬂtratcgyia wll a5 requirerments alongside internal specialists
regulatory consequences., Directors currently deem the effects of the UK's
Brexit and tha potential ‘ne dear withdrawal process from the EL will not have a
scEnario continues to create significant impact on the Company's opserations
uncertainties within relevant market due to the nature of its operations and that a
’ proportion of the business is outside the LK
and EL). Howevar, the Board and Senior
Leadarship Team ane constantly monitarning
the situation.
Suppliar The Group engages suppliers to support | The Group maintaing robust commercial and Mo change.
. ) | . . . ina: \ations with all criti . . .
rela‘tlunshlps central business services, including contractuzl relaticns with all critical suppliers Ditails of our service-

TECHNOLOGY

office space; T infrastructure; technology
platforms,; payment services; and
telephony, as well as a wide range of
third-party suppliers of goods andfor
sarvices, including providers of: fravel;
tickets; dining; and retail.

Linderperforming suppliers without

the availability of suitable replacemeants
miay result in loss of funcionality and
sanvice levels.

and the business is clear on which altemative
suppliers there are in the market should a
change be required, The Group's tested
recovery protocol also plans for the loss of key
suppliers on the Group's infrastructurs,

Initel and regular due diligence chacks are
conducted on key suppliers 10 test their
creditworthiness as well as contract and
regulatory compliance.

relatad-revanue and
supplier relaticnship
strategy are set out on
pages 11, 18 and 19,

Technological
under-
performance,
failure or
interruption

Material underperformancs of the Ten
Digital Platform, TenhAID or the Group's
telephony infrastructure could result in
cantractual risk, delayed launches and
member dissatisfaction.

Depanding on the cause and/or sevarity
of the incident, the Group's reputation
and ability to win new business may

be harmead.

The Group continues fo make significant
investments into technology upgrades of the
Group's technology hardware and cloud-based
infrastructure, including the Ten Digital Platform
and TenMAID. The Group's digital roedmap
plans for the development of innovative features
while maintaining a resilient architecture

Fobust back-up and recovery processes and
procedures are in place to minimise any
disruption to services,

No change.

Find out more about our
Digital Transformation
on pages 16 and 17,

Cyber
security
and service
disruptions

Delvering the Group's service
proposition leverages significant online
technology, exposing the business to g
variety of cyber threats including denial
of service attacks, hacking or mahware
that may result in comaromisea of the
availability, confidentiality or intagrity of
member data.

A failure to manage and mitigate
cyber-related incidents affecting
infrastructure and websites may lead to
unzvailability of services and access to
or compromise of data, which could
have reputational, financial and
regulatory conssquences, Loss of
sacurity certifications would resull in
contractual risk,

The Group continues to imest in what the
Board believes to be "best-in-class™ security
software and processes. The Group is Payment
Card Industry Data Security Standard Level 1
(PCI DES) certified, During the period, the
Group has also bean succeassiully certified as
S0C Type 2 compliant.

PCIDSS and S0C Type 2 audils are conductad
by independent external auditors each year and
augment the other chacks that are run by the
Group and by our other corporate clients.

Increased by implementing
homeworking as a result of
COVID-19, Additional
securty meaasures have
been implementad and we
have retained PCI DSS
compliance.

Find out mare about our
Digital Transformation
on pages 16 and 17.
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Section 172 Statement

Recent legislation requires that Directors include a separate statement in the annual report that
explains how they have had regard to wider stakeholder needs when performing their duty under
Section 172(1) of the Companies Act 2006.

Under Section 172(1) of the Companies Act 2006, the Directors of a company have a duty to promote the success of the company
for the benefit of its members as a whole and in doing so have regard [amongst other matters) to;

a) the likely consequences of any decision in the long term;

o) the interests of the company’s employesas;

) the need to foster the company’s business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

d) the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment;

a) the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and

i the need to act faidy as between mambers of the company.,

Guidance recommends that in connection with its statement, the Board describe in general terms how key stakeholders, as well
as issues relevant to key decisions, are identified, and also the processes for engaging with key stakeholders and understanding
those issues. It is the Board's view that these requirements are predominantly addressed in the corporate governance disclosures
we have made in the Directors' report, which are themssives more extensively discussed on the Company's website,

Guidance also recommends that more detailed description is limited to matters that are of strategic importance in arder to remain
meaningful and informative for shareholders.

Thea kay stakeholders considered as part of the dacision-making process weare Ten's shareholders, employees, corporate clients,
membars, suppliers and partners. The table balow summarisas the key decisions considerad by the Board During the vear ended
3 August 2020.
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STRATEGIC REPORT

Section 172 Statement continued

Key Board decisions

Considerations

In response to the impact of COVID-19 on the key stakeholders of the business,

the Board approved the following initiatives:

Business transitioned 10 horme and flexible working,

The welfare, haalth and safety of collsagues, maintaining PCI 0SS and S0C Typs 2
securily standards, corporate client requirements and complying with changing kocal
lockdown requiraments.,

Offer additional support for members affected by the
digruption to global travel caused COVID-19, including
repatriation and the cash for voucher refunds

The need to prioritise the safety of our members and the expectations of cur corporate
clients that Ten will go above and beyond to assist members' needs. Leveraged
supplier relationships 1o secure refunds and paid refunds where Ten could use
vouchers issuad by airlines,

In response to the impact of COVID-19 on the business, the Board regularly reviewed

and approved a range of cost saving and cash management proposals:

A numitsr of the team wera mads redundant,
furoughed or agreed fo reduced hours, with support
from government funded coronavirus initiatives,
whera availabla.

Employes morale and mativation as a result of being inolved in redundancy

or furloughing processes, potential impact on the continued high levels of member
sarvices and corporate client relations, balanced against the short and long-term
interest of the Group, its shareholders and other stakehclders. Improved and regular
employee communications implementad to manage moral and expectations.

mplementation of valuntary salary sacrifice in
exchange for share option scheme and a freeze on
emploves bonuses and salary increases.

The requirgmeant 1o achieve short and medium-term cost savings with the opportunity
10 engage emMployess on a voluntary basis 1o sacrifice salary for options in the Group

Renegotiation of supplier contracts and office leases,

Renegofiated contracts to reflect changed circumstances, delivering short and
long-term savings. Mamtained timely payment of suppliers to preserve suppler
relationships and support supplier stakeholders affectad by the pandemic,

Downsize certain regional offices in line with revised
requirements and flexible working capability.

The reduced need for large office spaces with increased home and flexible working,
with the need to save costs in the short and long-term and reducing the emvircnmental
impact of commuting. Maintaining member and corporate client service levels,

Farficipation in available government funded
corcnavirus initiatives across all regions, including a
£1m laan from a US govemnment-backed koan under
the Paycheck Protection Program {(PPP).

The Group participated in available government fundad coronavirus inifiatives,
alongside other cost saving measures, to pratect the short and long-term interests
of the Group and its stakeholdars.

The Board reviewed the Group's revised budget and forecasts and approved the following key operating

expenditure/investment decisions to support the ongoing success of the Group:

Continued investment into the technology platforms,
infrastructure and efficiencies

The Group’s need to maintain its competitve advantage by delivering a market-leading
digital platform for cur corporate clients with an improved member proposition from a
broader imeentory from supplier partrers, and improved efficiencies from increased
automation and self-service, wihich drives margins and profitability.

Content and eCRM stratagy.

Leveraging the automation of member services by invasting in content and eCRM
technology, with the support of our corporate clients and supplier partners, by scaling
production and distribution of content to drive efficiencies, maintain high MPS,
incregse use of the Ten Digital Platform and reach more members,

Mone of the key decisions considered by the Board in 2020 had a significant environmental impact and the Directors are satisfied
that decisions made by the Board promote the long-term interest of the Group for the banefit of its members as a whole.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Board of Directors

Bruce Weatherill joined Ten

a5 Mon-Executive Chairman

in Cctober 20717, bringing over

40 years' experience in the global
financial sarvices industry with
relevant leadership, financial
controd and commercial expertise
as well a5 proven history at

board level.

Lintil 2008, Bruce was a

partner at PwC in charge of a
number of Asset Management
and Wealth Management clients
as well as global leader of PwlC's
Private Banking and Wealth
Management practice.

Since lsaving PwC, Bruce set up
Waatherill Consulting and provides
consulting services to Wealth
Management Companies around
the waorld. Until 30 June 2019,
Bruce was a Non-Executive
Chiractor of Fidelity Holdings

(L) Limited and Chairman of

its Audit and Risk Committee.
He is Mon-Exacutive Director

of ComPesar Limited and The

All England Lawn Tennis Club
and a Committee member, Until
March 2020, he was Chairman
of JOX Conzsulting and remains a
non-gxacutive director and Chair
aof the Audit & Risk Committes,
He is Chairman of Clearyiew
Financial Media (Wealth Briefing),
the Wisdom Council and since
February 2020, Chairman of The
Wirnbledon Foundation, He has
previously served as Deputy
Chairman of the Chartered Institute
of Securities and Investments
Waalth Management Focus Group
and regularly chairs Wealth
Management conlerences,

Alex Cheatle co-founded the
business in 1908, Alex is
responsible for the Group
strateqy to become the most
trusted service in the world and
the related focus to always be
improving service levels,

Prior to founding Ten, Alex was
a marketing manager at Procter
& Gamble. Alex has a degree

in Philgzophy, Politics and
Econarmics from Oxford
University. Alex is based

in London,

The Chief Executive Officer is
responsible for the managament
of the Group's business and for
implarnanting the Group's strategy
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Andraw Long s responsible for key
client and account strategy, legal
and compliance, programme
management, global offers and
envents, global real estate and
capital projects, inchuding ne
development af the operational
and technology infrastructure,

Price to founding Ten, he ran a LUK
market-leading event production
and managemeant business.
Andresw hias been based in
Singapore with particular
leadership responsibilities

in APAC since 2012,

Alan Donald
CFO

Alan Donald joined Ten in June
2018, He has maoare than 30 years'
experience working in insurance,
healthcara, aviation, business
fravel and leisure sectors. Before
jining Ten, Alan was UK finance
director at Thomas Cook for @
months. Previous to this, Alan
was Finance Director of the
Travel Division of Saga Group
e, EMEA CFO at Carlson
Wagonlit Travel and CFO at

the Menzies Aviation part of

the John Menzies Group.

Alan also held senior finance
positions at Willis Corroon,
BLPA and Cigna Healthcare
Alan qualified as a Chartered
Accountant with Deloitte
Haskins & Sells.



Sarah Hombuckle joined Ten in
2001, Sarah is responsitle for the
client services strategy, leading
the team that develops long-term
partnarships with Ten's corporate
clients, Sarah has overssen

the launch of all of the Group's
Major corporate programmes

in EMEA, as well as many
programmeas globally.

Prior fo joining Ten, Sarah was a
sanior brand manager at Unilever
Bestfoods and Mars Confectionery
for several years, respongible for
launching new product lines and
developing ATL and BTL adhvartising
and marksting campaigns.,

Mon-

O~

Julan (Sules™) Panchod joined
Ter in October 2017, Jules is an
experienced technology and
miarketing services entrepreneur,
which includes serving as a
Maon-Exscutive Director of
Shkyscanner Limited, the travel
fare comparizon website, until ts
sale to C TRIP for over £1.4bnin
2016, Jules is Managing Director
of Mitro Digital Limited, an
ndependent digital agency.

sutive Director

His other ventures include
Mixxie Limited (a US-focused
advartising tech business),
Estimo Technaologies Limited

{a B2B Saa3 workflow solution),

Mitro Froperty Limited (a syndicate-
based property portfolio business)

and a number of other vanturas
n Fintech and Healthtech.

Jules was appointed as
Mon-Exscutive Directar in
October 2017, He has
relevant industrial experience
n technology and marketing
Seraces and 15 a proven
non-exacutive dirsctor,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Gillian Davies
1dent
Mon-Executive Director

Indepe

o®

Gilllian Davies is a Charlered
Accountant who gualified with
KPMG. Gillian has held a number
of =enior financial positions in both
listad and private aguity backed
intermational companies, including
Jeneca ple, Avecia Limited and
Georgia Pacific. More recenthy,
Gillian spent eleven yvears as
Group Finance Director of
FTSE-listed dimprint Group ple,
during which tirms dimprint Grougp
plc was extensively restructured
and delivered significant growth.

Mozt recently, Gillian was CFO
af Al listed, Harwood Weaalth
Management Group until its
sale to Private Equity and
subsequent delisting.

Gillian was appointed as
Mon-Executive Director in
October 2017, She brings
financial expertise as a
Chartered Accountant and has
substantial experience as a
Group Finance Director of a
FTSE-listed company.

@ Audit and Fisk Committesa
® MNomination Commitiea

® Remuneration Committes

. Chair

Gender

Male

Female

Board composition

B Mon-Executive Ghairman 1
B Exgcutive Directors 4
Mon-Exacutive Dirclors 2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Introduction from the Chairman

THE VALUE OF
ROBUST CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE

Bruce Weatherill
Chairman

The Directors recognise the value and importance of robust
corporate governance and are fully accountable to the Group's
stakeholders including shareholders, employess, corporats clients,
members, suppliers and partners as well as leading Group's
commitment to its environmental and social responsibilities.

As Chairman, | am responsible for leading the Board effectively
and oversesing the adoption, delivery and communication of the
Group's corporate governance modal, As such, | ensure that
the Board's agenda and culture is consistent with the Group's
ohjectives, strategy and business model, with regular reviews
of the Group's strategy and its overall implementation,

I this section of the repart, we set out how we have continued
o formulate and implermeant our approach to corporate governance
as well as details of the activities undertaken by the Board and
its Committeas during the year.

The Board believes that it complies with all of the principles of
the Cuoted Company Alliance’s (QCA) Corporate Governance
Code for Small and Mid-Size Quoted Companies ("QCA Code")
through its governance practices which ensure that the Group
has the right people, strategy and culture to deliver the Group's
strategies for success in the medium to long-term. This is
described in more detail on pages H1 and 42,

Bruce Weatherill
Chairman
23 November 2020
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Corporate Governance Statement

Board composition

The Board is responsible to the shareholders and sets the
Group's strategy for achieving long-term success. It is also
ultimataly responsible for the management, governance,
controls, risk management, direction and performance of
the Group.

Tha Board comprises two Mon-Executive Directors and an
independent Mon-Executive Chairman. The Mon-Executive
Diractors and the independent Non-Executive Chairman wera
all appointed shortly before the Group listed in Movember 2017,
The Board also has four Executive Directors, two of whom are
the co-founders of the Group,

The composition of the Board was unchanged during the year
and the Board is satisfied that the Board has the right blend of
skills and experiences to lead the Group. The independent
Mon-Executive Chairman and the two Non-Executive Directors
are considered independent of management and free of any
relationship that could materially interfere with the exercise of
their independent judgement. In accordance with the provisions
of the QCA Code, the Board is comprised of at least two
independent Man-Executive Directors.

Board operation

The Board is responsible for formulating, reviewing and
approving the Group's strategy, budgets and corporate actions,
The strategic report on pages 6 to 33 summarises the Board's
approach to promote lorg-term growth and value for sharsholders.

The operation of the Board is documented in a formal schedule
of matters reserved for its approval. To fulfil these duties, the
Group holds Board meetings at least eight times each financial
year and at other times as and when required. An annual
agenda plan and reports from meambers of the Senior
Leadership Team on key developments or proposals to be
approved ensures the Board is well informed at all timeas.

The Board has established three Committees: the Audit and Risk
Committes, the Remuneration Committes and the Nomination
Committee, each having written terms of reference, which are
available on the Group's website (www tenlifestylegroup.com/
investors). Reports by the Chairs of the three Committees are
reported separately on pages 43 and 44 for the Audit and Risk
Committes, pages 45 to 49 for the Remuneration Committes
and page 50 for the Momination Committes.

The Rermuneration Committes is comprised of two
independent Non-Executive Directors and the Audit and
Risk Committee and Nomination Committee are chaired
by indepandent Mon-Executive Directors,

The Exgcutive Directors are all emplayed full time by the Group,
except Sarah Hornbuckle, who works four and a half days”
a-waek for the Group, The independent Non-Executive
Chairman and the Non-Executive Directors have commitments
outside the Group. These are summarised in the Board
biographies on pages 36 and 37.

The independent Mon-Executive Chairman and the
Mon-Executive Directors give the necassary time to thoroughhy
fulfil their responsibilities to the Group, which normally invobes
a time commitment of two to three days per month.

ERNANCE

Board meetings

The Board haeld nine scheduled Board meetings during the
year, togather with an additional six meetings held to discuss
specific issues or matters of urgency relating to the impacts of
COVID-19 on the business. These additional meetings allowead
the Board 1o respond quickly to challenges and make prompt
decisions to implement measures to protect or support the
business. In addition to formal Board meetings, the Directors,
including the Mon-Executive Directors are in ragular, informal
communication to ensure all members of the Board are

fulky informed.

Directors are expected to attend all mestings of the Board,
and of the Committees on which they sit, and to devote
sufficient time to the Group's affairs to enable them to fulfil
their duties as Directors. In the event that Directors are
unable to attend a meeting, their comments on papers 1o be
considerad at the meeting will be discussad in advance with
the Chairman so that their contribution can be included in the
wider Board discussion,

The following table shows Directors” attendance at scheduled
Board and Committes meetings during the period:

Board Audit and Risk Remuneration  Momination
Scheduled
meetings 9 5 3 1
Bruce Weatherill g 5 M/A 1
Gilian Davies g 5 3 MAA
Jules Pancholi g9 M 3 1
Alex Cheatle g MAA MAA 1
Andresw Long 9 MAA Y M/A
Alan Donald g M4 M4 MAA
Sarah Hormnbuckle 8 MAA MAA MAA

Board effectiveness

The Board has undeartaken an evaluation of its effectivensass.
Input was obtained from every Board member an the fallowing
performance evaluation indicators:

* cloar purpose and strong leadership by the Chairman;
= palance of skills, experience and independence;
Diractors that work as a tearm;

+ understanding of the business and its stratagy;

* information and engagement with shareholders and other
stakeholders; and

* Board performance evaluation,

The Chairman has also spoken with each Director to discuss
Eoard and individual effectiveness during the pericd.

It was concluded that the Board operated effectively and that
each of the Directors’ respective skills complement each other
and enhance the overall operation of the Board. The Board
identified specific actions including increasing the frequency of
irvitations from the Board to mambers of the Senior Leadership
Team to deep dive into certain areas of the business.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Statement continued

Audit & Risk Committee
« 2 Non-Executive Directors
* Chaired by Gillian Davies

* Held 5 scheduled
mesatings in the year

* Report on pages 43 and 44

Board effectiveness continued

The Chairman did not consider that external advice ar a third-party
facilitator was needed to refresh the performance evaluation
process this vear but will consider again if this is needed next year,

Board development

The Directors receive regular updates in legal, regulatary and
govarnance matters by the Group's Nomad, the Company
Secretary, independent external auditor and other external
advisers to ensure the Directors’ awareness and the Board's
governance procasses are up to date, The Company Secretary
attends all Board meetings and has the responsibility of
advising the Board on corporate governance matters and
assisting with the: flow of information to and fram the Board.

Each Director keeps their relevant skills and knowledges up to
date through formal and informal methods including qualified
Continuing Professional Developrment (if applicable), memberships
of leadership communities and knowledge-basad networking.

Relations with shareholders

The Group maintaing communication with analysts and
institutional shareholdars through individual meetings with

the CED and CFO, particularly following publication of the
Group's interim and annual results. Private shareholders are
encouragad to attend the Annual General Meaeting at which the
Group's activities are considered and questions answerad,

In the year, shareholder meetings and investor events have
been conducted virtually, allowing shareholders and potential
irvestors to learm about the business and engage with
managament. including by asking questions, without the need
ta travel to an in-person event. Following good attendance and
positive feedback from shareholders, the Group plans to
continue with virtual meetings.

The Group's strategy and general information about the Group
is available on the Group’s website (wwwtenlifestylegroup.
com/fimnvestors), including investor videos presented by the
CED. The Mon-Executive Directors are available to discuss any
matter stakeholders might wish to raise, and the independent
Mon-Executive Chairman and Directors will attend mastings
with investors and analysts as required.
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Remuneration Committee
* 2 Non-Executive Directors
* Chaired by Jules Pancholi
* Held 3 scheduled

meeting in the year o
= Report on pages 45 to 49

Nomination Committee

* 2 Non-Executive Directors
+ 1 Executive Director

* Chaired by Bruce Weatherill

Held 1 scheduled
meeting in the year
* Report on page 50

Diversity, equity & inclusion (DE&I)

Following the events in the year and the Black Lives Matter
movemeant, the Senior Leadership Team, with support from
the Board, have developed an improved Diversity, Equity &
Inclusion {DE&I) program 1o ensure the Group can be even
mora decisive in our actions and create real change by leading
an active discussion across the whaole group that promaotes
shared understanding to highlight, challenge and oppose
discrimination and ensures equality of opportunity, A voluntary
emploves survay has allowed us to update our employes
demographic records to ensure a robust baseline for tracking
the results of the DE&I pragram.

Environment

The Board is ultimately responsible for how the Group performs
as a steward of the natural environment and is committed to
integrating environmental considerations in its decision making.
In accordance with its environmental policy, the Group has
adopted environmentally sound working practices to conserve
enargy, water and other resources, reducing waste including
the use of specialist recyclers and refurbishing IT equipment.
Energy and green building rating scores are considered whan
selecting office locations, The Group also makes use of onling
collaboration tools to reduce the need for regional meetings
and operates flaxible working practices whera possibla,
reducing the environmental impact of business travel and
commuting. The positive expearience of home working during
the COVID-19 pandemic suggests these practices will continue
at a higher level after the end of the pandemic than before.

The Group can also give our members the option to off-set
carbon when booking relevant travel as well as partnering

with low-emdronmeantal-impact supplier partners including;
sustainable restaurants, hotels and fair trade brands, and
promote their adoption by our members.

Risk management and internal controls

The Board has ultimate responsibility for the Group's risk
management and intamal controls. To ensure sufficient time
and attention is given to this function, it delegates the
responsibility of monitoring the Group's risk and contraol
management system framework 1o the Audit and Risk
Committes, The Board then determines the appropriatenass of
the internal controls upon the Committes’s recommendations.



The risk and control management system frameawork includes:

* close management of the day-to-day activities of the Group
by the Executive Directors and the Senior Leadership Team;

» regular reviews of its risk register;

a comprebensive annual budgeting process, which is approved
by the Board;

detailed maonthly reporting of performance against budget; and

central control over key areas such as capital expenditure
autharisation and banking facilities.

The Executives, and Senior Leadership Team are responsible
for ensuring that the risk and control management system
framework is implemented effectively within their respective
business areas, This includes ensuring an effective rigk culture
s in place, with risk management embeadded in the business,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board delegates its responsibility 1o identify, assess and
manage climate-related risk to the Audit & Hisk Committes
to ensure that more time is spent ensuring the Group is
aware of and, as far as possible, mitigating the Group's
arvironmental impact,

The Group continues to review its system of internal control to
ensure adherance to best practice, whilst also having regard to
its size and the resources available, The Board considers that
the introduction of an internal audit function is not appropriate
at this juncture but will keep this under review,

Annual General Meeting (AGM)

The Annual General Meeting of the Group will take place on

4 February 2021, Full details will be included in the Motice of
Meeting which will be published on our website in due course
[wwew. tenlifestylegroup.com/investors).

The QCA Corporate Governance Code
The Board has adopted the QCA Code. Set out below is how the Board currently complies with the key principles set out in the Code.

ey primciple

DELIVER GROWTH

Huwr wa complby

Mare information

1. Establish a strategy and The Board regularly reviews the Group's strategy and progress Read about the Group's
business model which against delivering its objectives at the Board and strategy meetings. business model, growth engine
promote long-term value Tha Board and its Committees held several additional meetings to and strateqy on pages 14 to 24
for sharsholders address urgent strategic challenges posed by the effects of COVID1S.  and how key risks are managed

by the business on pages 3
and 32

2. Seek to understand and Tha Group's CED and CFO regularly meet with imvastors, analysts More details of how the Group
meet shareholder needs and potential investors to understand how the Group's strategy and angages with its stakeholdars
and expectations the Board's decisions impact on and are received by investors, The i5 on pages 40 and 55 as well

Annual General Maeting provides an opportunity for all shareholders as details of our next AGM
to meet the Directors and raise any questions. Virtual meetings were  on page 41.
armangad with shareholders in the year to maintain communication.

3. Take into account wider The Board considers how Group's strategy and the Board's An averview of the key
stakeholder and social decisions impact on stakeholders as well a5 wider social and decisions mads by the Board
responsibilities and sustainahility responsibilities and measures how it is achieving and how Ten's stakeholders are
their implications for its objectives through annual emp OYEE SUMVEYS, KPS, including taken into account on page 33.
Jong-term success meambar NP3 results and regular business reviews. The Board

helieves that the quality of the Group's peogle is key 10 its continued
success and is proud of its track record of developing its business
leaders, The Board believes it has acted prudenthy but responsibhy
towards its stakeholders during its cost =aving initiatives.,
4, Embed effective risk The Board and the Audit and Risk Committes regularly review the Read maore about the Group's

management, considering
both oppeortunities and threats,
throughout the organisation

principal risks to the Group's business, including the processes
for momtoring and mitigating each risk, a5 managed by the Senior
Leadership team and embedded throughout the relevant business
functions. The ungrecaedentad risks and challenges posed by
COVID-19 testad and have helped develop Ten's risk
managsment framswark,

prncipal nsks on pages 31 and
32 and how they are monitored
and mitigated by the Audit and
Risk Committes on page 44.

Ten Lifestyle Group Plo | Annual Report and Accounts 2020 41



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Corporate Governance Statement continued

The QCA Corporate Governance Code continued

Kay principle

Haow we comply

MAINTAIN A DYNAMIC MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

More informeticn

5. Maintain the Board as a well- Cwer the last three years sitting as the Board of an &IM listed An overview of the make-up
functioning, balanced team led Company, the Board has developed and implameantad practices of the Board s included an
b‘f the Chairman and maintains appropriate balance to ansure meetings function well, page 39,

rmanagemeant is rigorously challenged and ideas are developed

6. Ensure that between them the The adequacy of the Board's collective skills and exparience are Read more about the Board
Directors have the necessary assessad as part of the annual Board effectiveness review and by effectiveness review on pages
up-to-date experience, skills the Momination Committes when considering its recommendations 39 and 40 and the skills and
and capabilities o the Board for re-appointment and succassion planning. Directors’  experiancs of the Directors on

indivicual development nesds are discussed annually with the Chairman,  pages 36 and 37.

7. Ewvaluate Board performance The Chairman leads the Board inan annual evaluation of the Board's  Detailz of the Board
based on clear and relevant effectivenass to identify areas for improvement and facilitate a plan effectivenass review including
objectives, seeking continuous  Of actions to address them. It requires esch Director to complete a the performance evaluation
improvement performance evaluation guestionnaire based on the QCAs key ndicators used is on pages 39

principles and meets with the Chairman. Year-cn-year and 40,
Improvaments are then monitored by the Board.

8. Promote a corporate culture he Group's values of being member focusad, plonaering and Detailz about the Group's
that is based on ethical values  trustworthy underpin the business’ culture and are consistent with corporate governance culture
and behaviours the Group’s objective and strategy. The Board promotes ethical are on page 38 and our

values and behaviours through the decisions it makes, including mission and values arg
promofing the Group's DE&| program and commitrmsnt o improving published on our weabsite at
the Group's environmental performance, The Senior Leadership v tenlifestidagroup.com/abont,
Team meet biannwally to refocus on the Group's values and is held
accountable for the actions of those reporting to it to ensure ethical
values and behaviours are embedded in the business.

9. Maintain governance structures  The Board reserves certain matlers for its own consideration and The Group's corporate

and processes that are fit for
purpose and support good
decision making by the Board

delegates specialist duties to ts Committess andior members of the
Senior Leadership Team to ensure it receives relevant, up-to-date
information to allow it to make well-informed decisions on bahalf of
the businass.

governance structures and
DIrOCESSes are summarnsed on
page 39 under "Board operation”.

BUILD TRUST

10. Communicate how the

Company is governed and is
performing by maintaining a
dialogue with shareholders and
other relevant stakeholders

The Group communicates with shareholders through regular virtual
rmestings with investors, analysts and potential investors, publizhing
information for irvestors on its website, including investor videos
presentad by the CED. The chairs of each of the Board's committess
report on their govemance responsibilities and activity during the
vaar on pages 43 o 50.

The Executive Diractors regularly communicate with the Group’s
employess and provide updates on the Group's strateqgy. The Group's
values are continually reinforced by the Senior Leadership Team,
based across the Group's global locations.

You can find more information
on relations with shareholders
and our next AGM on pages 40
and 41

Relevant information can also
be found on our website wwwe.
tenlifestylegroup.comimestors.
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Audit and Risk Committee Report

Gillian Davies

The primary objective of the Committee is to assist the Board in
revienwing the guality of internal and external systems of controls
and risk management and for ensuring that the financial
performance of the Group is properly reported.

The Cammittes reviews reports on the interim and annusal
accounts, financial announcements, the Group's accounting
and financial control systems, changes to accounting policies,
the extent of the non-audit services undertaken by the external
auditor and the appointment of the extarnal auditor,

The Committea is also responsible for monitoring the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group's risk management systems and
advises the Board on the current risk exposures of the Group.

Members of the Committee

The Committes is compaosed of two independent Non-Executive
Directors: me, Gilian Davies (as Chairperson), and Bruce Weatherill,
| am a Chartered Accountant and have held a number of senior
fimancial positions in both listed and private equity backed
nternaticnal companies. Bruce praviously served as a

partner at PwC as global leader of its banking and wealth
managemeant practice as well as previously chairing the Audit
and Risk Committes of Fidelity Holdings (UK) until June 2019
and is the current Audit and Risk Committee Chair for JOX
Consulting. It is the Board's view that we both have significant
recent and relevant financial experience.

Alex Cheatle, Group CEQ, and Alan Donald, CFD, together with
other members of the finance team may attend Committes
meetings by invitation. The Committee held five scheduled
meetings during the year, together with an additional meeating
held to discuss specific issues relating to the impacts of
COVID-19 on the business,

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

| am pleased to present the report on behalf
of the Audit and Risk Committee for the period
ended 31 August 2020.

Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee

Business of the Committee

The main duties of the Committee are set out inits terms
of reference, which are available on the Group's website
fwewewtenlifestylegroup.com/investors). The main items of
business considered by the Committee during the period
included:

+ the review and approval of the 2020 audit plan and audit
engagement letter;

* consideration of key audit matters and how they are addressead;
* the review of suitability of the external auditor;

= the review of the unaudited interim report and annual report;
« consideration of the management representation letter;

* gOing CONCErT review;

+ consideration of the principal judgemental accounting
matters for the Group based on reports from executive
'n;-]nagt:rnnnt;

+ the review of the risk management and internal control
framework, including assessing the risk to the business
from the effects of COVID-19;

+ the review of whistleblowing and anti-bribery arrangements; and

* mesting with the external auditor without management presant.
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Audit and Risk Committee Report continued

Financial repurting

The Committes reviews whether suitable accounting policies
have been adoptad and whether management has mads
appropriate judgements and estimates, The Committes reviews
accounting papers prepared by management providing details
on the main financial reporting judgements as well as
assessments of the impact of potential new accounting
standards. The Committes also reviews reports provided by
the external auditor on the annual results which highlight any
observations from the waork they have undertakean.

The Group has applied IFRS 16 "Leases” from 1 September 2020
using the modified retrospective method. The Committes has
reviewed the assessments of the treatment, impact and
adoption which resulted in a material financial impact on the
Group's results for the year ending 31 August 2020,

Risk management and internal controls

As detailed on pages 40 and 41 of the Corporate Governance
Staterment, the Group's risk management and internal control
framewark is monitored by the Committee. The framework is
designed to manage the Group's risk appetite rathar than
gliminzate the risk of failure to meet the Group's strategic
ohjectives. The systemn can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurances against material misstatermant or loss.
DCring the pericd, the Committee has reviewed the framework
and the Committes is satisfied that the internal control systems
in place are currently operating effectively. The principal risks
facing the Group are set out in the section of this report on risk
management on pages 31 and 32,

External auditor

The Committes is responsible for reviewing the suitability of
the external auditor, BDO, to ensure that auditor independence
and objectivity are maintained. The Committes met with the
external auditor without management present during the
period. BDO was appointed auditor of the Group in 2017 and
the Committee continues to be satisfied with its effectiveness,

The Committes is responsible for ensuring there is a suitable
palicy for ensuring that non-audit work undertaken by the
auditor is reviewed 1o ensure it will not impact its independence
and ohjectivity. The breakdown of fees between audit and
non-audit services is provided in note & to the Group's

financial statements,

Taking into account the auditor's knowledge of the Group
and its experence, the Committee has recommended to the
Board that the auditor is re-appointed for the period ending
31 August 2021,
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Whistleblowing

The Group has a whistleblowing policy which sets out

the process by which any employee of the Group may, in
confidence, report concerns about possible wrongdaoings
in financial reparting or other matters. The Committee is
comfortable that the current policy is operating effectively.

Anti-bribery

The Group has an antibribery policy which applies to employees
of the Group. It sets out the Group's zero-tolerance position on
bribery and corruption as well as providing guidance on how fo
recognise and deal with bribery and corruption issues and the
potential consequaences. The Committes is satisfied that the
current palicy is operating effectively,

Gillian Davies
Chair of the Audit and Risk Committes
23 November 2020



Remuneration Committee Report

Jules Pancholi

Tha Group is pursuing an ambitious plan to become the most
trusted service in the world by investing in our member proposition
and generate profitability and scale. Our people are key 1o
delivering on this aspiration and our remuneration strategy

is designed to motivate, retain and reward colleagues across
thie world that contribute to the Group’s success.

In response to the challenges posed by COVIDA19 and the
angaing uncertainty it brings, we have postponed salary
raviews, discrationary bonuses and implemented a new
voluntary salary sacrifice for share options scheme (the “Salary
Sacrifice Schaeme”) across the Group.

The Committee continues to review the appropriateness of
the Group's incentive arrangements in light of the Group's
performance and the wider economic environment to ensure
that ary future incentives stretch, motivate and reward, in line
with the Group's strategy, values and the long-term interests
of all of its stakeholders,

This report describes the duties of the Committes, the policies
it has adopted, how it has applied those policies in the year and
details of specific Directors’ remuneration arrangements,

Members of the Committee

The Committes is composed of twa independent
Mon-Executives: me, Jules Panchaoli ias Chairman), and

Gillian Davies. Alex Cheatle, Group CEQ, togather with other
Diractors and advisers may attend Committes meetings by
invitation, The Committes held 3 scheduled meetings during
the period. The Commitiee operates under the Group’s agread
terms of reference which are available on the Group's website
fwvewe tenlifestylegroup.com/investors).

Duties

The Committee formulates the Group's remuneration policy
and applies it to make recommendations to the Board on
Group-wide incentive plans, individual senior and exacutive
remuneration packages and new appointments to the Board
or Senior Leadership Team,

VERNANCE

| am pleased to present this Remuneration
Committee Report for the period ended
31 August 2020.

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee

The Committes’s main duties and responsibilities are to:

* hava responsibility for setting the remuneration policy for
all Executives and such ather members of the executive
management as it is designated to consider;

* recommend and monitor the level and structure of
remuneration for senior managemeant;

obtain reliable, up-to-date information about remuneration in
other companies of comparable scale and complexity in light
of reviewing the ongoing appropriateness and relevance of
the remuneration policy;

raview the design of all share incentive plans for approval by
the Board;

approve the design of, and determine targets for, any
performance-related pay schemes operated by the Group
and approve the total annual payments made under such
gchemes; and

* ansure that contractual terms on termination, and any
payments made, are fair to the individual, and the Group,
that failure is not rewarded and that the duty to mitigate
loss is fully recognised.

Remuneration policy

The objective of the Group's remuneration policy is to attract,
motrate, retain and reward quality, skilled and expert individuals
who will contribute to the success of the Group. To achieve this
objective, we hawve designad a remuneration policy that focuses on
grarting key employess share options under our long-tarm incanthve
plans, alongside competitive salaries and pension-related bensfits.

The majority of our long-term incentive plans are linked to share
price parformance or vest on the achievement of performance
conditions based on total sharsholder return and, for some
paricipants, operational targets, as detaiked on page 47, We beliaeve
that by providing Executives and key employess with long-term
chare options, rather than performance-related bonuses, we align
remunaration with our shareholders’ long-term interests.

Salaries and pension-related benefits provide an appropriate
level of fixed remunearation to attract and retain individuals with
thie gualities, skills and experience reguired to deliver the Group's
strategic objectives and create value for our sharehalders.
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Executive Directors’ service contract

Alex Cheatle, Andrew Long and Sarah Hormbuckle signed new service contracts with the Group on Admission to Al in
Movember 2017, Alan Donald signed a service contract on his appointment in June 2019, The service contracts are not of
fixed duration. All the Executives’ contracts are terminable by either party giving six months’ written notice.

Non-Executive Directors

The Mon-Executive Directors have signed letters of appointment with the Group for the provision of the Non-Executives’ services,
which may be tarminated by either party giving three months” written notice. The Mon-Executives’ fees were reviewad and
determined by the Board on 22 November 2019,

Directors' remuneration
The following table summarises the total gross remuneration for the gualifying services of the Directors who served during the
wear to 31 August 2020,

2020 2019
Salary
Sacrifice
Basic Schama/ Options Gross basic Optionz
Salaryffee  fee waived Pansion exgrcised Total salarytes Pansion axarcised Total
(£} £} (£} (£} (£} 1] %) [} [}
Executive
Alex Cheatle 219,000 80,000 7,000 — 306,000 230,000 68,767 — 286767
Andrew Long 210,000 77,000 = — 287,000 295300 — — 295300
Sean Hegarty* = — — -_ -_ 144,756 3,526 - 148,282
Sarah Hornbuckle 76,000 16,500 2,000 = 94,500 85,000 2,075 — 87,075
Alan Donald 170,000 24,000 - 194,000 56,064 - 36,064
Non-Executive
Bruce Weatheril 51,000 2,750 - — 53,750 50,000 - — 50,000
Jules Panchaoli 37,000 2,750 - - 39,750 36,000 — — 36,000
Gillian Davies 37,000 2,750 = = 39,750 36,000 — — 36,000
800,000 205,750 9,000 — 1,014,750 963120 12,368 — 975489

" Sean Hegarly resigned as Director on 31 October 2013,
The Group has not awarded remuneration to the Directors based on share price appreciation or depreciation.

Exzcutive Directors sacrificed salary in the year under the Salary Sacrifice Scheme, detailed on pages 47 and 48,

Thie Non-Executives’ fees wera increased by £5,000 on 22 November 2019, The Mon-Executive Directors all waived the agreed
increases to their fees from March 2020,

Given the uncertainty relating to the impacts of COVID-19 on the Group and the wider economic environment, the Executive
Directors will not receive a pay increase in FY 2021, Subject to any further salary sacrificed under the Salary Sacrifice Schemse
in FY 2021, the Executive's remuneration for FY 2021 will be:

Basic salary
fae (L) Pansion [T Tatal (£}
Executive
Alex Cheatle 289,000 ¥,000 306,000
Andrew Long 287,000 — 287,300
Sarah Hormbuckle 95,000 2,000 47,000
Alan Donald 194,000 — 194,000
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Long-term incentive plans
Management Incentive Plan

Shartly Prior to listing, the Group adopted a Managemesnt Incantive Plan (IMIP) on @ Novernber 2017, The MIP is designed to award
sanior management nil-cost share options on an annual basis following the announcement of the Group's annual results.

The options vest three years after the date on which the Company's annual results are announced, subject to the performance
conditions. This vasting pericd was selected in line with guidance from the QCA (the Group's adopted corporate governance coda
is the QCA Corporate Governance Code), Appropriate claw back provisions are available at the discration of the Committes,

All MIP aptions awarded to Executives are subject to performance conditions based on the following ratcheted scale of growth of
total shareholder return (TSA):

Total Sharenoldar Retum CAGR B of Award westing

Less than 10% Zero

10% 25%

20% or more 100%,

Betweean 10% and 20% Between 25% and 100% on a straight ine basis

The growth in TSR is calculated by using the compound annual growth rate (CAGR) of the share performance from the closing
share price on the date on which the Group's financial results for the relevant were announced to the London Stock Exchange

ithe "Baseling TSR") until the date of the announcement of the Group's results threes years later. There is no additional return on
a share price increase over 20% CAGR.

Three MIF awards have been made since IPC:

Annual MIP Award 2020 2019 2018
Diate of Award 06/01/2020 24/06/209" ovA2520m7
Vesting Pericd 06/01/2020-07/12/2022  24/06/2019-0712/2021 O7AM2/2017-0712/2020
Performance Period 3 years from 26/11/2019 3 years from 28/11/2018 3 years from 27/11/2017
Baseline TSR (£) 1.27 0.697 1.34

*  The award was delayed due to financial targets not baing mat,

** Caloulated based on the average cloging share price for the dealing days from the 28112016 until 28 February 2019, due 1o a low share price (B0.34) on 28 Movernber 2018,
Awards to Andrew Long (CO0) are subject 1o additional performance conditions linked to the Net Revenue growth and profit
making in the APAC region.

Tha Committes believas the MIP and aforementioned performance metrics appropriately incentivise and are aligned with the
Group's strategic goals and the long-term interests of our shareholders. As the Group emerges from its post-IPO investment
phase and focuses its strategic goals of driving growth and long-term profitability, the Committee will review the MIP and the
limits of the Company's Share Plans in consultation with institutional shareholders on any proposal,

Company Share Option Plan

Shartly Prior to listing, the Group also adopted a Company Share Option Plan (CS0P), on 24 August 2017, C30P options are
generally granted 1o senior managament and employees key 1o the future success of the Group up 1o a maximum grant of
£30,000 of shares at an exercise price no lower than the mid-market share price the date before the date of grant.

CS0OP options become exercisable after three years, subject to certain conditions, including appropriate bad leaver conditions.
Any gain fraom the exercise of CS0P options is subject 1o the relative increase in the share price over the three-year period,
incentivising and rewarding employees engaged in achieving the Group's long-term strategic goals.

Salary Sacrifice Scheme (SSS)

Az part of the Group's cost saving initiatives in response to COVID-19, the Group established a voluntary Salary Sacrifice Scheme,
whereby employess and contractors can opt to forgo a percentage of their salary in return for options over ordinary shares,
exercisable for or up to three years from the date of grant,

Two Salary Sacrifice Schemes were launched in the year, generating a total cash saving to the Group of £1.0m in the year and
options over 5.1m ordinary shares granted. Since the end of the period, the Group has launched a third Salary Sacrifice Schame.

Tha exercise price and numbber of options grantad were determined using the Black Scholes model for option pricing to ensure
that the total economic value of these Options is equal to the value of the total salary forgone.
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Remuneration Committee Report continued

Salary Sacrifice Scheme (SSS) continued

Salary Sacrifice Scherme

First

Sacond

Sacrifice period

Date of grant

Exarcise price (£)

Sacrifice breakeven share price
Shares per £1.00 sacrificed
Mumber of participants

Total number of options granted
Total cost saving

March-Juna 2020
27032020

0,70

0.80

5

165

3.708,966

£0.7m

July-October 2020
Q97072020

1.20

1.53

3

83

1,343,839

£0.sm

The Committes is satisfiad that the benefits achieved by the Salary Sacrifice Scheme, including cost savings and enhanced
employee engagement, are aligned with our shareholders’ interests. The employees have waived antitiernent to salary in lieu of
payment of the share options, with expected net dilution only above the sacrifice breakeven share price listed. In light of this, the
Committes has considerad it appropriate to exclude these options from general headroom limits pursuant to the Company’s

Share Plans.

The Committes is grateful for the sacrifice of each participating employee and recognises their investment in the future success

the business during a challenging time for all,

Total Director share options

The following table summarises the total share options heald by the Directors who servad during the year to 31 August 2020,

Shiare Ciption Murmber of ordinary
Bochame Cuata of grant shares undar option Exgrcise price asting pariod
Alex Cheatle MIF 072207 400,000 £0.001 07N 2/2017-0712/2020
MIF 24/06/2019 200,000 £0.001 24/06/2019-0612/2021
MIF Ov2/2ma 200,000 £0.001 DE/01/2020-07/01/2023
C30P 24/08/2019 33,708 £0.89 24/08/2019-24/08/2022
555 2703/2020 249167 £0.70 2703/ 2020-N/07/2023
553 08/07/2020 149,500 £1.20 09/07/2020-3110/2023
Andrew Long MIP oyn2emsy 200,000 £0.001 OFN 2207071 2/2020
MIF 24/08/2019 100,000 £0.001 24/08/20M19-0612/2021
MIP O72/2ma 100,000 £0.00 DE/O1/2020=-07/01/2023
C30P 24/08/2019 33,708 £0.89 24/06/2019-24/06/2022
555 27/03/2020 240,841 £o.7a 2703/2020=-31/07/2023
553 D2/07/2020 135,787 £1.20 09/07/2020-3110/2023
Sarah Hornbuckle MIP 07/12/2017 60,000 £0.001  O7A2/2017-07/12/2020
MIF 24/08/2019 30,000 £0.001 24/08/2019-0612/2021
MIF 07¥M2/2m9 32,000 £0.001 D&1/2020-07/01/2023
CS0OP 24/06/2019 33,708 £0.89 24/06/2019-24/06/2022
553 27/03/2020 50,008 £0.70 27/03/2020-31/07/2023
55 09072020 36,005 £1.20 O08/07/2020-31/10/2023
Alan Donald MIF 07M12/2019 150,000 £0.001 0&/01/2020-07/01/2023
CSOP 24/08/2019 33,708 £0.589 2406/ 2019=-24/06/2022
55 27/03/2020 75,000 £0.70 27/03/2020-31/07/2023
55 097072020 58,200 £1.20 08/07/2020-31/10/2023

Mon-Executive Directors are not awarded share options.
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Fees paid for remuneration related services
The Group paid Onil in fees for remuneration-related services during the period,

Directors’ interests
Diractors' who served during the year to 31 August 2020 had interests in the shares of the Company as shown below:

Oranary shares of 0.040 31 August 2020 % shareholding 31 August 2018 % shareholdng 51 August 2008 % sharenolding
Executive

Alex Cheatle 11,164,669 13.84 11,741,684 14.56% 11,676,008 14.48%
Andrew Long 4,000,000 496 4,862,249 6.03% 4,796,573 5.95%
Sean Hegarty 263,059 0.33 263,059 0.33% 233,059 0.29%
Alan Donald 100,354 0.12 50,000 0.06%

Sarah Hornbuckle 714,983 0.89 797483 0.99% 757,483 0.94%
Non-Executive

Bruce Weatheril 800,000 0.99 800,000 0.99% 648,523 0.80%
Jules Pancholi 336,664 0.42 336,664 0.42% 316,654 0.39%
Gillian Davies 40,000 0.05 40,000 D.05% 20,000 0.02%

If you have any commeants or guestions on anything contained within this Remuneration Report, | will be available at the AGM.

Jules Pancholi
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
23 November 2020
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Nomination Committee Report

| am pleased to present the report on behalf of
the Nomination Committee for the period ended
31 August 2020.

Bruce Weatherill
Chairman of the Nomination Committes

The primary role of the Committae is to ensure that robust
procedures are in place for Board appointments and to ensure
that the Board and its Committees have an appropriate balance
of skills, experience, availability, independence and knowledge
of the Group required for the next stage in the Group's
developmeant. The Committee also makes recommendations

ta the Board about new appointments, re-electing Directors,
succession planning and Board composition, particularly

with regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.

Members of the Committee

The Committee is composead of two independent
Mon-Executives: me, Bruce Weatherill (as Chaimman, unless

the business under discussion includes the succession of this
position) and Jules Pancholi, as well as an Executive: Alex Cheatle,
Group CEQ. The Committes meat three times during the period.
The main duties of the Committee are set out in its terms

of reference, which are available on the Group's website
[wwewtenlifestylegroup.comyinvestars).

Business of the Committee

The Committes met during the period to consider succession
planning for the Board, its Committess and other senior managers,
taking into account the challenges and opportunities facing

the Group, and the skills and expertise neadead on the Board in
the future. The Committes also reflectad on the diversity of the
Board and senior managers and recognised the progress the
Group had made with regard to gender diversity and considered
how it could achieve further diversity and inclusion.

Taking into account the Listing in Movember 2017 and full
cansideration at that time, no further changes were
recommended at this ime.

Bruce Weatherill
Chairman of the Momination Committee
23 November 2020
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VERNANCE

The Directors present their annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 August 2020.
An indication of likely future developments in the business is set out in the Strategic Report.

Directors

Thea Directors who held office during the year and up to the
date of signature of the financial statements were as follows:

Alex Cheatle
Sarah Hormbuckle
Andrew Long
Alan Donald
Bruce Weatherill
Jules Pancholi
Gillian Davies

Financial risk management objectives and policies

Further detailed commentary on financial risk management is
included in note 29,

Liquidity risk

The Group seeks to manage financial risk by ensuring sufficient
liquidity is available to meet foreseesable needs and to invest
cash assets safely and profitably. Short-term flexibility is
achieved by holding significant cash balances in major
currencies, notably UK Sterling and the US Dollar,

Credit risk

The principal credit risk for the Group arises from its trade
receivalles. In order to manage cradit risk customears can bea
required o pay in advance of services being provided and
credit controllers regularly review credit limits in conjunction
with debt ageing and collection history.

Az at 31 August 2020, a provision of £0.2m was recognised
against balances with reasonable credit risk.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group has significant operations in both the Uk and overseas.
Profits are exposed to variations in exchange rates and therefore
reported profits. There is some natural hedging of transactional
toreign exchange risk; however, the Group remains subject to
translation exchange risk.

Overseas branches

The Group has three branches outside the United Kingdom
located in Dubai, Colombia and Argentina.

Research and development

The Group continues to dedicate resources to further develop
the bespoke TenMAID platform and the customer-facing Ten
Digital Platform offering to its partners. Expenses incurred are
capitalised when it is probable that future economic benefits
will be attributable to the asset and that these costs can be
measurad reliably (see note 15).

Post-balance sheet events

Since the year end, the Group has won contracts with new
and existing corporate clients, including:

* 2 multiple-year renawal of a master services agreement,
which includes an Extra Large contract in the Americas;

* 3 commission from an existing client to launch Ten's
digitally-enabled concierge services into a new EMEA
territory, further expanding an existing Extra Large contract;

* g multiple-year contract with a global financial services firm
o initially launch Ten's digitally-enabled concierge service
to customers in Africa, replacing an incumbent supplier of
similar services,

¢ athree-year contract, including a contractual minimum, with a
bank in APAC to launch Ten's digitally-enabled concierge senvics,

* g contract with a bank in APAC to provide Ten's high-touch
concierge services to private banking clients; and

* 3 second contract with an existing banking client in China 1o
prowvide Ten's high-touch concierge services to a new cohort
af banking clients.

The Group has implemented a third salary sacrifice initiative
to continue to prudently manage its costs and cash whilst the
pandemic continues to impact Net Revenue,

In September 2020 we mutually agreed with a client in EMEA
that a current contract (on track to be a Large contract) for the
provision of concierge services under a corporate-pay modsl
would be replaced with an agreement to offer our private
membership concierge services to its customers under an
affiliate model, which is likely to be a Small contract.
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Directors’ Report continued

Substantial shareholders

As at 31 August 2020, the Shareholders listed below had
notified the Company of a disclosable interest of 3% or more
in the nominal value of the ordinary share capital of the Group.

Parcantage of

Mumber of ordirary sharas

i.'.l"-."]ll'lﬂl’y’ ghares %

Alex Cheatle 11,164,668 13.84
Lembard Odier Investment

Managers 7,409,873 919
Canaccord Genuity Wealth

Management 5,400,000 B.70

Soros Fund Management 4,543,998 5.63

Baillie Gifford 4052 611 .02

Andrew Long 4,000,000 4.96

Ben Hormer 312164 3.86

The Prism Charitabla Trust 2,500,000 310

Cuinto Corporation 2474161 3.07

Purchase of own shares

The Company purchased £45k (FY12:2nil) of own shares
in the: financial vear, held in the Employee Benefit Trust (EET).

Corporate governance

The Company has adopted the QCA Corporate Governance
Code for Small and Mid-Size Quoted Companies ("QCA
guidelines”] as set out on pages 41 and 42,

Dividends

Mo ordinary dividends were paid (2019 £nil). The Directors
do nat recommend payment of a final dividend.

Share option schemes
Details of employee share schemeas are set out in note 27
ta the financial statements.

Brexit

The LK farmally left the EL on 30 January 2020, The UK is
now in a fransition period, baing an intermediary arrangement
covering matters like trade and border arrangements, citizens'
rights and jurisdiction on matters including dispute resolution.
The transition period is currently due to end on 31 December
2020 and negotiations are ongoing to determing and concluds
a formal agreement. As the Group operates subsidiaries in
other countries, there are alternative channels available to us to
continue business with tha same customers, should the nead
arise, with limited effect from Brexit changes. As such, while
the Directors are closely monitoring the situation, they currently
deem that the effects of Brexit will not have a significant impact
on the Group’s operations.
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Gning concern

The Group going concern assessment is based on forecasts
and projections of anticipated trading performance. The
assumptions applied are subjective and managemeant applies
judgement in estimating the probability, timing and value of
underlying cash flows.

The Directors confirm that they have a reasonable expectation
that the Group wil have adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the next 12 months from approval

of these financial staterments and accordingly these financial
statements are prepared on a going concern basis.

The COVID-19 pandemic impact on our business have

been appropriately managed and the Board believes that the
business is able to navigate through the impact of COVID-19
due to the strength of its customer proposition, its Statement
of financial position and the net cash pasition of the Group.

Directors’ responsibilities

The Directors are responsible for preparing the annual repaort
and the financial staterments in accordance with applicable
law and regulaticns.

Company law reguires the Directors to prepare financial statements
for each financial year, Under that lzw the Directors have elected
o prepare the group and company financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Beporting Standards
(IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union, Under company
lawy the Directors must not approve the financial statements
unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair views of
the state of affairs of the group and company and of the profit
or loss of the group for that period, The Directors are also
required to prepare financial statemeants in accordance with

the rules of the London Stock Exchange for companies trading
securities on AIM. In preparing these financial statements, the
Directors are required to:

* celect suitable accounting policies and then apply them
cansistantly;

* make judgements and accounting estimates that are
reasonable and prudent;

+ state whether they have been prepared in accordance with
IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Union, subject to any
material departures disclosed and explained in the financial
statements; and

+ prepare the financial staterments on the going concern basis
unless it is inappropriate to presume that the company will
continue in businass,

The: Directors are responsible for keeping adeguate accounting
records that are sufficient to show and explain the company's
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the company and enable them to ensure
that the financial statements comply with the requirements of
the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking
reascnable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and
other irregularities.



Energy & Carbon

This is the first year we are required to report under the
Streamlined Energy & Carbbon Reporting [SECRH) framework.
Owur SECR covers the energy consumption and Greanhouse
Gas (GHG) emissions for the 12 month period ending

31 August 2020.

Tha table below shows the energy and GHG emissions from
UK business activities involing the purchase of electricity and
business mileage in KWh and tCO,e,

Enargy
cansumpdion GHG Emissions

EWh) -:I{_'.U‘E_l
Scope 1 (Direct) GHG emissions 0 0
Scope 2 ([Energy indirect)
amissions 372,294 B86.80
Scope 3 (Other indirect) emissions 930 8.78
Tatal for the period 373,224 05,58
Intensity ratio: tCO,e per total m
Met Revenue 216

We have selected an intensity metric based on the Tonnes of
CO e per total Em Net Revenue. We will use this ratio to
monitor our energy efficiency performance over time.,

Ten has implemeantad a range of energy efficiency measures
in our offices and a reduction in business travel by making
more use of online meatings. Ten's environmental policy sets
aut the objectives and principles by which we manage the
anvironmental impacts and aspects of our operations our
commitment to improving our envirgnmental performance
and to integrate recognised environmental management best
practice into our oparations. The Group is improving its
monitoring of its environmental impact of Ten's business
globally, identifying measures that can reduce the Group's
impact and monitoring the effect of energy efficiency measures.

SECR methodology:

The figures guoted within this report include meter readings

for electricity and mileage expense reimbursement claims for
business mileage. Conversion factors used are taken from the
2020 UK government's GHG Conversion Factars for Company
Reporting' to calculate emissions for Scope 2 and 3. Befunded
business mileage has been classed as Scope 3 as Ten does
nat own the assats, emissions from UK Electricity Transmission
and Distribution has also bean included within this scope. An
average CO e factor has been applied to the refunded business
mileage as individual private vehicle details have not been provided,

VERNANCE

Website publication

The Directors are responsible for ensuring the annual report
and the financial statements are made available on a website,
Financial statements are published on the Group's websita in
accordance with legislation in the United Kingdom governing
the preparation and dissemination of financial statemeants,
which may vary from legislation in other jurisdictions. The
maintenance and integrity of the Group's website are the
rasponsibility of the Directors. The Directors’ responsibility also
extends 1o the ongoing integrity of the financial statements
contained therain,

Disclosure of information to the auditor

Each of the Directors of the Compary at the time whean this
report was approved confirms that:

* 50 far as the Director is aware, thera is no relevant audit
information of which the Company's auditor is unaware; and

= he or she has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have
taken as a Director in order to make himself or herself aware
of any relevant audit information and to establish that the
Company's auditor is aware of that information. This confirmation
is given in accordance with Section 418(2) of the Act.

Auditor

BDOD LLP was appointed as auditor to the Comparny and, in
accordance with Section 485 of the Companies Act 2008, a
resclution proposing that they be re-appainted will be tabled
at a general meeting.

Approval
This Directors’ Report was approved on behalf of the Board
on 23 Movember 2020,

Alan Donald
Chief Financial Officer
23 November 2020
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Ten Lifestyle Group Plc

Opinion

W have audited the financial statements of Ten Lifestyle Group Ple
{the ‘Parent Company") and its subsidiaries (the ‘Group’) for the
year ended 31 August 2020 which comprise the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement
of financial position, the company statement of financial position,
the consolidated statement of changes in eguity, the company
statement of changes in equity, the consolidated statement of
cash flows, the company statement of cash flows and notes to
the financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

Tha financial reporting framework that has been applied in

the preparation of the financial statements is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted
by the European Union and, as regards the Parent Company
financial staterments, as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2008,

I aur opinicon:

= the financial staterments give a true and fair view of the state
of the Group’s and of the Parent Company’s affairs as at
31 August 2020 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended,

= the Group financial statements have been properly prepared
in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union;

» the Parent Company financial statements have besn properly
prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the
European Union and as applied in accordance with the
provisions of the Companies Act 2006; and

= the financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

Key audit matters

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intermational
Standards on Auditing (UK) (13As (UK)) and applicable law.
Qur responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor's respansibilities for the audit of the financial
statements saction of our report, We are independent of the
Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
staternents in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as
applied to listed entities, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordancea with these requirements. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in
relation to which the 1SAs (LK) reguire us to report 1o you where:

* the Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in
the preparation of the financial statements is not appropriate; or

= the Dirgctors have not disclosed in the financial statements
any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant
doubt about the Group’s or the Parent Company's ability to
continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting for
a period of at least twehe months from the date when the
financial staterments are authorised for issue.

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the financial
statements of the current period and include the most significant assessad risks of material misstatement (whather or not due to
fraud) we identified, including those which had the greatest effect on: the overall audit strategy, the allocation of resources in the
audit; and directing the efforts of the engagerment team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial
statermants as a whole, and in forming our opinion therecn, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue Recognition

Key audit matter

The Group primarily generates revenues from two sources, direct concierge revenue from fees paid by

corporate clients for direct conclerge services and access 1o the TenMAID platform and indirect concierge
sarvice revenus generated through fulfiling transactions and services on members' behalf. Details of the
Group's revenue streams and accounting policies applied during the period are given in notes 1.5 and 5

to the financial statements.

We considerad there to be a significant audit risk arising from inappropriate or incorrect recognition of
revenue, The key audit matters related to revenue recognition are as follows:

* The risk of material misstatement in relation to revenue recognition concerms the recagnition around the
yvear end, particularly in relation to the adjustments recorded with respect to subscription fees for which

revenue is recognised over time.

* There is also a risk that revenue from the different streams have not been recognised appropriately in
line with the respective performance obligations, and that the policy itself is not in accordance with IFRS

as adopted by the European Union.

* There is a risk arising from incarrect presentation of revenue taking account of agent vs principle criterion.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
to the members of Ten Lifestyle Group Plc continued

Key audit matters continued

Revenue Recognition continued

How the key audit We performed the following specific testing:
matter was addressed

in our audit + We performed walkthroughs involving understanding the design of the controls, including IT genaral

controls, over the Group's revenue cycle and checking that those controls appear to have been
implementad, in order to assess the appropriateness of the processes and controls in place that
impact upon ravenue recognition.

* |n relation to Direct concierge service revenue and Digital platform revenue, we raviewed a sample of
contracts to assess whether the revenue had beaen recognised in accordance with the Group’s accounting
policy, whether it was recognised appropriately from a timing perspective (at a point in time or over time)
and whether any cther terms within the contract had any material accounting or disclosure implications.

* |n relation to Indirect concierge service revenue, we tested a sample of revenue transactions recognised
in the general ledger to source documentation including sales invoices, sales orders and cash receipts. In
making our assessment of compliance with the Group's accounting policy, we also checked that revenuas
wera only recognised at the time of the date of travel, stay or the date the experience event occurmed.

= Consideration was made as to whether the Group was the principal or agent in the transaction, by
reviewing, on a sample basis, key contracts to assess the nature of its promise of its performance
obligation to provide the specified goods or services itsalf (i.e, the entity is a principal) or to arrange
for those goods or services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the entity is an agent).

We checked the completeness, existence and accuracy of accrued income and deferred revenus
balances shown in the statement of financial position at year end. We selected a sample of revenue
transactions occcurring either side of the year-end reporting date across all revenue streams and
checked that the revenues recognised for the year under audit and accrued income and deferred
revenues recognised at the year-end reporting date did not include any materal misstaterments.

= We assessed whether the revenue recognition policies adopted by the Group comply with IFRS as
adopted by the European Union, in particular IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

Key observations:

Based on the work performed we consider that revenue has been materially recognised appropriately
and in accordance with the Group's revenue recognition accounting policy.

Intangible Assets: Development Costs, amortisation and impairment

Key audit matter The Group capitalises costs in relation to development of the software it provides to its clients, being the
Ten Maid platform. Such costs must satisfy certain criteria as set out in the Group's accounting policy in
notes 1.6 and 15 to the financial statements and in 1AS 38 intangible assets. In determining which costs to
capitalise management make certain estimatas in relation to the allocations of contractor costs and payroll
costs betwesen those which should be capitalised and those which should be expensed through the
statements of comprehansive income.

In accordance with 1AS 38, management's policy is to capitalise development expenditure on internally
developed software products if the costs can be measured reliably and the resulting assat meets the
criteria per the standard.

The key audit matters related to this financial statement area is as follows:

* Expenditure on the research phase of internal projects and development costs not satisfying the above
criteria are not recognised in the income statement as incurred,

* Management's estimates in relation to the costs capitalised may be materially misstated;

= Capitalised development costs are not amortised over the period within which the Group expects
to benefit from selling the product developed. This is deemed to be 5 years; and

* Ascets not available for use have not been impaired as required.
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Key audit matters continued

Intangible Assets: Development Costs, amortisation and impairment continued

How the key audit
matter was addressed
in our audit

We performed the following specific testing:

» Discussions were held with the Group's technology team to understand the Group's processes,
procedures and projects in relation to development costs.

Checked the accuracy of the contractor and payroll data, on a sample basis, included in the caloulations
for capitalisad costs to supporting documentation including employment contracts and agreements
with contractors.

Considered the propaortion of time allocations for employees and contractor roles and made enguiries
of management in relation to any changes to the percentage of time capitalisation, which were cutside
of expectations (based on knowledge of the business), corrobarating management’s explanations to
supporting evidence.

Reviewed the reasonableness of the estimated proportion of time allocations for a sample of employess
and contractors by making enquiries of individual employees and contractors and critically reviewing
written responses to the audit teams questionnaires, which they complatad in relation to their roles,
duties and tasks performed in relation to developing the platform asset.

Azsessed management's estimate of the amortisation period applied to the asset, establishing
whether any indicators of impairmeant exist taking account of any changes in usability of amounts
previoushy capitalised.

Assessad the ability of the asset to generate future econamic benefits for the business, which at least
exceed its carrying value by assassing the use of the Ten Maid platform in the performance of the
Group's obligations to customaers.

I line with 1AS 36 Impairment of Assets we checked that assets that were not yet available for use
(such as projects in development) had an impairment review undertaken as required.

Key observations:

Based on the procedures performed, we noted no instances indicating that the accounting for
development costs, including the calculation of the related amartisation charge and the evaluation
of impairment was inappropriate.

Going Concern

Key audit matter

As discussed in note 1.4 to the financial statements there is a continued uncertainty due to the current
economic conditions caused by the Covid-19 pandemic.

The Directors have prepared forecasts and applied various sensitivity analyses to reflact a variety of
possible cash flow scenarios. This includes, taking account of the Covid-19 pandemic, reverse stress
testing to ascertain what levels of cost increases or revenue decline cause a cash shortage at any point
in management's post balance sheet assessment period and considering the likelihood that those fact
patterns could occur.

These scenarios indicate the Group has sufficient cash and cash equivalents to meet its liabilities as they
fall due for a period of at least 12 months from the date of approval of the financial staternents.

The estimates, inputs and calculations supporting the gaing concern assessment require the Directors
to make significant judgements and identify any material uncertainties therefore going concern was
considerad to be a key audit matter.
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Independent Auditor’s Report

to the members of Ten Lifestyle Group Plc continued

Key audit matters continued

Going Concern continuad

How the key audit
matter was addressed
in our audit

Cur audit procedures included the following:

= Wa reviewsad the internal forecasting process to confirm that the projections are prepared by an

appropriate level of staff that are aware of the detailed figures included in the forecast but also have a
high level understanding of the entity's market, strategy and changes in the customer base and the
potential impact that Covid-19 might have on these projections.

+ We considered whether the projections were consistent with those approved by the Directors and with
other information obtained during our audit, for example in connection with the impairment of intangibles.

* We raviewed the forecasts prepared and challenged the key assumptions and inputs within the model
50 as to determine whether there is adequate support for the assumptions underlying the forecasts.

* We have considered the appropriatenass of the sensitivities applied and confirmed that they have
suitably addressed the inputs which are most susceptible to change. We have also considered the
feasibility of each of the possible expenditure reductions identified,

* Wa reviewesd post year end management accounts, specifically comparing the cash paosition against

that budgeted.

* We made enguiries of management as to their knowledge of evants or conditions beyond the period of
their assessment that may cast significant doubt on the entity's ability to continue as a going concern.

* We considered the adequacy of the disclosures in the financial statements against the requirements of

the accounting standards.

Key observations:

Our observations are set out in the ‘conclusions relating to going concern’ section above.

Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and
performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect of
misstatements. We consider materiality to be the magnitude by
which misstatements, including omissions, could influence the
economic decisions of reasonable users that are taken on the
basis of the financial statements. At the planning stage we st
an overall level of materiality for the financial statements as a
whole based on our understanding of the elements of the
financial statements that are likely to be of greatest significance
to users. In order 1o reduce to an appropriately low level the
probakility that ary misstaterneants exceed matanality, we use a
lewer materiality level, performance materiality, to determing the
extent of testing needed. Importantly, misstatements below
these levels will not necessarily be evaluated as immaterial as
we also take account of the nature of identified misstatements,
and the particular circumstances of their occurmance, when
evaluating their effect on the financial statements as a whole.

Materiality

Materiality for the Group financial statements as a whole was set
at £442 000 (2019 £465,000), which represents 136 (2019: 1%)
of Group revenue, Revenue provides a consistant year on yaar
basis for determining materiality and has been concluded as
the most relevant performance measure to the stakeholders

of the Group, while also providing a more stable measure year
on year when compared to the Group loss before tax, Parent
Company materiality has been set at £353,600 (2019: £422,100)
being 80% of Group materiality (2019: 90%), which is considerad
a suitable benchmark for a non-trading holding Parent Company.

Materiality levels used for the significant within the Group
ranged from £69,280 to £367,000 (2019: £78,000 to £323,000).
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Performance Materiality

Based upon our assessment of the risks within the Group and
the Group's control environment, performance materiality for
the financial statements was set at £287,300 (2019: £351,750),
baing 65% (2019: 75%) of overall financial statemant matariality,
which includes the expected total value of known and likely
misstaterments. The Parent Company’s performance materiality
for the financial staterments set at £229,840 (2019: £316,575).

Performance materiality levels used for the three key components
identified, Ten Lifestyle Management Limited, Ten Lifestyle
Management LUSA Inc. and Ten Lifestyle Management Switzerland
GmbH within the Group ranged from £45,032 to £238,550
(2019: £58,500 to £242,250).

Reporting Threshold

We agreed with the Audit Committes that we would report to them
all individual audit differences in excess of £22100 (2019; £23,450),
which is set at 5% (2018 5%) of materiality, as well as differences
below that threshold that, in our view, warranted reporting on
qualitative grounds.

We evaluate any uncorrected misstatements against both the
guantitative measures of materiality discussed above and in light
of other relevant qualitative considerations in forming our opinion.

An overview of the scope of our audit

Cur Group audit was scoped by obtaining an understanding of
the Group and its environment, including the Group's system of
internal controd, and assessing the risks of material misstatement
in the financial statements at the Group level.



An overview of the scope of our audit continued

Wi obtained an understanding of the intarnal control environmaent
related to the financial reporting process and assessed the
appropriatenass, completeness and accuracy of Group
journals and other adjustments performed on consolidation.

Three principal trading subsidiaries, Ten Lifestyle Management
Limited, Ten Lifestyle Management USA Inc. and Ten Lifestyle
Management Switzerland GmbH, were identified as significant
components and were subject to full scope audits for Group
reporting purposes by the Group audit team. These componeants
accounted for 85% (2018: 93%) of the Group's revenue and 87%
{2019: 94%) of the Group's loss before tax. Financial information
for the remaining components not identified as significant was
reviewed for Group reporting purposes by the Group audit
team, using analytic procedures.

Other information

The Directors are responsible for the other information. The
ather information comprisas the information included in the
Annual Report and Accounts, other than the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon, Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to
the extant otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with cur audit of the financial statermants, our
responsibility is to read the other informaticn and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is matarially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we
identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material
misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is

a material misstaternant in the financial statements or a material
migstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a matenal misstatermant
af this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
hawe nothing to report in this regard.

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the
Companies Act 2006

In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course
af the audit;

= the information given in the strategic report and the Directors’
report for the financial year for which the financial statements
are prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

= the strategic report and the Directors' report have baen
prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Matters on which we are reguired to report

by exception

In the: light of the knowledge and understanding of the
Group and the Parent Compary and its environment obtained

in the course of the audit, we have not identified material
misstatements in the strategic report or the Directors' report.

We have nothing to repaort in respect of the following mattars in
relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report
o you if, in our opinion:

* adequate accounting records have not been kept by the
Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not
been received from branches not visited by us; or
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+ the Parent Company financial statements are not in
agreement with the accounting records and retumns; or

= certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified
by law are not made; or

* ywe have not received all the information and explanations
we require for our audit,

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained maore fully in the Directors' responsibilities
statement set out on page 52, the Directors are responsible for
the preparation of the financial staterments and for baing
satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemal
control as the Directors determing is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statemeants that are free from material
misstatemnent, wheather due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible
for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company's ability to
cantinue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or the Parent Company or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements

Cur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatemeant, whether due to fraud or error, and to
igsue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with 1SAs {LIK) will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.

Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considerad
rmaterial if, individually ar in the aggregate, they could reasanably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of
the financial staternents is located on the Financial Reporting
Council's website at: www.frc.org.ukfauditorsresponsibilities.
This description forms part of our auditor's report.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the Parent Company’s members, as
a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies
Act 2006, Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might
state to the Parent Company's members those matters we ara
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept
or assume respansibility to anyone other than the Parent
Company and the Parent Company’s members as a body, for our
audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.,

lain Henderson (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor

London, UK

23 Novermnber 2020

EDO LLF is a limited liability partnership registered in England
and Wales (with registerad numbear OC305127).
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 31 August 2020

2020 2019

Motes £'000 £'000
Revenue 4 46,369 49,080
Cost of sales on principal member transactions (2,145) (3,248)
Met Revenue 4 44,224 45,832
Other cost of sales (828) 1,327)
Gross profit 43,396 44 505
Administrative expenses (48,943) 152,489)
Other income 620 157
Operating profit/{loss) before amortisation, depreciation, interest,
share-based payments, exceptional items and taxation ("Adjusted EBITDA") 4,778 (3,322)
Depreciation 16 & 17 (4,395) [883)
Amortisation 15 (3,380) (3,011)
Share-based payment expense 7 (1,525) 1501)
Exceptional items 4.1 (405)
Operating loss 5 (4,927) (7.827)
Finance income 12 2 5564
Finance expense 12 (966) &)
Loss before taxation (5,891) (7,288)
Taxation expense 13 {1,005) 973)
Loss for the year (6,896) 8,261)
Other comprehensive (expense)/income:
Fareign currency translation differences (60) 153
Total comprehensive loss for the year (6,956) (8,108)
Basic and diluted loss per ordinary share 14 (8.6)p (10.3)p

The consolidated staternent of comprahansive income has been prepared on the basis that all operations are continuing operations.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 August 2020

Company MNo: 08259177

2020 2018

Mates £000 D00
Mon-current assets
Intangible assets 15 10,532 G.009
Property, plant and equipment 16 1,126 1,843
Right of use assets 17 5116 -
Total non-current assets 16,774 10,852
Current assets
Imventories 66 bala]
Irade and other receivables 19 6,941 11,069
Cash and cash equivalents 21 10,957 12,341
Total current assets 17,964 23,466
Total assets 34,738 34,318
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables 22 (11,906) (12,745)
Ohbligations under finance leases - (30
Provisions 23 (596) (555)
Lease liabilities 25 (3,335) -
Total current liabilities (15,837) (13,371)
Met current assets 2127 10,085
Mon-current liabilities
Borrowings 24 (1,000) =
Obligations under finance leases - (2)
Lease liabilities 25 (2,668) —
Total non-current liabilities (3,668) (2)
Total liabilities (19,505) (13,373)
MNet assets 15,233 20,945
Equity
Called up share capital 26 81 a1
Share premium account 28,480 28,480
Merger relief reserve 1,993 1,993
Treasury reserve 15 (30
Foreign exchange reserve (405) 1345)
Retained deficit (14,931) 9,234)
Total equity 15,233 20,945

The financial statements ware approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 23 November 2020 and are signed
on its behalf by:

Alex Cheatle Alan Donald
Director Director
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 August 2020

Shars Merger Foreign
Ehare Rremmkim redigf exchangs Treasury Retained
capital AcCun MEGErG PEGErYES PESErAE cleficit Total

Motes £'000 £000 £000 £1000 £000 £'000 £'000
Loss for tha year — — — — = 8,261 (8,261)
Foreign exchange — - - 153 - - 153
Total comprehensive income for the year — — — 153 - 18,261 18,108)
Shares sold by Employee Benefit Trust (EET) 27 — — — — (107) — (107)
Equity-settled share-based payments charge 27 - - - - — 501 501
Balance at 31 August 2019 &1 28,480 1,993 {345) 30)  (9,234) 20945
Change in accounting policy — — — — - (326) (326]
Balance at 31 August 2019
(as restated) &1 28,480 1,883 {345) (309 B.560) 20619
Loss for the year - - - - — (6,896 16,896
Forgign exchange — — — (60 - - (50
Total comprehensive income for the vear - - = (60) = (6,896)  (6,956)
Shares purchased by Employes Benefit
Trust (EBT) - - - - 45 - 45
Equity-setiled share-basad payments charge 27 — — — — = 1,525 1,525
Balance at 31 August 2020 a1 28,480 1,993 (405) 15 (14,931) 15,233

62 Ten Lifestyle Group Plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2020



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 August 2020

2020 2018

Motas £'000 £'000
Cash flows from operating activities
Loss far the year, after tax (6,896) (8,267)
Adjustments for:
Taxation expanse 13 1,005 ava
Finance expense 12 455 15
Irvestment income 12 (2) (G0)
Amartisation of intangible assets 15 3,380 3.0m
Depreciation of property, plant and eguipment 16 913 993
Depreciation of right-of-use asset il 3,482
Equity-settled share based payment expense 27 1,525 51
Exceptional tems 405
Movement in working capital:
{Increase)/decrease in inventories (9) 30
Decreasedincraase) in trade and other receivables 4128 (2,055)
{Increase) /decrease in trade and other payables {1,190) 2,710
Cash from/{used in) operations 7,196 [2.143)
Tax paid (150) (547
MNet cash from/f{used in) operating activities 7,046 2,690
Cash flows from Investing activities
Purchase of intangible assets 15 (5,308) (4,308)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment 16 (217) 1,187)
Finance income 12 2 G0
Met cash used in investing activities (5,523) (5.432)
Cash flows from financing activities
Lease liability repayments 25 (3,162) —
(Purchase) of treasury shares (45) (100)
Payment of finance lease obligations - 73
Loan receipts 24 1,000 -
Interest paid 5 {15)
Finance lease interest paid - i8)
Interest paid on lease liakilities 25 (448) —
Met cash used in financing activities (2,650) (196)
Foreign currency movements (257) -
Met decrease in cash and cash equivalents (1,384) 18,318)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 12,341 20,659
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period
Cash at bank and in hand 10,957 12,34
Cash and cash equivalents 10,957 12,341
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Notes to the Financial Statements

1. Accounting policies

Company information

Ten Lifestyle Group Plc (registered company 08259177) is a public company, limited by shares and listed on the Altarnative
Investment Market (AIM) in November 2017, The Company is incorporated and domiciled in the UK, The registered office is

2nd Floor, 355 Euston Road, London, NW1 3AL. The Company previously traded under the name Ten Lifestyle Holdings Limited
until 2 November 2017,

1.1 Basis of preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFES) and IFRS
Interpretations Committee (IFRS I1C) interpretations as adopted for use in the Eurapean Unian and with those parts of the
Companies Act 2006 applicable to companies reporting under IFRS (except as otherwise stated).

The financial information has been preparad on the historical cost basis except that the dervative financial instruments are stated
at their fair value.

The financial statements are prapared in Sterling, which is the functional currency of the Company. Monetary amounts in these
financial statements are rounded to the nearest £'000.

The Group applied all standards and interpretations issued by the |IASE that were effective as of 1 September 2019, The accounting
policies set out below have, unless otherwise stated, been applied consistently to all years presented in this financial information,

The preparation of financial staterments in confarmity with IFRS requires the use of certain eritical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting policies. The areas involving a
higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consclidated financial
statements, are disclosed in note 3.

1.2 Consolidation

The financial information represents the consolidated financial infarmation of the Company and its subsidiaries (the “*Group”) as

if they formed a single entity, Intercompany transactions and balances between Group companies are therefore eliminated in full.
The results of subsidiary undertakings arg included in the consolidated statement of comprebensive income from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases. The Company controls a subsidiary/investee if all three of the following
glements are present; power over the investes, exposura to variable returns from the investes, and the ability of the investor to
use its power 1o affect those variable returns. Control is reassessed whenever facts and circumstances indicate that there may
be a change in any of these elements of control. In assessing control, the Group takes into consideration potential voting rights
that are currently exercisable.

In the year ended 31 August 2013, Ten Lifestyle Group Plc, formerly Ten Lifestyle Holdings Limited, a company under commaon
control of the Ten Lifestyle Management Limited shareholders, acquired Ten Lifestyle Management Limited from its shareholders
in return for an issue of shares. As a combination of entities under common contral, the transaction falls outside the scope of the
standard IFRS 3 “Business Combinations™

Paragraph 10 of 1AS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors" reguires management to use its
judgement in developing and applying a policy that is relevant and reliable, represents faithfully the transaction, reflects the
economic substanca of the transaction, is neutral, is prudent and is complete in all material respects when selecting the
appropriate methodology for consclidation accounting.

In accordance with merger accounting, consolidated accounts have been prepared for the reconstructed Group as if it had
always been in existence. The carrying value of assets and liabilities has not been adjusted to fair value. The difference betweean
the nominal value of the shares issued and the nominal value of the shares received has been recorded in the merger reserve.

The cost of the Company's shares held by the Employes Benefit Trust (EBT) is deducted from equity in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Any cash received by the EBT on disposal of the shares it holds is also recognised directly in
equity. Other assets and liabilities of the EBT are recognised as assets and liakilities of the Group other than when they relata
to other Group companies and are therefore eliminated.

1.3 Segment reporting

The Group's operating segments are based on the management reporting used by the CEOQ (who is considered to be the
chief operating decision maker) and reviewad by Board of Diractors to make strategic decisions and allocate resourcas,
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1.4 Going concern

The consolidatad financial statements have been prepared ©on a going concern basis. The ability of the Company to continue as

a going concern is contingant on the ongoing viability of the Group. The Group meets its day-to-day working capital requiremeants
through its cash balances and wider working capital management. The current economic conditions continue to create uncertainty,
particularly over (a) corporate members’ engagement; and (b) supplier revenue volumes. The Group’s forecasts and projections,
taking account of reasonably possible changas in trading performance, show that the Group expects to be able to operate within
the level of its current cash resources. Having assessed the principal risks and the other matters discussed in connection with the
going concern staternent, the Directors considered it appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of accounting in preparing its
consolidated financial statements.

YWarious sensitivity analyses have been performed to reflect a variety of possible cash flow scenarios, taking into account the
COVID-19 pandemic, where the Group achigves significantly reduced revenug for the twelve months following the date of this
annual report. Overall, the Directors have prepared cash flow forecasts covering a period of at least twelve months from the date of
approval of the financial statements, which foresee that the Group will be able to operate within its existing working capital facilities.

The COVID-19 pandemic has had an impact on our business, noting the Company has managed costs firmly to ensure operating
performances align with pre-COVID-19 levels and the Board believes that the business is able to navigate through the impact of
COVID-19 due to the strangth of its customer proposition, its balance sheet and the net cash position of the Group.

However, the rapid emergence of the coronavirus pandemic has caused significant disruption to many businesses whera the
implementation of social distancing measures is not practical or is deemed ineffective and this, had an implication for the wider
global economy and specifically for the supply chain within which we reside — primarily our customer's willingness or ability to use
aur services in the volumes plannad prior to the pandemic. The selection of assistance services available to our customers has
been increased in the year, which has encouraged their engagement. Thera is, however, a risk that the Group will be further
impacted by continued social distancing restrictions impacting the volumes of engages and by prospective customers delaying
launches. If Met revenue is not in line with cash flow forecasts, the Directors have identified cost savings associated with the
reduction in revenue and have the ability to identify further cost savings if necessary.

1.5 Revenue

Revenue comprises concierge service fees, digital platform fees, and revenue generated from member transactions. An entity is a
principal if it controls the specified good or service before that good or service is transferred to a customer. The Group is principal in
all services provided, other than in those transactions with members detailed below in the indirect concierge service revenue section.
A typical concierge contract duration is 36 months, Revenue is stated exclusive of VAT, sales tax and trade discounts.

Revenue is recognised when the Group has fulfilled its performance obligations under the relevant customer contract. To the
extent that invoices are raised to a different pattern than the revenue recognition described below, appropriate adjustments are
made through deferred and accrued income to account for revenue when the performance obligations have been met.

Furthermaore, the Group receives payments from members for the concierge service which are invoiced on 30 day payment terms
and commissions earnad on agent transactions are generally received on booking dates or when deposits are due.

The Group primarily provides a concierge sarvice (both online and coffling). Where goods and/or services are sold in one bundled
transaction, the Group allocates the total arrangement's consideration to the different individual elements based on their relative
fair values. Management determines the fair values of individual components based on actual amounts charged by the Group on
a standalone basis given the lack of comparable pricing arrangements observable in the market.

The nature, timing of satisfaction of performance obligations and significant payment terms of revenue abtained by the Group
are considered below:

Direct concierge service revenue

The Group provides concigrge services to its members (anline and/or offling) and recagnises concierge consideration at the
point in time the performance cbligation of managing a request is fulfiled. The Group uses the residual approach to determing
the transaction price given the lack of observable market prices available given the niche nature of the services provided,

Where the Group's performance of its obligations exceeds amounts received, accrued income or a trade receivable is recognised
depending on Group’s billing rights. Where the Group's performance of its obligations under a contract is less than amounts
recenved, a contract liability in deferred income is recognised. The amount of revenue recognised can be subject to contract
structuras including variable consideration and cap and callar thresholds. Where variable pricing structures are in place with
predeterminad service thresholds, price per service unit is therefore based on the expected entitlemeant (most likely method)
earned up to the statement of financial position date under each custormer agreement.
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1.5 Revenue continuad
Direct concierge service revenue continued

On implementing a customer contract, it is typical for the Group to charge concierge enabling fees. Where concierge enabling
fees are capable of being separated out from an ongoing service contract, revenue will be recognisad in full at the point in time of
the launch of the servica (high touch or onling). When the service is not distinet, this is cannot be separated from the contract and
is therefore recognised over the contract term. Where the service is invoiced in advance and is yet to be launched (l.e. the
performance obligation is not fulfiled), a contract liakility will be held on the statement of financial position in defarred income.,

Digital platform revenuea
The Group provides an optional digital platform (Ten Digital Platform) offering to its customers. Bevenue generated from licensing
digital products and software maintenance is recognised on a straight line basis over time attributed to the licence,

The nature of the Group's promise in granting a licence is a promise to provide a right to access the Group's intellectual property
as the customer benefits from penodic upgrades to the platform.

Where such revenue is invoiced in advance, the revenue is deferred and released over the period of the licence with the contract
liakility recorded within deferred income in the staternent of financial position.

Revenue generated from developing digital products is recognised at the point in time of the delivery of the service. Where
revenue is basad on time and rate cards are recognised at the contracted rates as labour hours are incurrad. Wheare development
income is invoiced in advance, the revenue is deferred as a contract liability with the balance recorded within deferred income in
the staterment of financial position and released on service delivery.

Indirect concierge service revenue

The Group receives payment fram its members and then fulfils transactions for products and services on their behalf. This is
treated as an agent transaction in most cases, other than in cases where the Group has the primary responsibility for providing
the products or services 1o the end user i.e. the Group carries inventory risk (such as tickets); the Group is free to establish its
own prices either with or without bundling in other goods or services which are not supplied by the Group. A large proportion of
transactions where the Group is principal relate to the provision of packaged travel services with Air Travel Organiser's Licence
[ATOL) guarantees,

Service fees and offer income are recognisad over the year to which the fees or offer relate. Where invoiced in advance, the fees
and offer income is deferred and released over the yvear of the service with the balance recorded within deferred income in the
statement of financial position.

Travel and experience revenue are recognised on the date of travel, stay or receiving the experience. Where invoiced in advance,
the income is deferred and released on the date of travel, stay or receiving the experience with the balance recorded within
deferred income in the statement of financial position.

Direct expenses relating to inclusive tours arranged by the Group's leisure travel providers are taken to the income statement
on holiday departure or over the period to which they relate as appropriate. Indirect expenses are recognised in the income
statement over the pericd to which goods and services are received by the Group.

Commissions from suppliers are recognised on the point of provision of the good or service.

Cost of obtaining a contract

The Group has used the practical expedient in recagnising the incremental costs of obtaining a contract as an expense when
incurrad if the amortisation period of the asset that the entity otherwisae would have recognised is one year or less.

1.6 Intangible assets
Research expenditure is expensad to the income statement in the year in which it is incurred; expenditure on internal projects
is capitalised if it can be demonstrated that:

+ it is technically and commercially feasible to develop the asset for future economic benefit;

= adequate resources are available to maintain and complete the development;

= is the intention to complete and develop the asset for future economic benefit;

* the Group is able to use the asset;

* use of the asset will generate future economic benefit; and

« gxpenditure on the development of the asset can be measured reliably.

Other development expenditure is recognised in the income statement as an expensa as incurred,

Capitalised development expenditure is stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and less accumulated impairment losses.
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1.6 Intangible assets continuad

Amortisation is charged to the income statement on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assats.
Imtangible assets are amortised from the date they are available for usa. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Trademarks — 10% straight line
Capitalised development costs  —  20% straight line
Website — 33% straight line
The basis for choosing these useful lives is with reference to the years over which they can continue to generate value for the Group.

Amortisation charges are included within administrative expenses in the consclidated statement of comprehensive income. The Group
reviews the amartisation year and methodology when events and circumstances indicate that the useful life may have changed
since the last reporting date.

1.7 Property, plant and equipment
Property, plant and equipment are initially measured at historical cost and subsequently measured at historical cost, net of
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost or revalued amounts to their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Leasehold improvemeants — (Ower the term of the lease
Fixtures and fittings — 20% straight line
Office equipment — 20% to 33% straight lina

The gain or loss ansing on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceads and the carrying
value of the asset and is recagnised in the income statement,

1.8 Non-current investments

Tha Company's interests in subsidiaries are initially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost less any accumulated
impairment losses.

1.9 Impairment of tangible and intangible assets

All tangible and intangible assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount might not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. Far the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are largely independent
cash inflows (CGUs).

1.10 Financial assets
In adopting IFRS 9, the impairment of financial assets was the only area of impact on the financial information in comparison to the
previous reporting pariod.

The Group now reviews the amourt of credit loss associated with its trade receivables based on a provision matrix and forward-looking
estimates that consider current and forecast cradit conditions as opposed to relying sclely on past historical default rates.

In adopting IFRS 9, the Group has applied the simplified approach by applying a provision matrix based on number of days past
due to measure lifetime expectad credit losses. This takes into account the applicable customaer cradit risk profile and current and
forecast trading conditions.

Using the approach described above the current year saw an expected credit loss position of £222k,

All financial assets are held under the business model of holding the asset to collect the contractual cash flows arising from the
assets, which are made up solely of payments of the principal and interest. Therefore, all financial assets are classified at
amortised cost.

Except for trade receivables, financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to their acquisition or issue and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less provision
for impairment.

Trade receivables do not contain significant financing components and therefore are initially recognised at their transaction price,
and subsequently treated in ling with other financial assets, Except for trade receivables, impairment provisions are recognised as
an expected credit loss provision under the general approach, being the expected credit loss over the next twelve months.
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1. Accounting policies continued

1.10 Financial assets continued

Where there is a cradit risk on a financial asset that has increased significantly, the impairment provision is measured at the
lifetime expected credit loss, Impairment for trade receivables will be measured under the simplified approach with an expected
credit loss percentage applied to each ageing category. All financial assets will be reported net of impairment; when the Group
has no reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset, the portion that is not recoverable is derecognised.

Thesa financial assets comprise trade and ather receivables, accrued income, and cash and cash eguivalants in the consolidated
statement of financial position. Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held with banks and other short-term
highly liguid imvestments with original maturities of thrae months or less.

1.11 Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities include trade payables and other short-tarm monetary liabilities, which are initially recognised at fair value and
subsequently camied at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

1.12 Equity instruments
Equity instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds receivied, net of direct issue costs, Dividends payabla on
equity instruments are recognised as liabilities once they are no longer at the discretion of the Company.

1.13 Taxation
The tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

Any tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the iIncome
statement because it excludes iterns of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludas
itemns that are never taxable or deductible. The Company's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantivaly enacted by the reporting end date,

Research and development tax credit

Companies within the Group may be entitied to claim special tax allowances in relation to gualifying research and development
(R&D) expenditure (e.g. R&D tax credits). The Group accounts for such alowances as tax credits, which maans that they are
recognised when it is probable that the benefit will flow to the Group and that benefit can be reliably measured. They are claimed
through the research and development expenditure credit (RDEC) tax credit scheme and recognised in the financial statemeants
through other income on the income statement and other receivables on the balance sheet, until the cash is received.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liakilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax basas used in the computation of taxable profit, and is accounted
for using the balance sheet liability method, Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference arises
fram the initial recognition of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting end date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered, Deferred tax is calculated at
the tax rates that are expectad to apply in the year when the liability is settled, or the asset is realised. Deferred tax is charged or
credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to ‘other comprehensive income’, in
which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in ‘other comprehensive income’. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when
the Company has a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities and the deferred tax assets and liabilities
relate to taxes levied by the same tax autharty.

1.14 Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a legal or constructive present obligation as a result of a past event, it is probable
that the Group will be required to settle that obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the Group obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation at the
reporting end date, taking into account the risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. Where a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present obligation, its carmying amount is the prasent value of those cash flows.

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be recoverad from a third party, a
receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that reimbursament will be received and the amount of the receivable
can be measured reliably.
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1.15 Employee benefits
The costs of short-term employee benefits are recognised as a liability and an expense, unless those costs are required 1o be

recognisad as part of the cost of inventories or non-current assets, The cost of any unused holiday entitiement is recognised
in the year in which the employee's services are received.

1.16 Retirement benefits

The Group aperates a defined contribution pension plan, under which the Group pays contributions to privately administered
pension plans on a mandatory, contractual, or voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment cbligations once the
contributions have been paid, The contributions are recognised as employes benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

1.17 Share-based payments

Equity-settled share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant by reference to the fair value of the equity
instruments granted using appropriate pricing models, The fair value determined at the grant date is expensed on a straight ling
basis aver the vesting year, based on the estimate of shares that will eventually vest, A corresponding adjustment is made to aquity.

The Group schemes, which award shares in the parent entity, include recipients who are employees in certain subsidiaries. In the
consolidated financial statements, the transaction is treated as an equity-settled share-based payment, as the Group has received
sarvices in consideration for the Group's equity instruments. An expense is recognised in the Group income statement for the
grant date fair value of the share-based payment aver the vasting year, with a credit recognised in equity.

In the subsidiaries' financial statemeants, the awards, in proportion to the recipients who are employees in said subsidiary,
are treated as an equity-settled share-based payment, as the subsidiaries do not have an obligation to settle the award. An expense
for the grant date fair value of the award is recognised over the vesting year, with a credit recognised in equity. The credit to
equity is treated as a capital contribution, as the parent company is compensating the subsidiaries’ employees with no cost
to the subsidiaries as there is no expectation to recharge this cost. In the parent company's financial statements, there is no
share-based payment charge where the recipients are employed by a subsidiary, with the parent company recognising an
increase in the investment in the subsidiaries as a capital contribution from the parent and a credit to equity.

1.18 Foreign currency

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated at the exchange rate at the date of transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities
in foreign currencies are translated at the rates of exchange at the statement of financial position date. Any gain or loss arising
from a change in the exchange rates after the date of the transaction is included as a gain or loss in other comprahensive income.

The statements of financial position of the foreign subsidiaries are translated into Sterling at the rate at the year end. Tha results of
the foreign subsidiaries are translated into Sterling at the average rate of exchange during the financial year. Exchange differences
which arise from the translation of opening net assets of the foreign subsidiary undertakings are included in the consolidatad
statement of comprahensive income.

1.19 Descriptions of nature of each component of equity
The components of the Group's equity can be describad as follows:

* Share capital = The amount for the nominal value of shares issued.
= Share premium = The amount subscribed for share capital in excess of nominal value, after deducting costs of issus.

* Foreign exchange reserve — This reserve relates to exchange differences arising on the translation of the balance sheet of the
Group's foreign operations at the closing rate and the translation of the income statement of those operations at the average rate.

= Merger raserve — Under the provisions of section 612 of the Companies Act 20086, the merger reserve rapresents the difference
betwaen the consideration paid and the book value of the net assets acquired, as part of a legacy Group reconstruction.

* Treasury reserve — The reserve relates to shares held in the Group's Employee Benefit Trust.

* Retained deficit — The retained deficit reserve contains the net gains and losses recognised in the consolidated staterment of
comprehansiva income,

1.20 Inventories

Inventories comprise tickets held for resale and are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. Consignment tickets are not

included within stocks held by the Group, Inventories are valued using a first-in first-out (FIFC) meathod.

1.21 Government grants and assistance

Government grants and assistance are recognised in the related expense line in the profit and loss on a systematic basis over the

period in which the entity recognises the expenses, for which the grant is intended to compensate,

Therefore, the grants in recagnition of specific expenses are recognised in the related expense line within the profit or loss in the
same period.
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2. Adoption of new and revised standards

At the date of authorisation of these financial statemeants, the Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs that have
been issued but are not yet effective and, in some cases, have not yet been adopted by the EL:

* |AS 1 - "Presentation of Financial Statements" and 1AS 8 “Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors®
(&mendment — Definition of Material),

= |[FRS 3 - “Business Combinations” (Amendment — Definition of Business).
* Revised Conceptual Framewark for Financial Reporting.
+ [FRIC 23 — "Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatmeant™.

Other than IFRS 16 which is discussed below, these new standards have not had a material impact on the Group's consolidated
financial statements.

In January 2020, the 1ASB issued amendments to 1AS 1, which clarify the criteria used to determine whether liabilities are
classified as current or non-current. These amendments clarify that current or non-current classification is based on whether an
entity has a right at the end of the reporting period to defer settlement of the liability for at least twebhwe months after the reporting
periad. The amendments also clarify that ‘settlement” includes the transfer of cash, goods, services, or equity instruments unless
the obligation to fransfer equity instruments arises from a comvearsion feature classified as an equity instrument separately from the
liakility component of a compound financial instrument. The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2022, The Group is currently assassing the impact of these new accounting standards and amendmeants.

In the current year, the Group has applied the revised standards to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting Standards Board
IASE) that are mandatorily effective for an accounting period that begins on or after 1 September 2019, The new and amended
accounting standard adopted during the year are:

* |[FAS 16 "Leases” (sffective 1 January 2013).
* |FRIC 23 - "Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatment™ (no material impact on the Group).

IFRS 16 “Leases"

IFRS 16 will primarily impact the accounting by lessaes and will result in the recognition of almaost all leases on the balance sheet.
The standard removes the current distinction between oparating and financing leases as previously reguired under 1AS 17 and
requires recognition of an asset {the right to use the leased itermn) and a financial liability to pay rentals for virtually all lease contracts.
The Group will take advantage of the optional exemptions which exist for low-value leases. The income statement is impacted due
to the differances between straight line accounting and using an incremental borrowing rate, with operating expense replaced with
interest and depreciation, so key metrics such as EBITDA will change.

The Group has elected to apply IFRS 16, ‘Leases’, in accordance with the transition provisions contained in IFBS 16, The new
rulss will be adopted from 1 September 2019, with the cumulative effect of initially applying the new standard recognised on that
date. Comparatives for the 31 August 2019 financial year will therefore not be restated. In applying IFRS 16 for the first time, the
Group has used the following practical expedients permitted by the standard:

= the use of a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably similar characteristics;
= the exclusion of initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application; and
+ the use of hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has not applied the expedient, to not recognise all classes of operating leases with a remaining lease term of less than
12 months as at 1 September 2019 as short-term leases. The policy applied has bean applied consistantly to leasas of underlying
assets in the same class whereas the transitional expedient can be applied on a lease-by-lease basis.

The Group has also elected not to apply IFRS 16 to contracts that were not identified as containing a lease under 1AS 17 and
IFRIC 4, "Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease”,

The Group leases varous properties for office space. Rental contracts are typically made for roling periods of 1 month to & years
but might have extension options. Leasa terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms
and conditions. Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is
available for use by the Group. Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance cost. The finance cost is charged
to the income statement over the lease pericd so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of
the liability for each period. The right-of-use asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on

a straight-line basis.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease ara initially measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present
value of the following lease payments:

= fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease incentives receivable,
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IFRS 16 “Leases"” continued
* gmounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees; and

* payments of penalties for tarminating the leasa, if the lease term reflects the lesseea exercising that option.

Tha leass payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease, if that rate can be determined, or the Group's
incremental borrowing rate, Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

« the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

* any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received;
* any initial direct costs; and

* restoration costs,

Payments associated with leases of low-value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an expense in the income statement.
Low-value assets comprise IT equipment. On 1 September 2019, the Group will recognise lease liabilities in relation to leases
which had previously been classified as "operating leases”™ under the principles of 1AS 17. These liabilities will be measurad at

the present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the Group's assumed incremental borrowing rate as of

1 September 2018, The weighted average lesses’s incremental borrowing rate applied to the leasa liabilties on 1 September 2013
was B%. The leasa liability to be recognised at 1 September 2019 is expected to be £7.5m and a right-of-use asset of £6.9m.

The Group has applied IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective approach and comparative information has not been restated.
The Group has:

* recognised the lease liabilities as the present value of the remaining lease payments, discountad using the borrowing rate at the
data of initial application;

= glactad to measure its right-of-use assets using the approach set out in IFRS 16.C8(b)i) calculating the camrying value as if
IFRS 16 had applied at the lease commeancement date but discounted using the borrowing rate at the date of initial application; and

* recognised the cumulative effect of initially applying IFRS 16 as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings at the
data of initial application.

The following table sets out the impact of adopting IFRS 16 on the statement financial position as at 1 September 2019;

Az at Ag at
31 August Impact of 1 Septamber

2019 IFRS 16 2018

£'1000 £1000 £'000
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 1,843 — 1,843
Intangible assets 9,009 - 9,009
Right-of-use assets’ = 6,931 6,931
Total non-current assets 10,852 5,831 17,783
Total current assets 23,466 = 23,466
Total assets 34,318 6,931 41,249
Liabilities
Total current liabilities? {13,371) 275 (13,096
Lease liabilities” — (7,532) (7.532)
Other liabilities (2 - )
Total liabilities {13,373) (7,257} (20,630
MNet assets 20,945 (326 20,69
Total equity* 20,945 (328 20,691

1 The adustment to ﬂgl’lt-l:lf-l.liﬂ B5sats k5 related to all operalting typs lease E554ats.
2 The table above removes the apening rent accrueal disclosed in the Groups 31 August 2079 annual financial staterments.

3 The tabde above reconclles the minimum lagse commitmants dischosed in the Growp's 31 August 2018 annual financial statemeants to the amount of leasa liabilities recognised
on 1 Seplamber 2018,

4 Aetained sarnings were adjustad to record tha net affact of all cther adjestments notad
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

2. Adoption of new and revised standards continuad

IFRS 16 “Leases" continuad

In May 2020, the 1ASB issued an amendment to IFRS 16 (COVID-19-Related Rent Concessions). It was endorsed by the EU on
9 October 2020. It is effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 June 2020, but earlier application is permitted, including
in financial statemeants not authorised for issue at 28 May 2020, The amendment provides relief to lessees from applying IFRS 16
guidance on lease modification accounting for rent concessions arising as a direct conseguence of the COVID-19 pandamic.
As a practical expedient, a lessee may elect not to assess whether a COVIDA9 related rent concession from a lessor is a lease
modification. A lessee that makes this election accounts for any change in lease payments resulting from the COVID-19 related
rent concession the same way it would account for the change under IFRS 16, if the change were not a lease modification. While
the company was, amongst other limited and discrete lease term changes o existing leases, granted rent rebates related as a
diract consequence of the COVID-19 pandemic, it has not applied this practical expedient meaning that rent rebates and other
lease changes to existing leasas were accounted as medifications to the lease liability and Right of use asset only.

3. Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty
145 1 requires disclosure of the judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that management has made in the process of
applying the entity's accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

In addition, 1AS 1 requires disclosure of information about the assumptions the entity makes about the future, and other major
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of resulting in a material adjustment
ta the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. In respect of those assets and liabilities, the notes to
the financial statements include details of their nature and carrying amount at the end of the reporting period.

In the application of the Group and Company’s accounting policies, the Directors are required to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions about the carrying amount of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates
and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from thesa estimates. The Directors do believe there are two areas within the financial statements which constitute critical
accounting judgements as follows:

Capitalisation of development costs

Development costs are capitalised based on an assessment on whether they meet the criteria specified in 1AS 38 for capitalization,
Dwring each reporting period, an assessmeant is performead by management to determine the time spent developing the intangible
assets (note 15) as a proportion of total time spent in the year, This represents an area of judgement and impacts the value of
intangible costs capitalised (2020: £4.9m; 2019: £4.3m).

Useful economic lives

Capitalised development costs in respect of the TenMAID, Ten Digital Platform and servicing infrastructure are amortised over
their useful life of five years. The useful life is based on management's judgement which reflects the period over which the asset
is expected to generate future economic benefits and is annually reviewed for appropriateness.

Material estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to material accounting estimates
are reccgnised in the year in which the estimate is revisaed and future years as appropriate.
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4. Segment reporting
The total revenue for the Group has been derived from its principal activity, the provision of conciarge services. This has been
disaggregated appropriately into operational segment and geographical location.

The Group has threa reportable segments: Europe, the Middle East and Africa (EMEA), Morth and South America (“The Americas”)
and Asia-Pacific (APAC). Each segment is a strategic business unit and includes businessas with similar operating characteristics.
They are managed separately in similar time 2ones to reflect the geographical management structure.

2020 2018
£'000 £'000
EMEA 21,975 20,494
Americas 13,784 15,795
APAC 8,465 9,543
MNet Revenue 44,224 45,832
Add back: cost of sales on principal transactions 2,145 3,248
Revenue 46,369 49,080
EMEA 8,205 2,259
Americas (3,862) [4,264)
APAC 435 (1,317)
Adjusted EBITDA 4778 (3,322)
Amortisation [3,380) (3,011)
Depreciation (4,395) 1993)
Share-pased payment expanse (1,525) (501)
Exceptional iterms (405) —
Operating loss (4,927) (7,827
Foreign exchange (loss)/gain (511) 254
Other net finance expense (453) 15)
Loss before taxation (5,891) (7.288)
Taxation expense (1,005) 873
Loss for the year (6,8986) (8,261)

Statutory revenus for the Americas and APAC segments are the same as the Net Revenue amounts disclosed above, Statutory
Revenue for the EMEA segment were 24120k (2019: £23,742%).
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Notes to the Financial Statements continued

4. Segment reporting continuad

The Group's statutory revenue from external customers is generated from commercial relationships entered into by various Group
companies, which, given the global nature of the Group's service delivery model, may naot reflect the location where the services
are deliverad, as raflected in the Net Revenus segmentation noted below. The Group's statutory revenue split by contracting
country is as laid out below:

2020 2019

£'000 £1000
LIk 34,134 34,435
ISA 2,468 3,540
Switzerland 7,226 7,847
Rest of world 2,54 3,258
Revenue 46,369 49,080

The Group's statutory revenue is disaggregated into the following revenue streams as detailed in the revenue accounting policy
(note 1.5). In addition, the Group disaggregates revenus into services whare the Group is considerad agant or principal as below:

2020 20149

£'000 £1000

Concierge service fees 38,896 38,515
Indirect concierge sarvice revenue 6,235 9,875
Digital platform fees 1,238 690
Total Revenue 46,369 49,080
2020 2019

£7000 £1000

Revenue from services as Principal 45,462 48122
Revenue from services as Agent 907 958
46,369 49,080

Met Revenue is a non-GAAF company measure that excludes the direct cost of sales relating to member transactions managed
by the Group, such as the cost of airine tickets sold under the Group's ATOL licences. Net Revenue is the measure of the Group's
income on which segmental performance is measured.

Adjusted EBITDA is a company non-GAAP specific measure excluding interast, taxation, amaortisation, depreciation, share-based
payment and exceptional costs,

Adjusted EBITDA is the main measure of performance used by the Group's Chief Executive Officer, who is considerad to be the
chief operating decision maker. Adjusted EBITDA is the principal operating metric for a segment.

The statement of financial position is not analysed between reporting segments. Management and the chief operating dacision
maker consider the staternent of financial position at Group level,

Two customers generated more than 10% of total revenue each during the year ended 31 August 2020, The total combined
revenue of these customers was £10.2m (2019: £10.2m) and was mainly included in the EMEA and Americas segments.

4.1 Exceptional items

2020 2018
£'000 £000
Impairment of intangible asset (405) —
(405) -

The impairment charge in the vear related to specific know-how, enabling more cost-efficient servicing of concierge requests.
An assessment of the database capitalised determined that a specific portion of this was less likely to generate future economic
benefits due to the fall-out of the COVID-19 pandemic. Such impairment is considered to be cne-off in nature and therefore
presented as an exceptional item.
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5. Operating loss
Operating loss for the year is stated after charging:

2020 2018
£'o0o E'00
Exchange losses/gains) 511 (494)
Research and development costs 12 673
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 213 993
Depreciation of right-of-use Asset 3,482 —
Amortisation of intangible assets 3,380 3,011
Operating lease rental - 4,110
Bad debt expanse 222 214
Impairment 405 —
6. Auditor's remuneration
2020 2018
£'o00 000
For audit services
Audit of the financial statements of the Comparny 86 83
Audit of the financial statements of the Company’s subsidiaries 15 15
101 95
For other services
Tax services for the Compary 4 10
Tax services for the Company's subsidiaries 26 &8
Othar services 8 17
3a 85
7. Employees
The average maonthly number of persons (including Directors) emplayed by the Group during the year was:
2020 2018
Numbar Murmbser
Lk 235 240
International 735 597
a70 837
Their aggregate remunearation comprised:
2020 2018
£'000 £'000
Wages and salaries 26,736 28,453
Social security costs 2,974 2,636
Pension costs 678 779
Share-based payments 1,525 5
31,913 33,369

During the year, the Group obtained government support under various schemes around the world in response to the COVID-19
pandemic. This support has reduced the Wages and salaries expense for the Group. Employes headcount includes those who
are supported by the aforementioned government initiatives.
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8. Directors’ remuneration

2020 2019
£'000 £000
Rermuneration for gualifying services 1,006 963
Pension contributions to defined contribution schemes ) 12
Share-based payments — gain on the exercise of share options during year - =
1,015 a75
Full details of Directors’ remuneration is prasented in the Remuneration Committee Report on pages 45 fo 49.
Remuneration disclosed above includes tha following amounts paid to the highest paid Director:
2020 2019
£'000 £000
Remuneration for qualifying services 306 295
Share-based payments — expense 260 144
Share-based payments — gain on the exercise of share options during year - —
566 439

The number of Directors for whom retirement benefits are accruing under defined contribution schemes amounted to two (2019: three).

9, Key management personnel

2020 ~E:J19

E"000 00

Short-term employes benefits 1,562 1,627
Past-employment benefits 26 41
Share-based payments — gain on the exercise of share options during year - 177
1,588 1,845

Remuneration of key management personnel

The remuneration of key management personnel, including Directors, is set out above in aggregate for each of the categories
specified in 1AS 24 “Related Party Disclosures”™. Key managemeant personnel comprise the Directors of the Company, and senior

staff with managemeant responsibilities across the entire Group.

10. Related party transactions

Other than the related party transactions described above, there were no further related party transactions in the vear to disclose.

11. Controlling party
In the opinion of the Directors, there is no ane ultimate controlling party.

76 Ten Lifestyle Group Plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2020



FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. Net finance expense

2020 2018

£'000 £'000
Losses/{gains) on forelgn exchange 511 [494)
Interest on bank overdrafts and loans 5 o
Interest on obligations under finance leases - 12
IFRS 16 interest charge 448 —
Other net finance expenss 1 —
Loan interest 1 —
Irvestment income: {2) (&0
Total finance expense/(income) o964 (539)
13. Income tax expense

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Current tax
Foreign taxes 659 873
Effect of taxes related to previous years 346 —
Total tax expenss 1,005 9r3
The credit for the year can be reconciled to the loss per the income statement as follows:

2020 2018

£'o0n E'000
Loss before taxation 5,891 7,288
Expected tax credit based on a corporation tax rate of 19% (2019; 19%) (1,119) (1,385)
Effect of expenseas not deductible in determining taxable profit L] 15
Accealerated capital allowances - —_
Effect of taxes related to previous years 346 —
Movermnent in deferred tax not recognisead 789 1,796
Owverseas tax rate differences 883 347
Overseas tax due to transfer pricing adjustments - 200
Taxation expense for the year 1,005 a73

The Group has tax losses carried forward at 31 August 2020 of £22.1m (2012: £19.1m). The movement in deferred tax not
recognised is a result of the increase in these losses.

The movement in deferred tax not recognised is largely due to the significant increase in losses during the period.
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14. Loss per share

2020 2019
£7000 £000
Loss attributable to equity shareholders of the parant (6,896) (8,261)

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue

Basic loss per share (pence)

80,103,503 80,095,503

(8.8)p

{10.3)p

Basic loss per ordinary share

Basic loss per ordinary share is caloulated by dividing the net result for the year attributable to shareholders by the weighted

number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted loss per ordinary share

Where the Group has incurred a loss in the year, the diluted loss per share is the same as the basic 1oss per share as the loss
has an anti-dilutive effect. Therefore, basic and diluted loss per share for the years endad 31 August 2019 and 31 August 2020 are

calculated on the same basis.

15. Intangible assets

Capitalisad
development

CosEts Wehsite Trademarks Tatal

£000 £'000 £'000 £1000
Cost
At 31 August 2018 20,817 1,808 55 22 781
Additions 4,305 - — 4,305
Disposals — — — —
At 31 August 2019 25122 1,809 55 27,086
Additions 5,308 — — 5,308
Impairmeant {405) - — (405}
At 31 August 2020 30,025 1,909 55 31,989
Accumulated amortisation
At 31 August 2018 13,363 1,648 55 15,066
Charge for the year 2,780 23 - 3.01
At 31 August 2019 16,143 1,879 65 18,077
Charge for the year 3,350 30 — 3,380
At 31 August 2020 19,493 1,909 55 21,457
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2019 8,979 a0 - 9,009
At 31 August 2020 10,532 — - 10,532

All additions related to internal expenditura. The useful economic lives of the capitalised development platforms and website are
assessed to be five years and three years respectively. The impairment charge in the year related to specific know-how, enabling
mare cost-efficient servicing of concierge requests. An assessment of the database capitalised determined that a specific portion
of this was less likely to generate future economic benefits due fo the fall-out of the COVID-19 pandemic.
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16. Property, plant and equipment

Leasehald Fixturas Office
Improvemants and h'.'.lngﬂ '.'-.‘.'{.JI:'II'I'IF.""H ltal
£'000 000 000 E'0a0
Cost
At 1 Septermber 2018 577 445 4,756 5,782
Additions &7 205 825 1,187
Disposals [96) — (147) (243)
At 31 August 2019 528 654 5,534 6,726
Additions 41 - 176 217
Disposals — (73) (1) (74)
At 31 August 2020 579 581 5,709 6,869
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 September 2018 360 249 3471 4,080
Charge for the year a0 152 751 993
Disposals (£43) — {147} (190
At 31 August 20719 A07 401 4,075 4,883
Charge for the year B3 70 760 913
Disposals - [52) (1) (53]
At 31 August 2020 480 419 4,834 5,743
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2019 13 253 1,459 1,843
At 31 August 2020 B89 162 875 1,126
17. Right-of-use asset
Lamg] and
l:.:uiju.'mgs ﬂ'.[u.la!
2000 E'0a0
At 1 September 2019 6,031 6,031
Additions 6,315 6,315
Lease Modifications (4, 444) (4, 444)
Translation differences [20d) (204)
At 31 August 2020 8,598 8,508
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 September 2019 -~ -
Charge for the year 3,482 3,482
At 31 August 2020 3,482 3,482
Carrying amount
At 31 August 2020 5,116 5,116

Lease modifications relate to renegotiations on leases, agread part way through the original lease term. Additions reflect the
renegotiated position and further new office leases.
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18. Subsidiaries
Details of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 August 2020 are as follows:

Cwmearship ‘oting
Caountry of Intereat pomer edcl
Name of unuer‘rahlng m:mrmrminn k) %% Mature of business
Ten Lifestyle Management Limited' Lk 100 100 Concierge services
Ten Lifestyle Managemeant (Asia) Limited Hong Kong 100 100 Concierge services
Ten Lifestyle Management USA Inc. LISA 100 100 Concierge services
Ten Lifestyle Management (Canada) ULC Canada 100 100 Concierge services
Ten Group Singapore PTE Limited Singapore 100 100 Concierge services
Ten Group Japan K.K. Japan 100 100 Concierge services
Ten Lifestyle Commercial Consulting (China) China 100 100 Conclerge services
Ten Lifestyle Management Limited S DE RL DE CV Mexico 100 100 Concierge services
Ten Lifestyle Management Africa (Pty) Limited South Africa 100 100 Concierge senvices
Ten Lifestyle Management India Private Limited Indlia 100 100 Concierge services
Ten Servicos de Concierge do Brasil Limited Brazil 100 100 Concierge services
Ten Group Belgium BVBA Belgium 100 100 Concierge services
Ten Group Australia Pty Limited Australia 100 100 Concierge services
Ten Lifestyle Management Switzerland GmiH Switzerland 100 100 Conclerge services
Ten Group France SAS France 100 100 Concierge services
Ten Group (RUS) LLC Russia 100 100 Concierge services
Ten Group Norway AS Norway 100 100 Concierge services
Ten Latin America Limited LIk 100 100 Dormant
Ten South America Limited UK 100 100 Dormant
Ten Global Services Limited LK 100 100 Dormant
Ten Travel Limited UK 100 100 Dormant
Ten Professional Services Limited LK 100 100 Dormant
Bailey Medical Support Limited Uk 100 100 Dormant

1 Shares held directly by Tan Lifestyle Group Ple.
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The registered offices of the Company’s subsidiaries are as follows;

Mame of undertaking

Registerad office

Ten Lifestyle Management Limited

Ten Lifestyle Management (Asia) Limitad
Ten Lifestyle Management USA Inc

Ten Lifestyle Management (Canada) ULC
Ten Group Singapore PTE Limited

Ten Group Japan KK,

Ten Lifestyle Commercial Consulting (China)
Ten Lifestyle Management 5 DE RL DE CV

Ten Lifestyle Management Africa (Pty) Limited
Ten Lifestyle Management India Privata Limited

Ten Servicos de Concierge do Brasil Limitad

Ten Group Belgium BVBA

Ten Group Australia Pty Limited

Tan Group France SAS

Ten Group (RUS) LLC

Ten Group Morway AS

Ten Lifestyle Management Switzerland GmbH

2nd floor, Fitzroy House, 355 Euston Road, Landen NMWA1 3AL, United Kingdom
Unit 21-101 WeWork Taikoo, Cityplaza Three, Taikoo, Hong Kong

149 New Montgomery Street, San Francisco CA, 941058, USA

1200 Bay Street, Suite 202, Toronto, Ontario MSR 245, Canada

63 Market Street, #11-04 Bank of Singapore Centre 0489242, Singapore

7F Sumitomo Sasazuka Taiyo Building, 1-48-3 Sasazuka, Shibuya-ku,
Tokyo 151-0073, Japan

Flaor 12 Platinum Building, 233 Tai Cang Road, Huangpu District, Shanghai,
200020, China

Torre Reforma Latino, Reforma 296, Piso 14, Suite 1400 Colonia Juarez, Mexico
D.F., 06600

Tth Floor, 19 Louis Gradner Street, Foreshore, Cape Town 8001, South Africa

The Ruby, South East Wing, 9th Floor, 29 Senapati Bapat Marg, Dadar (W),
Mumbai 400028, Maharashtra, India

Aua Gomes de Carvalho, Mo. 1356, Connjunto 131, Jardim Paulista, CEP 04547-008,
Sao Paulo, Brazil

Brusseals Airport Conporate Village, Lecnardo Da Vin-cilaan, 91935 Zaventam, Belgium
Level 9, 401 Collins Street, 3000, Melbourne, Victoria, Australia

86 avenua des Champs-Elysées, 75008, Paris, France

Office 612, Smolenskaya Square 3, 121099, Moscow, Russia

9th Floor, 16 Dronning Eufemias Gata, 0191 Oslo, Norway

Red Tower, Floor FO Limmatstrasse 260, 8005, Zurich, Switzerland

The registered office of the dormant subsidiaries incorporated in the UK is 2nd floor, Fitzroy House, 355 Euston Road, Londen

M1 3AL, United Kingdom.

19. Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables disclosaed below are measured at fair value using the expected credit loss model.

2020 2019
Group £'000 000
Trade receivables 2,052 4. 650
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (222) 514)

1,830 4,136
Other receivables 1,268 Q47
Prapayments and accrued income 3,843 5,986

6,941 11,069
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19. Trade and other receivables continued
Movermeants in Group contract assets and liabilities were as follows:

* trade receivables have decreased from E4.1m to £1.8m at the reporting date;

+ accrued income decreased from £2.23m to £1.85m at the reporting date with all accrued income recognised at 31 August 2019

being released during the year; and

+ deferred income decreased from £2.26m to £1.92m at the reporting date with all deferred income recognised at 21 August 2019

released during the year with the exception of 2170k,

The fair value of trade and other receivables below is the same as the carrying value as credit risk has been addressed as part
of impairment pravisioning and due to the short-term nature of the amounts receivable they are not subject to other cngoing

fluctuations in market rates,

20. Trade receivables - credit risk

2020 2013
Ageing of due and past due but not impaired debts E'000 000
0 - 30 days 1,782 3,086
30 - 60 days 120 840
&0 - 80 days 14 123
90 - 120 days 24 185
120+ days 112 Hé
2,052 4,650
Provision for bad and doubtful debts (222) (514)
1,830 4136

The Group provides against trade receivables using the expectad credit loss model as at the reporting date. In the pravious

financial yaar, the provision was £514k,
Trade Expacted Credit  Expectesd Credit
Deattoes Loms Provisian Logs Provision
£'000 £'000 %
0= 30 days 1,782 56 3%
30 - 60 days 120 50 42%
60 = 80 days 14 ] G
80 = 120 days 24 i 29%
120+ days 12 100 BO%
2,052 222

The pravision is based on prior experience using a provision matrix whilst considering an assessment of the current and future
expected economic climate, in addition to taking into account the length of time that the receivable has been overdus,

Movement in the allowances for doubtful debts

2020 2019
£"000 00
Balance at 1 Septermber 2019 514 -
Movement in provision (292) 514
Balance at 31 August 2020 222 514
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21. Cash and cash equivalents

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Cash at banks and on hand — unrestricted 10,611 12100
Cash at banks and on hand - restricted 346 241
Cash and cash equivalents 10,957 12,34
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows 10,957 12,341

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

The Group holds cash in a restricted access account in respect of guarantees. These guaranteas arise in the ordinary course of
business and relate to the Group's travel operations. The guarantees are required under consumer protection schemes in certain
markets and are provided by banks, which hold restricted cash to support the guarantee. As such, this guarantee will be requirad
for the long term, unless local regulations are amended.

22, Trade and other payables

2020 2018
Group £'000 £'000
Trade payables 787 227
Accruals and defarred income 7,148 8,206
Social security and other taxation 2,462 2079
Other payables 1,509 1,233
11,906 12,745
The fair value of trade and other payables are the same as the carrying valusas.
23. Provision - overseas tax liabilities
2020 2019
£'000 £'0an
Overseas tax liabilities 596 S86

The liabilities relate to overseas tax labilities. The liabilities will reduce as overseas tax filings are finalised and paid.

24, Borrowings

2020 2018
£'000 £'000
Long-term loan 1,000

On 22 July 2020, the Group received a loan backed by the United States of America's Government as part of the Payroll Protection
Plan for the value of $1.33m. The loan is intended to support businesses through the COVID-18 pandemic. The scheme is run

by the Small Business Administration Service (SBA) to help small business (with less than 500 employees). The loan is available
basad on US payroll value and headcount. The loan is long term in nature {five years) incurring 1% interest per annum and loan
payments are deferred for six months. Exact details of repayments have yet to be published by the SBA The balance of the loan
rermaining at 31 August 2020 is £1m.
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25. Lease liabilities

2020
E'000
In cne year or less 2,952
Between one and five years 3,254
Total undiscountad lease liabilities at 31 August 2020 6,206
Lease liabilities included in the statement of financial position at 31 August 2020
Current 3,335
Mon-current 2,668
6,003
Amounts recognised in the comprehensive income statement
Interast expense on lease liabilities 448

Discount rates

The discount rate used is based on the Group’s estimated cost of debt. The discount rate applied is 6%, which is the Group's
incramental borrowing rate.

Reconciliation of operating lease commitments

At 31 August 2019 and 1 September 2019

Operating kease Discourtad laasa Leass Rabiity
commitments at Incramantal commitmeant at recognised at Diffsrance at
31 August 2019 borrowing rate at 1 September 2018 1 September 2019 1 Septamber 2019
000 1 Septambar 2015 £'000 000 2000
Land and Buildings 7,548 6% 6,965 7,532 567

The difference of £567k on land and buildings includes non-lease components which were previously included within operating
lease commitments at 31 August 2004 and not includad in lease liabilities,

26. Share capital

2020 2019

Mumber Mism s

000 0o

80,650,049 ordinary shares of £0.0071 each 80,650 80,650

Thera were no share issues during the financial yvear ended 31 August 2020, Al shares are fully paid.

Own shares held

An Employes Benefit Trust (Ten Group Employee Benefit Trust) was established in February 2012, The Trust holds 546,546
ordinary shares at £0.2m, having transferred 7,000 shares to an employee during the year as part of a share option exercise.
These shares held are treated as treasury shares and are included in the treasury reserve in the consolidated statement of
financial position.
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27. Share options

All share aptions relating to the LK tax authority approved Enterprise Management Incentive (EMI) share option plan and the
unapproved share option plan fully vested on completion of the IPO other than those options with performance conditions which
ware not met and therefore lapsed. The Company Share Option Plan (CS0P) remains in place and the Management Incentive
Plan (MIF) commencad on 9 Novemnber 2017, As part of the Group’s COVID-19 cost saving measures, a Salary Sacrifice Scheme
1555) was first launchad in March 2020, allowing employees to sacrifice a proportion of their salary over a four-month period in
return for share options.

For CSOP and MIP schames, the holder must be in continued employment of the Company for three vears for the option to vest.
All options unexercised after a period of ten years from the date of grant expire.

For the SS5, the holder must sacrifice the pre-agreed amount of salary to vest the options granted. All options unexercised after
a period of three years from the date of grant expire.

The Group has no legal or constructive obligation to repurchase or settle options in cash.

Options are exercisable at a range of between £0.001 per share and E£1.60 per share. The weighted average remaining contractual
lita of the share options outstanding at 31 August 2020 is 5.2 years.

The total expense recognisad for year ended 31 August 2020 arising from equity-settled share-based paymant transactions
amounted to £1.5m (2019: £0.5m).

Wieighted averags

EXENCISE phcs

Mumbser g

Number of options cutstanding at 31 August 2018 3,549,709 0.42
Granted in the year - CSOP 816,205 0.99
Granted in the year — MIF 47187 0.001
Forfeited in the year — CS0P {499,575) 0.81
Forfeited in the year — MIF 175,000) 0,001
Nurmber of options outstanding at 31 August 2019 4,737,526 0.43
Granted in the year — CS0OP 25,226 1.19
Granted in the year — MIP 722,000 0.0M
Granted in the year - 335 5,495,423 0.82
Cancelled in the year — 355 {100,582) 0.81
Forfeited in the year - CSOP (125,210 0.60
MNumber of options cutstanding at 31 August 2020 10,754,373 0.42

Number of options exercisable at 31 August 2020 5,586,192
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27. Share options continued

Rirrasining

Numbar Nurmbaar Exgroisa curﬂrdt;tu:al

as at &8 at prica li*g

3 August 2020 31 Augusat 2018 E {eEre)

January 2013 to January 2023 EMI 97,336 97,336 0.22 24
January 2013 to January 2023 EMiI 24,672 24,672 0.54 24
January 2013 to January 2023 EMI 9,440 9,440 0.4 24
May 2014 to January 2023 EMI 29,416 29,416 0.4 27
December 2015 to December 2025 EMI 122,992 122,992 0.56 53
August 2017 to August 2027 CS0OFP 1,240,000 1,340,000 0.75 7.0
December 2017 to Decamber 2027 MIF 1,216,000 1,216,000 0.0 7.3
March 2018 to March 2028 CS0OP 9,375 8,375 1.60 7.5
April 2018 to April 2028 MIP 68,956 68,956 0.0 7.6
May 2018 to May 2028 CS0OP 22,222 22222 1.35 I
August 2018 to August 2028 CSOP 33,725 33,725 0.87 8.0
September 2018 to September 2028 CS0P 34,483 34,483 0.87 8.0
September 2018 to September 2028 MIP 112,360 112,360 0.0 8.0
Movember 2018 to November 2028 CS0OP 86,875 B6,875 0.69 8.2
MNovermnber 2018 to November 2028 MIP 344,828 344,828 0.001 8.2
December 2018 to December 2028 CS0OP 42,857 42 857 n.a7 8.3
January 2019 to January 2029 S0P 67,781 67,781 0.87 8.4
April 2019 to April 2029 CSoP 45,802 45,802 0.66 86
June 2019 to June 2029 CS0OP 134,831 134,831 0.89 88
June 2019 to June 2029 MIP 490,000 490,000 0.001 88
July 2019 to July 2029 CS0OP 25,424 25,424 118 89
August 2019 to August 2029 CSoP 352,941 378,161 119 9.0
October 2019 to October 2029 CS0P 25,226 — 1.19 a1
January 2020 to December 2030 MIF 722,000 - 0.0 9.3
March 2020 to March 2023 555 4,062,336 — 0.70 25
July 2020 to July 2023 233 1,332,495 - 1.20 29

10,754,373 4,737,526

The period notad in the table below reflects the month during which the options were awarded to the month of expiration. For the
share options granted during the year, the weighted average fair valugs of the options is £0.41,

Management Incentive Plan

Linder the MIP 610,000 options wera issued conditional of achievement of performance conditions based on total shareholder
return {market) and, for some participants, operational targets (non-market). A further 176,000 share options were issued, conditional
on three years of employment service (non-market) from the date of grant. All share options granted under the MIP can be exercised
at nominal ordinary share value (E0.0070).

Salary Sacrifice Scheme

Under the 555, the Group offered its employess the opportunity to sacrifice salary over two 4-month periods in exchange for
share aptions resulting in the issue of 5,373,712 options. The sacrifices ranged from 5% to 50% of salary over the two grants.
Valuation of share options

The fair value of options subject to non-market based vesting conditions were measurad using a Black Scholes maodel and those
options with market-based conditions using a Monte Carla simulation model.

86 Ten Lifestyle Group Plc | Annual Report and Accounts 2020



27. Share options continued
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The fair value of the outstanding options without performance conditions was measured using the Black Scholes options valuation
model. The inputs to that madel in respect of the share options cutstanding under each issue as at the year ended 31 August 2020

and 31 August 2019 were as follows:

EMI EMI EMI EMI

January May December December

Grant month 2013 2014 2015 2015
Weighted average share price £3.31 £33 £4.50 £5.00
Weighted average exercise price £3.31 £3.31 £4.50 £4.50
Expected volatility T2% 5B% T2% 58%
Weighted average risk-free rate 1.00% 1.56% 1.20% 0.51%
Expected dividend yield — — — —
Weighted average option life (years) & < 5 4
Weighted average fair value at date of grant £1.94 £1.52 £2.65 £2.38
EMI CS0P MIP CE0P

December August  December March

Grant month 2015 2017 2m7 208
Weighted average share price £6.00 £6.00 £1.43 £1.60
Weighted average exercise price £4.50 £6.00 £0.001 £1.80
Expected volatility 42% 2% 305 30%
Weighted average risk-free rate 0.21% 0.44% 0.56% 0.60%
Expected dividand yield - - - -
Weighted average option life (years) 2 5 3 &
Weighted average fair value at date of grant £2.36 £3.49 £1.42 £1.29
C30P CS0P CHOP csoP

May August  September  November

Grant month 2018 2018 2018 2018
Waighted avarage share price £1.35 £0.91 £o.ar £0.64
Weighted average exercise price £1.35 £0.91 £0.87 £0.64
Expected volatility 30% 30% 30% 30%
Weighted average risk-free rate 0.63% 0.99% 0.99% 0.99%
Expected dividend yield — — — —
Weighted average option life (years) 5 5 5 5
Weighted average fair value at date of grant £0.86 £0.90 £0.86 £0.64
Caop S0P CE0P CeoP

Movember  Decamber January April

Grant month 2018 2018 2019 2019
Weighted average share price £0.75 £0.35 £0.44 066
Weighted average exercise price £0.75 £0.35 £0.44 £0.66
Expected volatility 30% 30% 305 30%
Weighted avarage risk-free rate 0.95% 0.99% 0.99% 0.60%
Expected dividend yield = = = =
Weighted average option life (years) B 5 5 =]
Weighted average fair value at date of grant £0.74 £0.35 £0.44 £0.63
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27. Share options continued
Valuation of share options continued

COSP COGP COsP MIF
June July August June
Grant maonth 2019 2019 2019 2019
Weighted average share prica £0.89 £1.18 £1.19 £0.34
Weighted average exercise price £0.89 £1.18 £1.19 £0.001
Expected volatility 30% 30% 30% 30%
Weighted average risk-free rate 0.60% 0.40% 0.33% 0.95%
Expected dividend yiald - - - -
Weightad average option life (years) 5 = 4] 3
Weighted average fair value at date of grant £0.85 £1.02 £0.96 £0.34
MIF 288 558
Dacember March July
Grant month 2019 2020 2020
Weighted average share price £1.22 £0.50 £0.94
Weighted average exercisa price £0.001 £0.70 £1.20
Expected volatility 30% A% 50%
Weighted average risk-frea rata 0.95% 0.30% 0.10%
Expected dividend vield — — —
Weighted average option life (years) 3 1.5 1.6
Weighted average fair value at date of grant £1.21 £012 £0.14

The fair value of the cutstanding options with performance conditions was measured using the Monte Carlo simulation model,
The inputs to that model in respect of the share options outstanding under each issue as at the year ended 31 August 2020

and 31 August 2019 were as follows:

MiF MIF MIP MIF

December April September Movember

Grant month 2017 2018 2018 2018
Weighted average share price £1.43 £1.15 £0.30 £0.20
Weighted average exercise price 20,001 £0.001 £0.001 £0.00
Expected volatility 30% 30% 30% 30%
Weighted average risk-free rate 0.56% 0.56% 0.78% 0.78%
Expected dividend vigld — — — —
Weighted average option life (years) 3 3 3 3
Weighted average fair value at date of grant £0.49 £0.39 £0.09 £0.09
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27. Share options continued
Valuation of share options continued

MIP MIF

June Decamber

Grant month 2018 2019
Weighted average share price £0.98 1,22
Weighted average exercise price £0.001 £0.001
Expected volatility 30% 0%
Weighted avarage risk-frae rate 0.54% 0.54%
Expected dividend vield — —
Weighted average option life (years) 3 3
Weighted average fair value at date of grant ro.s2 £1.04

The share price volatility fluctuated for the different share option schemes due to differant years that apply to each of the schemes
in existence, The risk-free rate is based on the average Bank of England base rate in the year.

Expected share price volatility is based on similar Isted entities and varies due to the different years that apply to each of the
schemes in existence, For the Salary Sacrifice scheme, expected share price volatility is based on the Groups share price volatility,

28. Capital commitments
At 31 August 2020 the Group had no material capital commitments (2019: Enil),

29, Financial instruments and financial risk management

Financial instruments

The Group's principal financial liabilities comprise trade and other payables and borrowings. The primary purpose of these financial
liabilities is to finance the operations. The Group has trade and other receivables and cash that derive directly from its operations.

Financial assets

2020 2018

£'o00 E'Da0
Cash at banks and on hand - unrastricted 10,611 12100
Cash at banks and on hand - restricted 346 24
Trade and other receivables 4,950 7 B95
Financial liabilities

2020 2018

£'000 E'000
Trade and other payables 5,751 6,512
Lease liabilities 6,003 32
Long-Term Loan 1,000 =

The Directors consider that the carrying amount for all financial assets and liabilities approximates to their fair value.

Financial risk management

The Company is exposed to market risk, which includes interest rate risk and currency risk, credit risk and liguidity risk. The senior
management cversees the management of thesa risks and ensures that the financial nsk taken is governed by appropriate policies and
procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the Group's policies and risk appetite.

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees the policies for managing each of these risks, which are summarised below:

Market risk
The Group's activities expose it primarily to the financial risks of changes in foreign currency exchange rates and interast rates.
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29. Financial instruments and financial risk management continuad

Foreign currency risk management

The Group is exposed to transactional and translation exchange risk. Transactional foreign exchange risk arises from sales or
purchases by a Group company in a currency other than that company's functional currency. Translation foreign exchange risk
arises on the translation of profits earned in Euros, US Dollars, Swiss Francs, Brazilian Real and Japanese Yen to Sterling and

the translation of net assets denominated in Euros, US Dollars, Swiss Francs, Brazilian Real and Japanesa Yan into Sterling,
the Group's functional currency.

Each of the companies in the Group trades almeost exclusively in its functional currency, minimising transactional foreign exchange risk.

EUR 1 (=R CHF 1 JFY 1 EAL 1
Year ended 31 August 2019

Average rate 113 1.28 1.27 141,56 4.95
Year-end spot rate 1.1 1.22 1.20 129.20 5.04
Year ended 31 August 2020

Average rate 114 1.27 1.23 137.16 5.99
Year-end spot rate 112 1.33 1.21 14119 T7.25

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group's sensitivity to a 5% decrease in Great British Pounds against the relevant fargign currencies
which the Directors believe could have the maost significant impact on the performance of the Group. 5% is the sensitivity rate
used when reporting foreign currency risk internally to key management personngl and represents management's assassment

of the reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates.

For a 5% strengthening of Great British Pounds against the relevant currency there would be a comparable impact on the profit
and other equity, in the opposite direction.

Profit or koss
2020 20192
£'000 £000
Euros 42 (10
US Dollars (513) (BE1)
Swiss Franos (170) {119)
Japanese Yen (151) (188)
Brazilian Real 24 98
(768) (00}

Interest rate risk

Interast rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market interest rates. The Group accepts the risk of losing interest on deposits due to interest rate reductions. Any interest
charged on cutstanding loans are at fixed rates.

The Directors do not believe the interest rate nsk to be matenal and therefore no sensitivity analysis has been preparad.

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract, leading
to a financial loss, The Group is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily for trade receivables) and from its
financing activities, including cash deposits with banks and financial institutions.

Trade receivables
Customer credit risk is managed subject to the Group's established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk
management. Outstanding receivables are regularly monitored and discussed at executive management and Board level.

The requirement for impairment is analysed at each reporting date. The calculation is based on actual incurred historical data, The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets disclosed above. The
Company does not hold collateral as security. The Company evaluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade receivables
as low as receivables are principally with largs financial institutions.
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29. Financial instruments and financial risk management continuead

Financial instruments and cash deposits

Credit risk from cash balances with banks and financial institutions is managed in accordance with the Cormpany’s policy. Cradit risk
with respect to cash is managed by carefully selecting the institutions with which cash is deposited.

Liquidity risk

The Group is not currently cash generative, howewver, funds were raised as part of the IPO in November 2017, In addition, the funds
generated by operating activities are managed to fund short-term working capital requirements. The Board carefully monitors the
levels of cash and is comfortable that it has sufficient cash for normal cperating requirements. The Group currently holds no
committed lines of cradit.

The following table details the Group's remaining contractual maturity for its financial liabilities based on undiscounted
contractual payments:

Within 1 yesar 100 2 years 2 b0 5 years Tatal
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
At 31 August 2019
Trade and other payables 5,251 — — 5,251
Finance lease obligations 30 2 - a2
At 31 August 2020
Trade and other payables 5,718 - — 5,718
Lease liabilities 2,952 3,254 - 6,206
Long-Term Loan - - 1,000 1,000

Capital risk management

The Group manages its capital to ensure that it will be able to continue as a going concern while also maximising the operating
potential of the business. The capital structure of the Group consists of cash and cash equivalents, long-term loan and equity
attributable to equity holders of the Company, comprising issued capital, reserves and retained samings as disclosed in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity. The Group is not subject to externally imposed capital requirements.

30. Financial instruments carried at fair value
Financial instruments carmmied at fair value are measured by reference to the following fair value hierarchy prescribed by IFRS 13
« level 1 quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

s level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, sither directly
li.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and

* |avel 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Derivative financial instruments are carried at fair value and measured under level 2 valuation method.

31. Events after the balance sheet date

There are no significant events to report after the balance sheet date. It should be noted, the Covid-19 pandemic and the initial
lockdown measuras introduced by governments in response were conditions in existence at the year-end date and have therefore
been treated as adjusting post-balance sheeat events. The disruption has had material implications for the wider global econormy,
although the Group has been less impacted than many companies. The directors continue to monitor the ongoing implications of
Covid-19. Further information is given in the Directors' report.
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Company Statement of Financial Position
as at 31 August 2020

Company No: 08259177
2020 2018

Motes £'000 £000
Non-current assets
Investments 32 46,706 45181
Total non-current assets 46,706 45,181
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents 34 73 81
Total current assets 73 &1
Total assets 46,779 45262
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables | {137) (88)
Amaounts due from Group undertakings 33 (279) (25)
Total current liabilities (#16) (113}
MNet current liabilities (343) (22)
MNet assets 46,363 45149
Equity
Called up share capital 27 a1 81
Share premium account 28,480 28,480
Retained samings 17,802 16,588
Total equity 46,363 45149

The Company has elected to take the exemption under Section 408 of the Companies Act 2006 from prasenting the parent company
profit and loss account and related notes. The Company’s net loss after tax for the year was £311,000 (2019: £2,539,000 profit).

The financial staterments were approved by the Board of Directors and authorised for issue on 23 Movemnber 2020 and are signed

on its behalf by

Alex Cheatle Alan Donald
Director Director
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Company Statement of Changes in Equity
for the year ended 31 August 2020

Share

Share premium Retained
capital account BAMINGS Teital
Notes £'000 £'000 £000 £'000
Balance at 1 September 2018 81 28,480 13,548 42109
Profit for the period — — 2,539 25639
Total comprehensive income for the period — — 2,539 2,539
Equity-settled share-based payments charge 27 a1 501
Balance at 31 August 2019 & 28,480 16,588 45,149
Loss for the period — — (211) 311)
Tatal comprehensive income for the period — — (311) [311)
Equity-settled share based payments charge 27 — — 1,525 1,625
Balance at 31 August 2020 81 28,480 17,802 46,363
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Company Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 31 August 2020

2020 2018
Mol E"000 00

Cash flows from operating activities
(Loss)/profit for the year after tax (311) 2,539
Movement in working capital:
Increase in trade and other receivables - [13,544)
Decrease/|ncreasea) in trade and other payables 303 5
Met (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (8) (11,410}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 81 11,491
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year 73 81
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements

32. Investments
Al irvestments held by the Company are investments in subsidiaries which are held at cost,

2020 2019
£'000 £'000

Imvestments in subsidiaries 46,706 45,181

Cost

At 31 August 2019 45,181 5,276

Additions 1,525 38,805

At 31 August 2020 46,706 45181

Carrying amount

At 31 August 2019 45,181

At 31 August 2020 46,706

The addition in the year represents capital contributions of £1.5m made to the Company's subsidiaries in respect of the share
option expense recognised on share options issued by the Company to employees of the appropriate subsidiaries.

On 30 August 2019 the Company increased its investmeant in Ten Lifestyle Management Limited by subscribing for 39,404,317 sharas
at £1 per share, satisfied by the forgiving of debt owed by Ten Lifestyle Managament Limited to the Company of £39.4m which
had increased over the course of the year.

Both of these transactions represent non-cash transactions during the year.

33. Trade and other creditors

2020 2018

£'000 £'000
Accruals 122 B8
Other payables 15 —
Amounts due to Group companies 279 25

416 13
34, Cash and cash equivalents

2020 2019

£'000 £'000
Cash at banks and on hand — unrestricted 73 a1
Cash and cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows T3 81
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35. Financial instruments and financial risk management
Financial instruments

The Company has limited financial liabilities as its primary purpose is to hold investments in other Group companies. The Company’s

receivables largely relate to its funding of the operations of the Group.

Financial assets

2020 2018

E"Q0D 000
Cash at bank and in hand — unrestrictad 73 a1
Financial liabilities

2020 208

£'000 000
Armounts due to Group undertakings 283 25
Trade and other payables 137 88
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